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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Drexel University 
 
 
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Drexel University and its 
subsidiaries (the “University”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of 
June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of activities and of cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.   
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the University's 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the University's internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1800, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103-7042 
T: (267) 330 3000, F: (267) 330 3300, www.pwc.com/us 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the University as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.   

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole.  The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2015 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular 
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and are not a required part of 
the consolidated financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the schedules of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27, 2015 
on our consideration of the University's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters 
for the year ended June 30, 2015.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion 
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the University's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
October 27, 2015 



I.  Financial Statements
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(in thousands) 2015 2014

Assets
Cash and cash equiv alents

Operating 99,457$        88,141$     
Restricted 7 ,341 7 ,017

Accounts receiv able, net
Tuition 7 3,917 50,7 20
Grants, contracts and other 7 1 ,461 60,940
Patients 8,950 8,043
Tenet Healthcare Corporation 1 ,852 1,7 46

Total accounts receiv able, net 156,180 121,449

Contributions receivable, net 88,888 7 2,334
Other assets 36,847 33,998
Funds held by  trustees 5,845 20,834
Student loans receiv able, net 35,482 35,106
Beneficial interests in trusts 53,507 56,438
Inv estments 691,67 2 67 6,669
Land, buildings and equipment, net 902,329 884,807

Total assets 2,07 7 ,548$ 1 ,996,7 93$

Liabilities
Accounts payable 58,37 9$        48,205$        
Accrued expenses 112,97 5 101,669
Deposits 22,394 39,062
Deferred revenue 118,993 104,681
Capital lease 2,804 3,451
Gov ernment advances for student loans 28,513 28,185
Post-retirement and pension benefits 64,200 55,7 45
Bonds and notes pay able 458,661 468,405

Total liabilities 866,919 849,403

Net assets
Unrestricted 631,17 7  57 5,7 45
Temporarily  restricted 255,432 261,203
Permanently  restricted 324,020 310,442

Total net assets 1 ,210,629 1,147 ,390

Total liabilities and net assets 2,07 7 ,548$ 1 ,996,7 93$



Drexel University and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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T em porarily Perm anently
(in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Restricted T otal

Operating rev enue
Tuition and fees 87 2,924$      -$          -$     87 2,924$      
Less:  Institutional financial aid (244,991) (244,991)

Net student revenue 627 ,933 - - 627 ,933

Patient care activ ities 103,199 103,199
State appropriations 8,064 8,064
Government grants and contracts 87 ,7 91 87 ,7 91
Private grants and contracts 16,468 20 16,488
Private gifts 6,658 60,341 66,999
Endowment pay out under spending formula 11 ,07 6 14,294 100 25,47 0
Investment income 888 2,149 3,037
Sales and serv ices of auxiliary  enterprises 89,841 89,841
Other sources 28,315 28,315
Net assets released from restrictions 7 1 ,095 (7 1,211) 116 -

Total operating revenue 1,051,328 5,593 216 1,057 ,137

Operating expense
College programs 362,345 362,345
Research and public serv ice 90,67 5 90,67 5
Academic support 28,7 47 28,7 47
Student serv ices 47 ,501 47 ,501
Institutional support 138,080 138,080
Scholarships and fellowships 14,7 20 14,7 20
Auxiliary  enterprises 43,07 6 43,07 6

Total education and general 7 25,144 - - 7 25,144

Patient care activ ities 132,544 132,544
Other operating expense 61 ,657 61,657
Interest 15,869 15,869
Depreciation and amortization 43,685 43,685

Total operating expense 97 8,899 - - 97 8,899

Change in net assets from operating activ ities 7 2,429 5,593 216 7 8,238

Non-operating activ ities
Endowment and other gifts - - 16,57 8 16,57 8
Realized/unrealized net loss on investments,
     net of endowment pay out (4,414) (11 ,364) (3,216) (18,994)
Other non-operating expense (12,583) (12,583)

Change in net assets from non-operating activ ities (16,997 ) (11 ,364) 13,362 (14,999)

Change in net assets 55,432 (5,7 7 1) 13,57 8 63,239

Net assets
Beginning of y ear 57 5,7 45 261,203 310,442 1,147 ,390

End of y ear 631 ,17 7$      255,432$      324,020$     1 ,210,629$



Drexel University and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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T em porarily Perm anently
(in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Restricted T otal

Operating rev enue
Tuition and fees 802,867$     -$     -$         802,867$     
Less:  Institutional financial aid (203,281) (203,281)

Net student rev enue 599,586 - - 599,586

Patient care activ ities 109,364 109,364
State appropriations 8,17 9 8,17 9
Gov ernment grants and contracts 91,520 484 92,004
Priv ate grants and contracts 17 ,626 17 ,626
Priv ate gifts 5,495 22,588 28,083
Endowment payout under spending formula 11 ,602 14,306 155 26,063
Investment income 3,466 1,451 4,917
Sales and serv ices of auxiliary  enterprises 86,134 86,134
Other sources 14,518 14,518
Net assets released from restrictions 61,7 35 (61,936) 201 -

Total operating rev enue 1,009,225 (23,107 ) 356 986,47 4

Operating expense
College programs 348,7 25 348,7 25
Research and public serv ice 107 ,626 107 ,626
Academic support 28,954 28,954
Student serv ices 46,630 46,630
Institutional support 128,892 128,892
Scholarships and fellowships 13,489 13,489
Auxiliary  enterprises 43,67 2 43,67 2

Total education and general 7 17 ,988 - - 7 17 ,988

Patient care activ ities 129,299 129,299
Other operating expense 56,144 56,144
Interest 17 ,957 17 ,957
Depreciation and amortization 43,630 43,630

Total operating expense 965,018 - - 965,018

Change in net assets from operating activ ities 44,207 (23,107 ) 356 21,456

Non-operating activities
Endowment and other gifts 7 63 994 14,17 2 15,929
Realized/unrealized net gain on inv estments,
     net of endowment pay out 26,936 34,856 5,883 67 ,67 5
Other non-operating expense (4,536) (7 ,000) (11 ,536)

Change in net assets from non-operating activ ities 23,163 28,850 20,055 7 2,068

Change in net assets 67 ,37 0 5,7 43 20,411 93,524

Net assets
Beginning of y ear 508,37 5 255,460 290,031 1,053,866

End of y ear 57 5,7 45$     261,203$      310,442$      1 ,147 ,390$



Drexel University and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Cash flow from operating activities
Increase in net assets 63,239$     93,524$      
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 43,685 43,630
Provision for uncollectible accounts 13,024 10,053
Loss on disposal of equipment 517 1,563
Change in market value in beneficial interests in trusts 2,931 (2,833)
Contributions for long-term investment (16,578) (14,172)
Non-cash contributions received (13,663) (2,791)
Fair value of donated securities 5,607 1,351
Actuarial change on annuity liabilities 7 653
Realized/unrealized loss(gain) on investments 4,281 (73,991)

  Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (46,834) (6,591)
Contributions receivable (17,073) 10,348
Other assets (2,849) (950)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 20,305 5,650
Post-retirement and pension benefits 8,455 5,004
Deposits (16,668) 3,934
Deferred revenue 14,312 26,753

Net cash provided by operating activities 62,698 101,135

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of investments (565,235) (123,609)
Proceeds from sale of investments 545,984 137,944
Change in restricted cash (324) (3,013)
Proceeds from student loan collections 7,214 5,186
Student loans issued (7,992) (3,634)
Purchase of land, buildings and equipment (54,667) (133,651)
Investment in New Market Tax Credit entities - (13,814)
Change in funds held by trustees 14,989 29,210

Net cash used in investing activities (60,031) (105,381)

Cash flow from financing activities
Contributions restricted for endowments 16,578 14,172
Proceeds from sales of donated securities 2,112 958
Payments on annuity obligations (333) (263)
Government advances for student loans 328 791
Proceeds from short-term debt 20,000 20,000
Repayment of short-term debt (20,000) (20,000)
Repayment of long-term debt (10,036) (6,771)

Net cash provided by financing activities 8,649 8,887

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,316 4,641

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 88,141 83,500

End of year 99,457$     88,141$    

Supplemental information
Gifts-in-kind 5,911$     175$    
Cash paid for interest 16,796 17,164
Amounts accrued for purchase of land, buildings and equipment 9,525 8,024
Donated securities 7,752 2,616
Issuance of long-term debt for restricted purpose - 19,540



Drexel University and Subsidiaries 
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June 30, 2015 and 2014
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Basis of Consolidated Financial Statements
Drexel University (the “University”) is a private comprehensive global research university located
in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.  The University is an exempt organization under Section 501 (c) (3)
of the Internal Revenue Code.  The consolidated financial statements include Drexel University, the
Academy of Natural Sciences of Philadelphia, Drexel eLearning, Inc., Academic Properties, Inc.,
and the University’s other subsidiaries which are described in detail in these notes.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  All revenues
received and expenditures paid prior to the end of the fiscal year which relate to the following fiscal
year are recorded and reflected as deferred revenues and deferred charges, respectively.  Resources
are reported for accounting purposes in separate classes of net assets based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  In the accompanying financial statements, net assets that
have similar characteristics have been combined into the categories as shown below.

Permanently Restricted
Net assets explicitly required by donor to be maintained permanently by the University.  Generally,
the donors of these assets permit the University to use all or part of the income earned on these
assets.  Such assets are included in the University’s permanent endowment funds.

Temporarily Restricted
Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions of the University in
accordance with those stipulations or by the passage of time.  Endowment income and
contributions with donor-imposed restrictions are reported as temporarily restricted and are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets when the donor-imposed restrictions have been met.

Unrestricted
Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may be designated for specific purposes
by action of the Board of Trustees.  Expenses are shown as decreases in unrestricted net assets.
Expirations of donor-imposed stipulations are reported as net assets released from restrictions.
Gains and losses on investments are reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets
unless explicit donor stipulation or law restricts their use.

Philadelphia Health and Education Corporation
The University owned 100% of the Philadelphia Health and Education Corporation (“PHEC”),
doing business as Drexel University College of Medicine, and providing teaching and
administrative services for the education of the University’s medical students and students in the
health professions.  PHEC was party to an Academic Affiliation Agreement with Tenet Healthcare
Corporation (“Tenet”) intended to establish a relationship to foster continued coordination and
integration between PHEC and the Tenet hospitals whereby PHEC agrees to provide
administrative, supervisory and teaching services to Tenet at budgeted levels.  This agreement,
dated November 10, 1998 and subsequently amended on April 25, 2002, is effective until June 30,
2022 and may be renewed thereafter for separate and successive five-year terms (Note 17).  As a
result of the merger, the University has assumed responsibility for the affiliation agreement with
Tenet.

On February 7, 2013, the PHEC Board of Trustees adopted a resolution to merge PHEC into Drexel.
The Drexel Board of Trustees adopted the resolution to merge on February 20, 2013.
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On April 11, 2014, the Philadelphia County Court of Common Pleas, Orphans’ Court Division 
approved the merger of PHEC into Drexel, including the transfer of all of the assets of PHEC to 
Drexel with a target effective date of July 1, 2014. 

In accordance with the resolutions and an effective date of July 1, 2014, PHEC merged with and 
into Drexel, and the separate existence of PHEC ceased. 

Academy of Natural Sciences of Philadelphia 
Pursuant to an affiliation agreement dated September 13, 2011, the University owns 100% of the 
Academy of Natural Sciences of Philadelphia, doing business as The Academy of Natural Sciences 
of Drexel University (“ANS”).  ANS, founded in 1812, is an exempt organization under Section 501 
(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  ANS is dedicated to encouraging and cultivating the sciences 
and advancing learning.  ANS operates a public museum in Philadelphia and conducts systematics 
research and research in aquatic ecosystem, including integrating such research with education 
regarding biodiversity and the environmental science in collaboration with the University and its 
students.  The balances and activities of ANS are included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 

Academic Properties, Inc. 
The University owns 100% of Academic Properties, Inc. (“API”), an exempt organization under 
Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  API manages properties used by the University, 
as well as other strategically located properties contiguous to its campus.  The balances and 
activities of API are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

Drexel e-Learning, Inc. 
The University owns 100% of the issued and outstanding stock of Drexel e-Learning, Inc. (“DeL”) a 
for-profit entity.  DeL was created to provide educational products and services through distance 
learning.  The balances and activities of DeL are included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements.  

On July 1, 2015, DeL  merged with and into Drexel University Online, LLC (“DUO”), a non-profit, 
Delaware, single-member, limited liability company whose sole member is Drexel University.  On 
that date, DUO will be the surviving entity and will carry on all of the operations previously 
performed by DeL .  Accordingly, as of July 1, 2015, the DeL legal entity ceased to exist. 

Schuylkill Crossing Reciprocal Risk Retention Group 
The Schuylkill Crossing Reciprocal Risk Retention Group (the “RRRG”) operated to provide 
primary coverage for claims-made medical professional liability insurance for healthcare 
professionals employed by PHEC.  Ownership of the RRRG was split 85% and 15% between PHEC 
and the University (Note 15). 

At June 30, 2014, total assets of the RRRG totaled $25,591,000 and ownership equity totaled 
$2,173,000 which are included in the  consolidated financial statements. 

As a result of the merger of PHEC and Drexel, effective as of July 1, 2014, RRRG has terminated its 
license to provide insurance.  All prior risks have been novated, substituted, and assumed by Drexel 
University Medical Professional Self-Insurance Trust for the primary layer and by a newly-formed 
captive, Dragon Risk Limited, Co. for the excess layers. 
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Dragon Risk Limited, Co. 
Dragon Risk Limited, Co. (“DRLC”) is a single member, limited liability company, formed and 
domiciled in the State of Vermont, of which Drexel University is the sole member.  DRLC received 
its Articles of Organization on May 23, 2014 from the Vermont Secretary of State.  On June 11, 
2014, DRLC received its Certificate of Authority from the Vermont Department of Financial 
Regulation and commenced business on July 1, 2014.  Dragon Risk Limited, Co. provides excess 
liability coverage to Drexel University.

11th Street Family Health Services Inc. 
11th Street Family Health Services Inc. (“11th Street”), a Pennsylvania non-profit corporation, was 
formed on December 12, 2013.  11th Street is a non-profit real estate holding company of Drexel 
University, organized to operate in furtherance of the activities of Drexel University and to facilitate 
the use of new market tax credits in rehabilitating and expanding the structures located at 850 
North 11th Street, Philadelphia.  On December 23, 2013, 11th Street received a donation of certain 
real estate property known as 850 North 11th Street, Philadelphia Pennsylvania (the “Property”) 
from Drexel University.  The Property is located in a qualified census tract that meets certain 
income, unemployment and poverty level requirements and qualifies under the New Market Tax 
Credit Program as a qualified active low-income community business (a “QALICB”) as defined by 
Section 45D of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and Section 1.45D-1(d)(4) of the 
Code of Federal Regulations.  The project is funded by a qualified low income community 
investment loan.  

3509 Spring Garden, Limited Partnership 
3509 Spring Garden, Limited Partnership, a Pennsylvania limited partnership, was formed on 
February 25, 2013 to acquire, own, rehabilitate and lease, manage and operate the 3509 Spring 
Garden property (the “Dornsife Center”) in a manner that will qualify such rehabilitation for 
historic rehabilitation tax credits allowable pursuant to Section 47 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended.  The Dornsife Center is also located in a qualified census tract that meets certain 
income, unemployment and poverty level requirements and qualifies under the New Market Tax 
Credit Program as a QALICB.    

3509 Spring Garden, General Partner, Inc. 
3509 Spring Garden, General Partner, Inc., (“3509 GP”) a Pennsylvania corporation, is the sole 
general partner in 3509 Spring Garden, Limited Partnership.  Drexel University owns 10% of the 
outstanding stock of 3509 GP, the remaining 90% is owned by 3509 GP.  The officers of 3509 GP 
are also the officers and senior leadership of Drexel University.   As part of the New Market Tax 
Credit and Historic Tax Credit  transactions, a for-profit single purpose entity was needed to own 
the property and to the QALICB.  The QALICB was established as a limited partnership, with 3509 
GP acting as the general partner and holding a 90% interest.  

3509 Spring Garden, Master Tenant, Limited Partnership 
3509 Spring Garden, Master Tenant, Limited Partnership (“3509 MTLP”) a Pennsylvania limited 
partnership, was formed on August 21, 2013 to lease, manage and operate property owned by 3509 
Spring Garden Limited Partnership, a QALICB as defined by Section 45D of the Internal Revenue 
code of 1986, as amended, and Section 1.45D-1(d) (4) of the Regulations.  3509 MTLP has made an 
equity investment in the QALICB and is also a partner with a 10% interest.  3509 MTLP consists of 
a general partner with 0.01% interest and a limited partner with a 99.99% interest. 3509 MTLP and 
the QALICB have executed a HTC (Historic Tax Credit) Pass-Through Agreement pursuant to which 
the QALICB will elect under Section 50 of the Internal Revenue Code to pass through to the 
Partnership the Federal Tax Credits to which the QALICB is entitled as a result of the historic 
buildings rehabilitation project. 
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3509 Spring Garden, Master Tenant Manager, Inc. 
3509 Spring Garden, Master Tenant Manager, Inc., (”3509 MTM”) a Pennsylvania corporation, is 
the sole general partner in 3509 Spring Garden, Master Tenant, Limited Partnership.  Drexel 
University owns 10% of the outstanding stock of 3509 MTM, the remaining 90% is owned by 3509 
MTM.  The officers of 3509 MTM are also the officers and senior leadership of Drexel 
University.   As part of the New Market Tax Credit and Historic Tax Credit transactions, a separate 
for-profit single purpose entity was established to operate the sublease of the Spring Garden 
property to meet the QALICB requirements.  An additional for-profit subsidiary of the University, 
3509 Spring Garden Master Tenant, Limited Partnership was established to act as the non-member 
manager of the property.  The Master Tenant entity was established as a limited partnership with 
the Corporation acting as the general partner and holding a 0.1% interest. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents represent demand deposits and other investments with an initial 
maturity date not exceeding 90 days.  At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the University had cash balances 
in financial institutions, which exceed federal depository insurance limits.  Management believes 
the credit risks related to these deposits to be minimal.  Cash and cash equivalents are carried at 
cost, which approximates fair value. 

Contributions Receivable 
Contributions and unconditional pledges are recorded at the present value of their expected future 
cash flows.  Unconditional pledges that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at 
their estimated net realizable value.  Conditional pledges are not included as revenue until such 
time as the conditions are substantially met.  Contributions are reported as an increase in the 
appropriate net asset category.   

Beneficial Interests in Trusts 
The University is the beneficiary of the income of certain trusts, but has neither possession nor 
control of the investments.  Beneficial interests in trusts are classified as Level 3.  The trusts are 
valued based on the underlying securities held by the trusts and are primarily composed of equity 
and fixed income securities that have readily determinable values and would, if not for being held by 
third parties, be classified as Level 1.  The primary unobservable inputs used in the fair value 
measurement of the trusts are the present value of expected future cash flows.  Significant 
fluctuation in the securities held in the trusts could result in a material change in fair value.  
Liabilities to beneficiaries are revalued annually based on the current interest rate from IRS Section 
7520 actuarial tables, and are categorized as Level 3. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The University applies fair value measurements to contributions receivable in the year of receipt, 
beneficial interests in trusts,  investments, self-insurance escrow funds, internally held real estate of 
the endowment, funds held by trustees, interest rate swaps, and annuities.  A reasonable estimate of 
the fair value of student loans receivable under government loan programs and refundable federal 
student loans cannot be made because the loans cannot be sold and can only be assigned to the U.S. 
Government or its designees.  These loans are recorded at cost, less an allowance for doubtful 
accounts and the carrying value of the loans receivable from students under Drexel’s loan programs 
approximate fair value.  (Notes 6, 7, 8, and 12 for additional fair value disclosures). 
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Patient Care Activities
Faculty physicians participate in several physician practice plans that are managed by the 
University.  Revenue and expenses related to these practice plans are recorded by the University as 
patient care activities.  Patient care activities include patient service revenue and other physician 
service activities. 

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts due from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered.  The University provides care to patients under 
various reimbursement arrangements, including Medicare and Medicaid.  These arrangements 
provide payment for covered services at agreed-upon rates under certain fee schedules and various 
discounts.  Provisions have been made in the consolidated financial statements to estimate 
contractual adjustments, representing the difference between the customary charges for services 
rendered and agreed upon rates. 

Contributions
All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by 
the donor.  Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for 
specific purposes are reported as temporarily or permanently restricted.  Contributions having
restrictions that are general purpose in nature are released in the year of the donation. 

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value as of the date of the donation.  If the 
donor restricts how long the asset must be used or how the asset is used, the contributions are 
recorded as restricted.  In the absence of stipulations, these contributions are recorded as 
unrestricted.

Non-operating Activities 
Non-operating activities include permanently restricted contributions, realized and unrealized 
(losses) / gains on investments net of payouts under the endowment spending policies, loss on the 
disposals of equipment, post-retirement benefit adjustment, severances, settlement of claims 
related to Allegheny Health, Education, and Research Foundation, costs related to the merger of 
PHEC into Drexel, and costs related to the dissolution of DeL and the formation of DUO.  Non-
operating activities are detailed as follows: 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Post-retirement and pension adjustment 5,820$    2,003$      
Restructuring costs 5,430 1,165
Merger-related expense 7 42 400
Change to endowment - 7 ,000
Other miscellaneous expense 591 968

Other non-operating expense 12,583$    11 ,536$      
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Income Taxes 
The University has been granted tax-exempt status as a nonprofit organization under 
Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, accordingly, files Federal Tax Form 990 
(Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax) annually.  No provision for income taxes is 
required in the University financial statements.  However, DeL, a for-profit subsidiary of the 
University, does record a provision for income taxes which is immaterial to the University’s 
consolidated financial statements.  The University files U.S. Federal, state and local information 
returns. The statute of limitations on the University’s U.S. Federal information returns remains 
open for three years following the year they are filed. 

The University and its affiliates incur activities that are subject to unrelated business income taxes 
for which appropriate income tax returns are filed (Note 16). 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards 
Codification (“ASC”) 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,  which requires that a 
tax position be recognized or derecognized based on a “more likely than not” threshold.  The 
University does not believe there are any uncertain tax positions. 

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 
The University entered into a variable-to-fixed swap agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. that 
converts the Series B of 2005 bonds to a fixed interest rate of 3.414% through the maturity of the 
bonds.  The agreement resulted in losses of $247,000 in 2015 and $71,000 in 2014.  The fair value 
of the interest rate swap agreement was a liability of $4,567,000 and $4,321,000, respectively, at 
June 30, 2015 and 2014. 

The swap agreement is used by the University to reduce exposure to the volatility in variable 
interest rates on long-term debt (Note 10).  There were no other swap agreements in effect as of 
June 30, 2015 or 2014.  The fair value of the swap agreements is reported as accrued expenses in 
the consolidated statements of financial position.  The change in the estimated fair value of 
terminating the interest rate swap agreement is included in realized and unrealized net (loss) / gain 
on investments in the non-operating section of the consolidated statements of activities. 
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2. Revision of 2014 Financial Statements

The University has revised its prior period financial statements to correct errors related to the
classification of the New Market Tax Credit Program loan transactions.  The nature of the error
relates to the classification of the fund proceeds and the gross presentation of the loan investments
and loan borrowings.  Management does not believe the impact on the prior year is material.
However, management has chosen to revise the previously issued financial statements to correct
this error.  The following table sets forth the affected line items in the statement of financial position
and statement of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2014.

3. Reclassification of Prior Year Presentation

Certain prior year balances  have been reclassified to conform with June 30, 2015 presentation.
These reclassifications had no impact on the change in net assets.

Statement of Financial Position
As of June 30, 2014

As originally 
presented Correction As revised

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 106,992$            (18,851)$              88,141$                
Funds held by trustees 1,983 18,851         20,834
Other assets 20,184                13,814         33,998
Liabilities
Bonds and notes payable 454,591              13,814         468,405

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year ended June 30, 2014

As originally 
presented Correction As revised

Cash flow from investing activities
Investment in New Market Tax Credit entities -$                    (13,814)$             (13,814)$             
Change in restricted cash - (3,013)         (3,013)
Change in funds held by trustees 28,521                689             29,210

Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long-term debt (1,045) (5,726)         (6,771)

Supplemental information
Issuance of long-term debt for restricted purpose - 19,540        19,540

Cash at Beginning of Year 87,504                (4,004)        83,500
Cash at End of Year 114,009              (25,868)      88,141
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4. Net Assets

Net assets included the following:

5. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reported at their net realizable value.  Accounts are written off against the
allowance for doubtful accounts when they are determined to be uncollectible based upon
management’s assessment of the individual accounts.  The allowance for doubtful accounts is
estimated based on the University’s historical losses and periodic review of the accounts.

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Unrestricted
Undesignated (282,639)$    (253,288)$    
Designated for colleges, departments

and student loans 128,958 104,213
Physical plant 535,7 52 47 7 ,47 1
Quasi-endowment funds 251,551 248,955
Reclassification for endowments with deficiencies (2,445) (1 ,606)

Total unrestricted 631,17 7 57 5,7 45

T em porarily  restricted
Funds for instruction, scholarships

and capital expenditures 148,088 142,496
Endowment realized and unrealized gain 102,052 113,7 67
Reclassification for endowments with deficiencies 1 ,7 33 1,606
Life income and term endowment funds 3,559 3,334

Total temporarily  restricted 255,432 261,203

Perm anently  restricted
Endowment principal 27 7 ,859 264,115
Reclassification for endowments with deficiencies 7 12 -
Beneficial interests in trusts 38,081 39,023
Student loans and others 7 ,368 7 ,304

Total permanently  restricted 324,020 310,442

Total net assets 1 ,210,629$  1 ,147 ,390$
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Accounts receivable, net of allowances, as of June 30, were as follows: 

Student loans are disbursed based on financial need and include loans granted by the University 
from institutional resources and under Federal government loan programs.  Students have a grace 
period until repayment is required based upon the earlier of graduation or no longer maintaining 
full-time status.  The grace period varies depending on the type of loan.  Loans accrue interest after 
the grace period and are repaid directly to the University.  Student loans are uncollateralized and 
carry default risk. 

The availability of funds for loans under Federal government revolving loan programs is dependent 
on reimbursements to the pool from repayments of outstanding loans.  Funds advanced by the 
federal government of $28,513,000 and $28,185,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, are 
ultimately refundable to the government and are classified as liabilities in the statements of 
financial position.  Outstanding loans cancelled under the program result in a reduction of the 
funds available to loan and a decrease in the liability to the government. 

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Tuition 96,832$      68,816$       
Grants, contracts, and other 7 3,67 4 62,7 09
Patient, net of contractual allowance 15,155 14,342
Tenet Healthcare Corporation 1,852 1,7 68

187 ,513 147 ,635

Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Tuition (22,915) (18,096)
Grants, contracts, and other (2,213) (1 ,7 69)
Patient (6,205) (6,299)
Tenet Healthcare Corporation - (22)

Accounts receiv able, net 156,180$      121 ,449$       
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At June 30, 2015 and 2014, student loans consisted of the following: 

Allowances for doubtful accounts are established based on prior collection experience and current 
economic factors which, in management’s judgment, could influence the ability of loan recipients to 
repay the amounts according to the terms of the loan.  Student loans are considered past due when 
payment is not received within 30 days of the due date, and interest continues to accrue until the 
loan is paid in full or written off.  When student loans receivable are deemed uncollectible, an 
allowance for doubtful accounts is established. 

6. Contributions Receivable

Unconditional pledges are reported as contributions receivable and revenue in the appropriate net
asset category.  Contributions receivable with a payment more than a year from the pledge date are
recorded net of a discount which averaged 1.5%  at June 30, 2015 and 2014.  The University
considers these discount rates to be a Level 3 input in the context of ASC 820-10 (Note 8).

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Federal government loan programs
Perkins loan program 22,988$   23,864$         
Health professions student loans and loans for
 disadv antaged students 4,039 4,540
Nursing student loans 28 36

Federal government loan programs 27 ,055 28,440

Institutional loan programs 11,101 8,939

38,156 37 ,37 9

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Balances at beginning of y ear (2,27 3) (3,07 4)
Change in prov ision for doubtful accounts (401) 801

Balances at end of y ear (2,67 4) (2,27 3)

Student loans receivable, net 35,482$         35,106$         
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Net contributions receivable at June 30 were as follows: 

Outstanding conditional promises to give amounted to $30,852,000 and $37,055,000 and at 
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which are dependent upon the fulfillment of certain 
conditions and, therefore, not included in the consolidated financial statements. 

The following table summarizes the change in net contributions receivable as of June 30: 

7. Investments and Investment Return

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the fair value of investments included the following:

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Amounts due in
Less than one y ear 30,412$      16,197$     
One to five y ears 35,400 28,07 0
Greater than five y ears 45,522 42,468

Gross contributions receivable 111 ,334 86,7 35

Less:
Allowance for uncollectibles (648) (7 7 7 )
Discounts to present value (21,7 98) (13,624)

Total contributions receivable, net 88,888$      7 2,334$        

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Net contributions receiv able at beginning of year 7 2,334$        82,200$        

New pledges 36,213 21,211
Collections and adjustments (11 ,611) (31 ,517 )
Decrease in allowance for uncollectibles 17 1 47 1
Increase in present value discounts (8,219) (31)

Net contributions receiv able at end of y ear 88,888$       7 2,334$        

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Equity  securities 294,955$      299,383$      
Fixed income securities and bond funds 61,062 62,629
Alternativ e investments 83,819 88,002
Real estate and real assets funds 57 ,311 59,490
Directly -held real estate 122,7 55 119,345
Money  market funds 17 ,994 6,7 41

Total endowment investments 637 ,896 635,590

Self-insurance escrow funds (Note 15) 53,7 7 6 12,638
Balanced index fund (Notes 15) - 28,441

Total investments 691,67 2$      67 6,669$      

Fair value
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The following summarizes the University’s total investment return and its classification in the 
financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014: 

8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements is based on observable and unobservable
inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the measurement date.  It prioritizes the inputs to
the valuation techniques used to measure fair value by giving the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the
lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants (“exit price”) at the measurement date.

The University maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value.  When available, fair value is based on actively-quoted market
prices.  In the absence of actively-quoted market prices, price information from external sources,
including broker quotes and industry publications, is used.  If pricing information from external
sources is not available, or if observable pricing is not indicative of fair value, judgment is required
to develop the estimates of fair value.  In those cases, prices are estimated based on available
historical financial data or comparable investment vehicles that reflect widely accepted market
valuation practices.

T em porarily Perm anently
(in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Restricted T otal

Dividends and interest 91$                  3,227$                -$  3,318$            
Net realized and unrealized gain (4,414) 3,249 (3,116) (4,281)

Return on inv estments (4,323) 6,47 6 (3,116) (963)

Interest income 888 2,149 3,037

Total return on investments (3,435) 8,625 (3,116) 2,07 4

Inv estment return designated
 for current operations (97 9) (19,989) (100) (21 ,068)

Inv estment return net of amounts designated for 
 current operations (4,414)$        (11 ,364)$          (3,216)$              (18,994)$     

2015

T em porarily  Perm anently  
(in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Restricted T otal

Dividends and interest 5,7 33$           1 ,161$                 -$  6,894$           
Net realized and unrealized gain 26,937 53,869 6,038 86,844

Return on inv estments 32,67 0 55,030 6,038 93,7 38

Interest income 3,7 00 1,451 5,151

Total return on investments 36,37 0 56,481 6,038 98,889

Inv estment return designated
 for current operations (9,434) (21 ,625) (155) (31,214)

Inv estment return net of amounts designated for 
 current operations 26,936$       34,856$           5,883$                67 ,67 5$      

2014
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In some cases, the inputs used to measure fair value might fall in different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy.  In those cases, the lowest level input that is significant to a fair value measurement in its 
entirety determines the applicable level in the fair value hierarchy.  Assessing the significance of a 
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and consideration 
of factors specific to the asset.  Fair value measurements are categorized as Level 3 when a 
significant number of price or other inputs, considered to be unobservable, are used in their 
valuations.  The fair value hierarchy and inputs to valuation techniques are as follows: 

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities at the 
measurement date.  Instruments categorized in Level 1 primarily consist of a broadly-
traded range of equity and debt securities. 

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or 
indirectly observable for the asset or liability, including quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities in active markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are 
observable for the asset or liability and inputs that are derived from observable market 
data by correlation or other means.  Instruments categorized in Level 2 primarily 
include non-exchange traded fixed income securities, certain bond investments, 
mutual funds, structured products, and interest rate swaps. 

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, including situations where there is little, 
if any, market activity for the asset or liability.  Instruments categorized in Level 3 
consist of partnership investments in hedge funds, alternative and private equities, 
contributions receivable and annuities, directly held real estate, and real estate fund 
investments. 

As a practical expedient, the University estimates the fair value of an investment in an investment 
company fund at the measurement date using the reported net asset value (NAV).  The fair values 
of alternative investments represent the University’s ownership interest in the net asset value 
(NAV) of the respective fund.  Investments held by the funds consist of marketable securities, as 
well as, securities that do not have readily determinable fair values.  The fair values of the securities 
held that do not have readily determinable fair values are based on historical cost, appraisals, or 
other estimates that require varying degrees of judgment.  If no public market exists for the 
investment securities, the fair value is determined by taking into consideration, among other 
things, the cost of the securities, prices of recent significant placements of securities of the same 
issue, and subsequent developments concerning the companies to which the securities relate. 

The University assesses the valuation hierarchy for each asset or liability measured on an annual 
basis.  From time to time, assets or liabilities will be transferred within hierarchy levels as a result 
of changes in valuation methodologies.  The University’s policy is to recognize such transfers at the 
end of the reporting period. 
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As of June 30, 2015, the assets measured at fair value for each hierarchy level were as follows: 

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 T otal

Assets
Funds held by  trustees 5,845$           -$            -$            5,845$           
Beneficial interests in trusts 53,507 53,507

Investm ents
Equity  securities 261,243 33,7 12 - 294,955
Fixed income securities and bond funds 11 ,520 49,542 - 61,062
Alternativ e inv estments - - 83,819 83,819
Real estate and real assets funds 7 49 14,395 42,167 57 ,311
Directly -held real estate - - 122,7 55 122,7 55
Money  market funds 17 ,994 - - 17 ,994

Investments held in endowment 291,506 97 ,649 248,7 41 637 ,896

Self-insurance escrow funds (Note 15) 53,7 7 6 - - 53,7 7 6

Total investments 345,282 97 ,649 248,7 41 691,67 2

Total assets at fair value 351,127$      97 ,649$        302,248$      7 51 ,024$      

Liabilities

Interest rate swaps (Note 1) -$            4,567$           -$            4,567$           
Annuities - - 6,440 6,440

Total liabilities at fair value -$            4,567$           6,440$           11 ,007$        

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 T otal

Assets
Funds held by  trustees 20,834$        -$            -$            20,834$        
Beneficial interests in trusts - - 56,438 56,438
Investm ents
Equity  securities 268,461 30,922 - 299,383
Fixed income securities and bond funds 11 ,603 51,026 - 62,629
Alternativ e inv estments - 88,002 88,002
Real estate and real assets funds 1 ,014 16,269 42,207 59,490
Directly -held real estate - - 119,345 119,345
Money  market funds 6,7 41 - - 6,7 41

Investments held in endowment 287 ,819 98,217 249,554 635,590
Self-insurance escrow funds (Note 15) 12,638 - - 12,638
Balanced index  fund (Note 15) 28,441 - - 28,441

Total investments 328,898 98,217 249,554 67 6,669
Total assets at fair value 349,7 32$     98,217$        305,992$    7 53,941$     

Liabilities
Interest rate swaps (Note 1) -$            4,321$            -$            4,321$            
Annuities - - 6,430 6,430

Total liabilities at fair value -$           4,321$          6,430$           10,7 51$        

2015

2014
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Detail related to the fair value of investments that have been estimated using a net asset value 
equivalent (e.g. ownership interest in partners’ capital to which a proportionate share of net assets 
is attributable) were as follows: 

a. This category invests in hedge funds that pursue multiple strategies to diversify risks and
reduce volatility.  As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, the composite portfolio includes
approximately 49% and 54% in distressed investments with a liquidation period of 1 to 3
years, 32% and 24% arbitrage opportunities, 6% and 5% in cash, 11% and 8% long/short
equity and 2% and 8% in private equity investments which can never be redeemed with the
funds.  Instead, distributions are received through the liquidation of the underlying assets in
the portfolio.  It is estimated that the underlying assets would be liquidated over the next 1 to
3 years.  The fair values of the investments have been estimated using the reported net asset
value per share of the hedge fund.

b. This category includes investments in hedge funds that invest in debt of companies in or
facing bankruptcy.  The investment managers seek to liquidate these investments in 1 to 3
years.  The fair value has been estimated using the reported net asset value per share of the
hedge fund.

c. This category includes investment in hedge funds that invest in U.S. mortgage backed
securities.  The fair values of the investments have been estimated using the reported net
asset value per share of the hedge fund.

d. This category includes investments in private equity funds that invest in the secondary
market.  The private equity secondary market refers to the buying and selling of pre-existing
investor commitments to private equity and other alternative investment funds.  These
investments can never be redeemed with the funds.  Instead, distributions are received
through the liquidation of the underlying assets of the fund.  As of June 30, 2015, it is
estimated that the underlying assets of the fund would be liquidated over the following
periods: 2% in 1 to 4 years; 64% in 5 to 7 years; and 34% in 8 to 10 years. At June 30, 2014,
the liquidation periods were expected to be: 4% in 1 to 4 years; 79% in 5 to 7 years; and 17% in
8 to 10 years.  The fair value has been estimated using the reported net asset value per share
of the private equity fund.

Redem ption Redem ption
Unfunded Frequency Notice Period

(in thousands) Fair Value Com m itm ents (If Currently  Eligible) (If Applicable)

Multi-Strategy  Hedge Funds (a) 15,418$         -$            Annual/Quarterly 45–60/65 days
Distressed Debt Hedge Funds (b) 6,036 - Annual/Quarterly 90 days
Fixed Income and Related Hedge Funds (c) 21,285 - Monthly /Quarterly 10-60/65 days
Priv ate Capital Funds-Secondaries (d) 11 ,7 16 5,87 7
Priv ate Capital Funds-Venture Capital (e) 3,418 2,380
Priv ate Capital Funds - Distrissed Assets (f) 3,254 1,002
Priv ate Capital Funds-Buy-out (g) 3,7 24 5,006
Real Asset Funds (h) 16,556 6,250
Real Estate Funds (i) 13,524 7 ,967
Long/Short Equity  Hedge Funds (j) 3,028 - Annual/Quarterly 60/45 days
Priv ate Capital Funds-Hedge Fund Seeder (k) 6,97 8 7 33
Priv ate Capital Funds-Mezzanine Debt (l) 8,963 2,452

113,900$      31 ,667$           

2015
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e. This category includes investments in private equity funds that invest primarily in technology
and healthcare companies in the U.S.  These investments can never be redeemed with the
funds.  Instead, distributions are received through the liquidation of the underlying assets of
the fund.  As of June 30, 2015, it is estimated that the underlying assets of the fund would be
liquidated over the following periods: 74% in 1 to 4 years; and 26% in 5 to 7 years (with the
inclusion of a new investment in fiscal year 2015).  At June 30, 2014, the liquidation period
was expected to be 1 to 2 years.  The fair value has been estimated using the reported net asset
value per share of the private equity fund.

f. This category includes investments in private equity funds that invest in the distressed asset
and middle market corporate distressed markets.  These investments can never be redeemed
with the funds.  Instead, distributions are received through the liquidation of the underlying
assets of the fund.  As of June 30, 2015, it is estimated that the underlying assets of the fund
would be liquidated over 5 to 7 years, versus 6 to 9 years at June 30, 2014.  The fair value has
been estimated using the reported net asset value per share of the private equity fund.

g. This category includes investments in private equity funds that invest in buy-outs.  A buy-out
is a purchase of a company or a controlling interest of a corporation’s shares or product line or
some business.  These investments are primarily in U.S. technology and healthcare companies
with one investment dedicated to Asian companies.  These investments can never be redeemed
with the funds.  Instead, distributions are received through the liquidation of the underlying
assets of the fund.  As of June 30, 2015, it is estimated that the underlying assets of the fund
would be liquidated over the following periods: 63% over 1 to 4 years; and 37% over 8 to 10
years (with the inclusion of new investments in FY2015).  As of June 30, 2014, it was
estimated that the underlying assets of the fund would be liquidated over 1 to 2 years.  The fair
value has been estimated using the reported net asset value per share of the private equity
fund.

h. This category includes investments in private equity funds that invest primarily in real assets
(e.g. investments with intrinsic value, such as real estate or commodities).  These investments
can never be redeemed with the funds.  Instead, distributions are received through the
liquidation of the underlying assets of the fund.  As of June 30, 2015, it is estimated that the
underlying assets of the fund would be liquidated over the following periods: 25% in 1 to 4
years; 49% in 5 to 7 years; and 26% in 8 to 10 years. At June 30, 2014, the liquidation periods
were expected to be: 20% in 1 to 4 years; 46% in 5 to 7 years; and 34% in 8 to 10 years.  The
fair value has been estimated using the reported net asset value per share of the real asset
fund.

i. This category includes investments in private equity funds that invest in U.S. commercial real
estate.  These investments can never be redeemed.  Instead, distributions are received
through the liquidation of the underlying assets of the fund.  At June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, it is estimated that the fund’s underlying assets would be liquidated over the
following time frames: 73% and 48% in 1 to 4 years, 26% and 52% in 5 to 7 years, and 1% to
0% in 8 to 10 years (with the inclusion of a new investment in FY2015).  The fair value has
been estimated using the reported net asset value per share of the real estate fund.

j. This category includes investments in hedge funds that invest primarily in U.S. common
stocks with both long and short strategies.  Management of the hedge funds has the ability to
shift investments from value to growth strategies, from small to large capitalization stocks
and from a net long position to a net short position.  The fair values of the investments have
been estimated using the reported net asset value per share of the hedge fund.
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k. This category includes investments in private equity funds that invest in newly-started hedge
funds that pursue multiple strategies.  The fund provides start-up funding to hedge funds of
various strategies with the potential to share in the appreciation of the investment, as well as
to share in the management fees gathered by the underlying start-up hedge funds.  As of
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, the fund’s underlying investments were 48% and 52%
long/short global equity, 7% and 8% in macro and commodity trading, 22% and  20% in
diversified credit, 7% and 9% in arbitrage opportunities, and 16% and 11% in global event-
driven opportunities.  These investments can never be redeemed with the funds.  Instead,
distributions are received through the liquidation of the underlying assets of the fund.  It is
estimated that the underlying assets would be liquidated in 2 to 6 years at June 30, 2015 and 2
to 7 years at June 30, 2014.  The fair value has been estimated using the reported net asset
value per share of the private equity fund.

l. This category includes investments in private equity funds that provide mezzanine debt
financing to middle market firms.  Mezzanine debt differs from mortgage debt in that the
mezzanine debt is backed by equity interests in the borrowing firm, versus mortgage financing
which is backed by the asset.  These investments can never be redeemed with the funds.
Instead, distributions are received through the liquidation of the underlying assets of the fund.
It is estimated that the underlying assets of the fund would be liquidated in 5 to 7 years at June
30, 2015 and 3 to 8 years at June 30, 2014.  The fair value has been estimated using the
reported net asset value per share of the private equity fund.

Investment in real estate and real estate funds reflect the fair value of the specific assets or the 
underlying ventures’ net assets.  The valuations of real estate investments are updated periodically 
through valuation estimates prepared by an independent valuation expert or by estimates prepared 
by the underlying real estate holding entity’s General Partner for real estate funds. 

The University owns partnership interests in a real estate portfolio classified real estate and real 
estate funds as a Level 3 asset.  The interests have a  fair market value of $12,086,000, net of 
$15,124,000 in outstanding debt.  The valuation of these  investment properties is prepared 
annually by an independent appraiser. 

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements of the University’s 
investments in real estate are the selection of certain investment rates (discount rate, terminal 
capitalization rate, and overall capitalization rate).  Significant increases (decreases) in any of those 
inputs in isolation would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement, 
respectively.
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The change in the University’s Level 3 assets and liabilities as of June 30 included the following: 

9. Endowment Funds

The University has an investment policy for endowment assets designed to maximize the total
return within an acceptable level of risk consistent with long-term preservation of the real value of
the funds.  The goal is to manage the portfolio for risk as well as total return, consistent with
fiduciary standards of the prudent investor rule.

To satisfy its rate-of-return objectives, the University relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and
current yield (interest and dividends).  Endowment assets are invested in several asset classes and
subclasses thereof to moderate the volatility of the returns for the entire portfolio.

For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the University had an endowment spending rule that
limited the spending of endowment resources to 4.75% of the average fair value of the pooled
endowment portfolio for the prior seven fiscal years.

The University’s endowment funds include both donor-restricted funds and funds designated by
the Board of Trustees to function as endowments (quasi endowments).  Net assets associated with
endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.  The earnings on these funds are utilized by the University in a manner consistent with
specific donor restrictions on the original contributions.

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Assets at beginning of y ear 305,992$      286,511$       

Net unrealized gain 7 88 7 ,221
Net realized gain 4,07 6 3,005
Purchases 57 ,135 24,281
Sales (65,7 43) (18,418)
Funds transferred from Level 1 - 3,392

Assets at end of y ear 302,248$      305,992$      

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Annuities at beginning of y ear 6,430$       6,040$       

Actuarial change on annuity  liabilities 7 04 653
Pay ments on annuity  liabilities (694) (263)

Annuities at end of y ear 6,440$       6,430$   
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Interpretation of Relevant Law 
The Board of Trustees has interpreted Pennsylvania Act 141 (“PA Act 141”) as requiring the 
preservation of the fair value of the original gift as specified in the individual trust instruments.  As 
a result of this interpretation, the University classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the 
original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent 
gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) earnings of the endowment made in accordance with 
the direction of the applicable donor designation.  The remaining portion of the donor-restricted 
endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as 
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the 
organization in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by PA Act 141. 

Endowment composition by type of fund as of June 30 was as follows: 

T em porarily Perm anently
(in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Restricted T otal

Donor-restricted endowment funds 23,281$         131 ,093$      27 7 ,308$     431,682$      
Board-designated endowment funds 210,27 6      210,27 6   

Total assets 233,557$      131 ,093$      27 7 ,308$     641,958$      

T em porarily Perm anently
(in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Restricted T otal

Donor-restricted endowment funds 23,584$         143,460$      263,405$      430,449$      
Board-designated endowment funds 208,190      208,190   

Total assets 231 ,7 7 4$      143,460$      263,405$      638,639$      

2015

2014
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Changes in the University’s endowment assets for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were as 
follows:

Endowment Funds with Deficiencies 
From time to time, the fair value of some assets associated with individual donor-restricted 
endowment funds may fall below the level that donors require to be retained as a perpetual fund.  
The aggregate amount of funds with deficiencies is reported in unrestricted net assets in the 
consolidated statement of activities.  Subsequent investment gains will be used to restore the 
balance to the fair market value of the original amount of the gift.  Subsequent gains above that 
amount will be recorded as temporarily restricted net assets.  Aggregate deficiencies were 
$2,445,000 and $1,606,000 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

10. Land, Buildings and Equipment

Land, buildings and equipment are stated at cost or, if acquired by gift, at the appraised value on
the date of acquisition.    Amortization and depreciation are computed on a straight-line basis over
the lesser of the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 30 years for equipment and
software and 5 to 50 years for buildings and improvements or the shorter of the term of the lease.

T em porarily Perm anently
(in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Restricted T otal

Endowm ent at beginning of y ear 231,7 7 4$      143,460$      263,405$      638,639$      

Investment return
Inv estment income, net of fees 7 ,552 4,47 2 612 12,636
Net realized gain 5,517 9,408 1,47 1 16,396
Net unrealized loss (1 ,866) (10,802) (2,056) (14,7 24)
Reclassification for funds with deficiencies (839) 564 27 5 -

 Total endowment return 10,364 3,642 302 14,308

Contributions - (962) 15,682 14,7 20
Use of endowment assets

Annual transfer for operations (8,592) (14,67 0) (2,208) (25,47 0)
Other transfers 11 (37 7 ) 127 (239)

 Total uses (8,581) (15,047 ) (2,081) (25,7 09)

Endowm ent at end of y ear 233,557$      131 ,093$      27 7 ,308$     641,958$      

T em porarily Perm anently
(in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Restricted T otal

Endowm ent at beginning of y ear 213,7 7 1$      111 ,495$       245,290$      57 0,556$     

Investment return
Inv estment income, net of fees 2,815 5,103 190 8,108
Net realized gain 3,540 6,821 7 31 11 ,092
Net unrealized gain 10,7 84 50,957 6,134 67 ,87 5
Reclassification for funds with deficiencies 4,847 (4,847 ) - -

 Total endowment return 21,986 58,034 7 ,055 87 ,07 5

Contributions 7 97 (10,245) 13,7 01 4,253
Use of endowment assets

Annual transfer for operations (9,649) (13,7 39) (2,645) (26,033)
Other transfers 4,869 (2,085) 4 2,7 88

 Total uses (4,7 80) (15,824) (2,641) (23,245)

Endowm ent at end of y ear 231,7 7 4$      143,460$      263,405$      638,639$      

2015

2014
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The University determined that there were legal obligations to retire certain facilities and 
equipment.  The total asset retirement cost and obligation was $3,122,000 and $5,487,000 at 
June 30, 2015 and $3,149,000 and $5,593,000 at June 30, 2014, respectively, and is included in 
buildings and improvements and accrued expenses, respectively, on the consolidated statements of 
financial position.  In 2015 and 2014, depreciation and accretion expense amounted to $43,000 
and $61,000, respectively, and $132,000 and $134,000, respectively. 

The University maintains ownership of a parcel of property located at 1200 Chestnut Street, 
Philadelphia, PA.  The use of the building is restricted for use by the Thomas R. Kline School of 
Law’s Trial Advocacy Program.  

Land, buildings and equipment at June 30 included the following: 

11. Leases

Future minimum payments by year and in the aggregate under non-cancelable operating leases,
with initial or remaining terms of one year or more, are as follows:

Total rent expense for operating leases amounted to $21,182,000 and $22,705,000 for the years 
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

The University leases educational, research, and medical office space from Tenet under an 
operating lease expiring June 30, 2022.  The future minimum payments are included in the table 
above.  Total rent expense for the Tenet operating lease was $7,991,000 for each of the years ended 
June 30, 2015 and 2014. 

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Works of art 10,918$     10,867$    
Land and improvements 132,808 119,126
Buildings and improvements 914,955 895,438
Equipment, software and library  books 208,328 206,041
Construction in progress 63,869 48,662

1,330,87 8 1 ,280,134

Less:  Accumulated depreciation (428,549) (395,327 )

Total land, buildings and equipment 902,329$      884,807$     

(in thousands)

2016 16,966$         
2017 15,601
2018 14,842
2019 14,189
2020 13,021
Thereafter 31,296

Total minimum lease pay ments 105,915$      
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The University entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the 
“Commonwealth”) on August 1, 2002 to lease space in the Armory Building (the “Armory”) at no 
cost for an initial period of fifty years during which time the University agreed to complete certain 
improvements to the Armory at the University’s expense.  Thereafter, the lease may be renewed for 
two, additional twenty-year periods at fair value.  In the event the Commonwealth should desire to 
sell the property during the initial or additional lease periods, the University has the option to 
purchase the Armory for $1,700,000, adjusted for inflation.  There were $62,000 and $0, 
respectively, for improvements in fiscal years 2015 or 2014.  Estimated costs for the required 
improvements amounted to $2,804,000 and $2,867,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  
These costs have been capitalized and a comparable capital lease liability recorded. 

In January 2012, the University and American Campus Communities (ACC) entered into a triple 
net ground lease structure governing the conveyance of the land area located on Chestnut Street 
with a base lease term of forty (40) years and three (3) ten (10) year option periods. In 
consideration for the right to develop, own, and operate the proposed project on the University’s 
campus, ACC will pay Drexel University an annual ground rent of $254,000 which is recorded as 
rental income by the University.  The University bears no cost of the ACC Chestnut Street 
Development project.  At the end of the lease (40-70 years), the asset reverts to the University.   

On August 30, 2013, the University entered into a Land Purchase Agreement with the affiliates of 
ACC, whereby ACC contributed land it owned contiguous to Drexel’s campus (i.e.3175 JFK Blvd) to 
Drexel as a gift without any purchase consideration, but retained the ownership of University 
Crossings, an existing 17 story building, and improvements erected on this land.  As a condition of 
the Land Purchase Agreement, Drexel and ACC also entered into a Ground Lease Agreement 
whereby Drexel leased the land back to ACC for no consideration other than reimbursement of 
property tax that Drexel would be required to pay as the land owner.  The term of the lease is 40 
years with an option to renew for three consecutive 10 year terms.  Payments to the University from 
ACC are recorded as a cost recovery of property taxes.  Within five years from the effective date, 
ACC is required to complete no less than $22,327,000 in capital improvements. 

The University entered into a sublease agreement with an affiliate of ACC on August 30, 2013 to 
lease space in the 3400 Lancaster Avenue property to be utilized as a student dining facility.  The 
sublease calls for annual rent payments of $741,395 for the first 30 years of the sublease.  The 
sublease is in all respects subject to and subordinate to the ground lease between the University 
and ACC established on August 30, 2013, to develop the 3400 Lancaster Avenue property.   The 
term of the sublease follows the term of the ground lease, commencing  September 2015.  The 
initial term is 40 years with three 10 year renewal options.  At the expiration or sooner termination 
of the ground lease, title shall vest in the University and belong exclusively to the University 
without any interest on the part of ACC.  The sublease provides a rent prepayment option, which 
allows the full 30 years of rent for the dining facility to be satisfied with an upfront payment of 
$9,200,000.  The University plans to execute the option in December 2015.  The amount will be 
capitalized and amortized over the term of the lease. 

In June 2014, the University entered into ground lease agreements with Wexford 3750 Lancaster 
Avenue, LLC , Wexford 115 North 38th Street, LLC, Wexford 225 North 38th Streeet, LLC, and 
Wexford 3701 Filbert Street, LLC (all to be referred to as “Wexford”) for property located at 3601 
Filbert Street.  Wexford has prepaid the University $17,616,000, the full amount of the lease.  The 
prepayment has been been recorded as deferred rental income and will be amortized over the 99 
year term of the lease.  In addition, Drexel is obligated to fund an amount not to exceed 
$13,200,000 for the development of the property.   
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On December 17, 2014, the University entered into a ground lease agreement with Study 
Philadelphia Holding LLC (“SPHLLC”) for University property located at 3301 Chestnut Street.  
The base term of the lease is 50 years with two (2) ten (10) year renewal options.  In consideration 
for the right to develop, own, and operate the property, SPHLLC will pay the University annual 
ground rent ranging from $150,000 to $167,000 over the fifty year term of the lease.  The 
commencement date is twenty-four months from the date of the lease or the opening date 
whichever is earlier.  Upon the expiration of the lease, the leased premises will become the property 
of the University.   

12. Bonds and Notes Payable

(in thousands) Project Maturity Interest Rate 2015 2014

Description
Dormitory  Bonds of 1 965 Kelly  Hall 201 4-201 5 3.00-3.50% -$                  1 1 0$            

Dormitory  Bonds of 1 969 Calhoun Hall 201 4-201 9 3 .00% 290 360

Philadelphia Industrial Abbotts demolition/ 201 4-201 5 3 .00% - 86
 Dev elopm ent Corp.  parking lot

Pennsy lv ania Higher Educational
 Facilities Authority  Rev enue Bonds Capital improv ements

Second Series of 2000  and equipment 201 9-2026 Variable 22,500 22,500
Series B of 2002 Matheson Hall

 im prov ements, new
 research center, other
 im prov ements 201 5-2032 Variable 41 ,825 42,1 40

Series A of 2005 Capital improv ements
 and equipment 201 4-2034 3.20-5.00% 26,1 62 27 ,1 26

Series B of 2005 Adv ance refunding 201 9-2030 Variable 29,625 29,625
Series A of 2007 New laboratory 2030-2037 4.50-5.00% 95,382 95,521
Series B of 2007 Dormitory  & Wellness

 Center; capital 
 im prov ements and
 equipment 201 4-2037 Variable 26,3 45 27 ,025
Refund m ortgage,
 capital improv ements

Series of 2007  and equipment 201 4-2037 3.7 5-5.00% 1 9,903 20,433
Series A of 201 1 Partial cost of buildings 

 for the Colleges of Business
 and Media Arts & Design,  
 Departm ent of Biology ;
 Stratton Hall renov ations;
 refunding 201 4-2041 2.00-5.25% 1 50,7 84 1 55,564

Series of 201 2 Refunding 201 4-2032 1 .00-5.00% 26,3 05 28,3 7 5

1 1 th Street Fam ily  Health Serv ices Inc.
The Reinv estm ent Fund, Inc. New Market Tax Credit Program 2043 1 .297 % 2,7 1 7 2,7 1 7

2043 1 .297 % 6,7 83 6,7 83

3509 Spring Garden, LP
Philadelphia Industrial
 Dev elopment Corp. New Market Tax Credit Program 2044 1 .51 7 % 1 ,964 1 ,964

2044 1 .51 7 % 4,826 4,826
U.S. Bank Corp Comm unity
Dev elopment Entity New Market Tax Credit Program 2044 1 .00% 1 ,045 1 ,045

2044 1 .00% 2,205 2,205

Total bonds and notes pay able 458,661$  468,405$
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The variable rates of interest on the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority Revenue 
Bonds are based on the weekly rate determined by the remarketing or auction agent, not to exceed 
16% per annum.  The total market value of the $438,550,000 bonds was $450,942,000 at June 30, 
2015, based on a comparison to current interest rates.  The bonds are considered to be a Level 2 
liability. 

The Dormitory bonds of 1965 and 1969 are collateralized by first mortgages on the associated 
buildings and first liens on, and pledges of, the net revenues derived from the building operations. 

The 2000, 2002, 2005, 2007, 2011, and 2012 bonds are secured by a security interest in 
unrestricted gross revenues.   

The Philadelphia Industrial Development Corporation loan was secured by a mortgage lien on One 
Drexel Plaza. 

Debt maturities for the fiscal years ending June 30 are as follows: 

The Second Series of 2000 and Series B of 2002, Series B of 2005 and Series B of 2007 bonds have 
remarketing terms and related standby letters of credit which could change the maturity dates to 
the fiscal years 2016, 2018, and 2019, respectively, based on the current expiration dates of the 
letters of credit (see Note 16).  These issues have been included in the above table based on the date 
of the letter of credit.  The University is in compliance with the covenants contained in the various 
loan agreements.

Lines of Credit 
PHEC entered into a term note - line of credit of $3,500,000 for equipment purchases that accrues 
interest based on Libor plus 1.25%.  With the merger at July 1, 2015, the line of credit has been 
assumed by Drexel.  Advances are available through June 30, 2015, with equal payments of 
principal and interest due sixty months thereafter.  The line of credit is secured by a lien and 
security interest in deposits or other sums held by the lender or its affiliates.  There were no 
amounts outstanding at June 30, 2015 and 2014. 

Total unsecured Revolving Credit Facilities (“Facilities”) of $55,000,000 matures on December 31, 
2015, and accrues interest based on Intercontinental Exchange Benchmark Administration “ICE” 
(subject to a floor of 0.75%) for the University.  It can be extended annually based upon the mutual 
agreement of the University and the bank maintaining the Facilities.  At June 30, 2015, the interest 
rate was 0.75% and there were no amounts outstanding. 

Rem arketed
(in thousands) Maturities  Debt T otal Debt

2016 10,438$    1 ,030$      11 ,468$    
2017 11,438 1,07 0 12,508
2018 11 ,913 1 ,115 13,028
2019 8,568 5,130 13,698
2020 10,163 4,005 14,168
Thereafter 285,846 107 ,945 393,7 91

458,661$      
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13. Retirement Plans

Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution Plans
The University maintains contributory retirement plans which provide for the purchase of annuity
contracts and mutual funds for the majority of full-time faculty and certain nonacademic
employees.   The University also participates in a contributory retirement plan which provides
benefits for certain union employees.  The policy is to fund pension costs accrued for these plans.
Total retirement plan expense for all plans was $39,263,000 and $32,976,000 in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

ANS maintains a defined contribution plan that provides for discretionary employee contributions.
The defined contribution plan is a calendar year plan, with declared employer contributions made
at the conclusion of the plan year.

ANS also maintains a defined benefit pension plan.  The assumptions for the pension liabilities, the
accumulated benefit obligation, change in projected benefit obligation, and change in plan assets
are as follows:

* These amounts are recognized in the financial statements including the statement of financial
position in the “Post-retirement and pension benefits” classifications.

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Weighted average assum ptions as of June 30
Discount rate 4.60 %  4.40 %    
Expected return on plan assets 6.50 %  6.50 %    

Accum ulated benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation at June 30 17 ,562$      16,193$      

Change projected in benefit obligation
Net benefit obligation at June 30 16,193$      14,841$      
Service costs 115 125
Interest costs 697 7 25
Actuarial loss 1 ,310 1,191
Gross benefits paid (7 53) (689)

Net benefit obligation at June 30 17 ,562$      16,193$      

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y ear 10,269$     9,338$     

Actual return on plan assets 80 1,054
Employ er contributions 834 566
Gross benefits paid (7 53) (689)

Fair v alue of plan assets at June 30 10,430$       10,269$     

Fair value of plan assets 10,430$       10,269$     
Benefit obligation 17 ,562 16,193

Net amount recognized at June 30* (7 ,132)$      (5,924)$   
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The components of net periodic benefit cost are noted below: 

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the pension plan had a projected benefit obligation and an 
accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets.  Both the projected and accumulated 
benefit obligations were $17,562,000 and $16,193,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  
The fair value of the plan assets was $10,430,000 and $10,269,000 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. The obligations exceeded the fair value of plan assets of the pension plan.   

Information about the expected cash flows for the pension plan is as follows: 

Plan Assets 
The ANS pension plan weighted-average asset allocations at June 30, 2015 and 2014 by asset 
category are as follows: 

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Weighted av erage assum ptions used to
 used to determ ine net periodic benefit cost
Discount rate 4.40 %  5.00 %  
Expected return on plan assets 6.50 %      6.7 5 %   

Com ponents of net periodic benefit cost
Serv ice costs 115$     125$     
Interest costs 697 7 25
Expected return on assets (67 8) (629)
Amortization of actuarial loss 1 ,908 7 66

Net periodic benefit cost 2,042$    987$    

Expected benefit pay m ents
2016 7 68$          
2017 891
2018 967
2019 1,016
2020 1,054
2021-2025 5,637      

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Asset category
Equity  securities 20.5 %    34.3 %   
Fixed income securities 64.6 %    36.3 %   
Hedge fund and alternativ e investments 11 .1 %  11 .1 %  
Cash 3.8 %  18.3 %   

100.0 %   100.0 %   
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The ANS investment policy and strategy is to shift investments to the target allocation to control 
the volatility of investment returns for the portfolio.  As the investment horizon is expected to be 
long-term, the portfolio needs to provide long-term capital growth while also being protected from 
incurring major losses due to the poor performance of one sector of the market and must be 
invested to reduce the overall investment risk and volatility of investment returns. 

The target composition of the plans assets is characterized as a 34%, 37%, 27%, and 2% allocation 
between equity, fixed income investments, alternative investments, and cash. The strategy currently 
utilizes indexed equity funds and fixed income funds, and a number of alternative investment 
vehicles. The alternative investments are allocated among various classes, including but not limited 
to: equities, hedge funds, fixed income, natural resources, and real estate. The strategy allows to 
invest in a diversified manner with a mix of assets that are set not to be highly correlated. The 
expected rate of return on assets was based on the current interest rate environment and historical 
market premiums of equity and other asset classes relative to fixed income rates. 

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the ANS pension plan assets at 
fair value at June 30, 2015 and 2014: 

The following table sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of ANS plan's Level 3 assets for 
the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014: 

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 T otal

Assets at fair value
Cash equiv alents 400$     -$      -$       400$       
Mutual funds 8,27 7 - - 8,27 7
Alternativ e investments - 602 1,151 1,7 53

8,67 7$    602$     1 ,151$     10,430$        

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 T otal

Assets at fair value
Cash equiv alents 1 ,862$     -$      -$       1 ,862$       
Mutual funds 6,691 - - 6,691
Alternativ e investments - 495 1 ,221 1,7 16

8,553$    495$     1 ,221$     10,269$      

2015

2014

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Assets at beginning of y ear 1,221$    2,633$     

Div idends and interest - 29
Net realized gain - 161
Net unrealized gain 3 86
Transfers out (7 3) (1 ,688)

Assets at end of y ear 1 ,151$    1 ,221$    
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14. Other Post-Retirement Benefits

In addition to retirement plan benefits, the University also provides post-retirement benefits to
retirees in the form of group life insurance, major medical insurance and tuition remission.
University employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the age and service
requirements of the plans while working for the University.  The postretirement health care plan is
contributory, and the life insurance plan is noncontributory.

The net periodic post-retirement benefit costs and related funded status as of June 30 are shown
below.  Adjustments to the unfunded status amounted to $3,778,000 and $1,015,000 respectively,
for the years ended 2015 and 2014 and are reflected in the consolidated statements of activities and
included in post-retirement benefits in the consolidated statements of financial position.

The following tables provide information with respect to the other post-retirement plans for the
years ended June 30:

Plans Funded Status 

Included within the 2015 plan amendments is a $6,900,000 adjustment which resulted from plan 
amendments that were enacted in 2014.  

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of y ear 49,7 26$        45,088$        
Serv ice cost 2,666 2,155
Interest cost 2,052 1,993
Plan amendments (7 ,608) -
Actuarial loss 11 ,7 16 2,101
Plan participant contributions 163 159
Actual benefits paid (1 ,7 7 3) (1 ,7 7 0)

Benefit obligation, end of y ear 56,942 49,7 26

Change in plan assets
Fair v alue of plan assets, beginning of y ear - -
Employer contributions 1,610 1,611
Plan participant contributions 163 159
Actual benefits paid (1 ,7 7 3) (1 ,7 7 0)

Fair v alue of plan assets, end of y ear - -

Unfunded status of the plan 56,942$    49,7 26$        

Weighted average assum ptions to determ ine benefit
 obligations and net cost as of June 30
Discount rate 4.10% 4.65%
Ultimate retiree health care cost trend 5.00% 5.00%
Y ear ultimate trend rate is achieved 2025 2025
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For measurement purposes, a 9.4% and a 7.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of 
covered health care benefits for those over 65 and under 65, respectively, was assumed for 2015 
grading down to ultimate rates of 5.0% in the year 2025 and thereafter: 

Net Periodic Benefit Cost 

In 2015 and 2014, the effect of a 1% change in the health care cost trend rate is as follows: 

Contributions: 
Expected contributions for the 2016 fiscal year are $2,238,000. 

(in thousands) 2015 2014

Com ponents of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost 2,666$           2,155$            
Interest cost 2,052 1,993
Amortization of:

Prior serv ice credit (1 ,396) -
Net loss 1 ,7 27 1,086

Net periodic benefit cost 5,049$           5,234$           
Other changes recognized in unrestricted net assets
Net actuarial loss 11 ,7 16$         2,101$            
Prior serv ice credit (7 ,607 )$         
Amortization of:

Prior serv ice cost 1 ,396 -
Net gain (1 ,7 27 ) (1 ,086)

Total recognized in unrestricted net assets 3,7 7 8$           1 ,015$            
Am ounts not y et reflected in net periodic benefit cost
 and included in unrestricted net assets
Prior serv ice credit (6,212)$          -$     
Actuarial loss 28,492 18,502

Amounts in unrestricted net assets, end of year 22,280$        18,502$         

Am ounts in unrestricted net assets expected to be 
 recognized in net periodic benefit cost in fiscal 2016

Prior serv ice credit (1 ,396)$          
Actuarial loss 1 ,7 62$           

(in thousands)

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on net periodic benefit cost $ 61        $ (54)        $ -           $ -             

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 324     (306)     -           -             

2015 2014
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Estimated future benefit payments: 
The following benefit payments (net of retiree contributions), which reflect the effects of the 
Medicare Act and expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid in: 

15. Professional Liability Insurance 

Prior to July 1, 2014, PHEC maintained commercial, occurrence-based insurance coverage for 
professional liability claims that occurred from November 10, 1998 through November 10, 2003.  
Beginning on November 10, 2003, PHEC purchased primary and excess insurance coverage from 
RRRG on a claims-made basis.  The RRRG provided primary coverage of $500,000 for physicians 
and midwives and up to $1,000,000 for other health professions and entity coverage.  

Starting July 1, 2014, Drexel established a Self-Insurance Trust (“SIT”) to provide primary coverage 
for known claims medical professional liability coverage. The SIT provides primary coverage of 
$500,000 for physicians and midwives and up to $1,000,000 for other health professions and 
entity coverage. Physicians and midwives also participate in the Pennsylvania Medical Care 
Availability and Reduction of Error Fund (“Mcare”) that covers from $500,000 to $1,000,000.  In 
addition, Drexel self-insures a layer of excess of up to $2,000,000 above the Mcare Fund. 

The Dragon Risk Limited, Co. provides excess coverage above the self-insured layer of an additional 
$17,000,000.

For self-insured retention amounts for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported 
at June 30, 2015 and 2014, the University and its subsidiaries recorded gross combined reserves of 
$36,140,000 and $35,209,000, respectively and related recoveries from third party insurers of 
$6,256,000 and $5,092,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  For fiscal year 2014, the 
reserves were discounted at 6.25% for the RRRG retained layer.  For fiscal years 2015 and 2014, the 
reserves were discounted at 2% for the layers retained by University and its subsidiaries and excess 
carriers.  Such reserves and reinsurance recoveries are included in accrued expenses and grants, 
contracts and other receivables, respectively, in the accompanying 2015 and 2014 consolidated 
statements of financial position.  At June 30, 2015 and 2014, escrow funds of $10,599,000 and 
$15,133,000, respectively and balanced index funds of $29,894,000 and $28,441,000, respectively, 
were available to fund these liabilities (Note 7). 

(in thousands)

Year Ending June 30,
2016 2,238$           
2017 2,47 4
2018 2,652
2019 2,7 52
2020 2,887
Thereafter 16,266
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16. Commitments and Contingencies

Healthcare Legislation and Regulation
The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local
governments.  These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such
as licensure, accreditation, government healthcare program participation requirements and
reimbursement for patient services.  Federal government activity has continued with respect to
investigations and allegations concerning possible violation of billing regulations by healthcare
providers.  Violations of these regulations could result in the imposition of significant fines and
penalties and have a significant effect on reported activities or cash flow.

Management believes that Drexel is in compliance with applicable government laws and
regulations.  While no regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and
regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as regulatory
actions unknown or unasserted at this time.

Litigation
The nature of the educational and healthcare industries is such that, from time to time, claims will
be presented on account of alleged negligence, acts of discrimination, medical malpractice, breach
of contract or disagreements arising from the interpretation of laws or regulations.  While some of
these claims may be for substantial amounts, they are not unusual in the ordinary course of
providing educational and healthcare services at a large institution.  In the opinion of management,
after consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a
materially adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

Other Commitments and Contingencies
Prior to July 1, 2014, PHEC maintained a letter of credit in the amount of $225,000, as required by
the Department of Environmental Protection, in connection with the disposal of nuclear medical
waste.  Effective July 1, 2014, Drexel has assumed responsibility for the letter of credit which is
renewed annually.  There were no amounts outstanding as of June 30, 2015 and 2014.

The University maintains three letters of credit totaling $2,125,000 associated with workers’
compensation insurance.  The agreements are renewable annually.  There were no amounts
outstanding as of June 30, 2015 and 2014.

The University has the following letters of credit for bonds having remarketing terms:

The Second Series of 2000 bond has a letter of credit in an amount not to exceed
$22,500,000, plus required interest coverage, which will expire June 1, 2016. 

The Series B of 2002 bond has a letter of credit in an amount not to exceed $42,140,000, plus 
required interest coverage, which will expire June 1, 2016. 

The Series B of 2005 bond has a letter of credit in an amount not to exceed $30,047,055 which 
will expire September 30, 2019. 

The Series B of 2007 bond has a letter of credit in an amount not to exceed $29,879,704, plus 
required accrued interest, which will expire October 30, 2018. 

There were no amounts outstanding on these bond-related letters of credit as of June 30, 2015 and 
2014.
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The University also maintains a letter of credit in an amount not to exceed $287,253 as required by 
the U.S. Department of Education in connection with Federal student loans.  It will expire on May 
1, 2016 and is automatically renewed annually unless notified by the University of an election not to 
renew.  There was no amount outstanding as of June 30, 2015. 

Business Income Taxes 
The activities and income of the University and its non-profit affiliates related to its exempt 
purposes are not subject to income tax.  Unrelated business income (UBI) which is income 
generated in a trade or business that is regularly carried on and is not substantially related to 
furthering the exempt purpose of the organization, is subject to income tax.  The University and its 
affiliates generate UBI from consulting and conference services and from investment income held 
in the endowment fund for which the investment manager has reported UBI on a Schedule K-
1. The net income is subject to unrelated business income tax for which appropriate income tax
returns are filed.  In fiscal years 2015 and 2014, the University paid income taxes of $866,000 and 
$311,000, respectively.  These payments were made at the time of the filing of the Form 990-T, 
Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return, for fiscal years 2014 and 2013, respectively.  In 
fiscal year 2015, the University has accrued $866,000 for the fiscal year 2015 UBI tax liability.  The 
University is also subject to the City of Philadelphia Business Income and Receipts Tax.  In fiscal 
years 2015 and 2014, the University paid $339,000 and $206,000 for fiscal years 2014 and 2013, 
respectively, and has accrued $340,000 for the estimated fiscal year 2015 liability. 

17. Related Party Transactions

Prior to July 1, 2015, PHEC had various operating agreements with Tenet which have continued
with Drexel as a result of the merger.  Under these agreements, the University acts both as a
purchaser and provider of services.  Total services purchased from Tenet for the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014 were $12,420,000 and $12,377,000, respectively.  These services include
charges for various personnel, administrative and support services related to operating the College
of Medicine and rent.  Services provided to Tenet include administrative, supervisory and teaching
services connected with faculty physician and residency programs and services and support
provided by physicians to support hospital operations.  Total charges to Tenet for these services
amounted to $23,275,000 and $23,283,000 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, and are mainly included in patient care activities revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities.
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18. Operating Expenses

Expenses for the operation and maintenance of plant, depreciation and interest are not included in
the University’s patient care and education and general expense categories in the consolidated
statements of activities.  The allocation of those expenses, based on the space assigned to each, is as
follows:

19. Subsequent Events

The University evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2015 through October 27, 2015 and
determined that there were no additional events requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements.

(in thousands) 2015 2014

College programs 39,7 83$        37 ,818$         
Research and public serv ice 21,804 21,066
Academic support 6,684 6,299
Student serv ices 15,086 14,366
Institutional support 11 ,047 11 ,57 8
Auxiliary  enterprises 23,7 56 23,7 29
Patient care activ ities 3,051 2,87 5

121,211$       117 ,7 31$      
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Resea rch  a nd Dev elopm ent  Clu st er:
Depa rt m ent  of Healt h  a nd Hu m a n Serv ices:

DHHS - Dir ect  A w a r d 9 3 .R&D 6 ,4 2 5 ,4 6 0$        2 9 ,4 6 4 ,07 9$    
DHHS Pa ss-Th r ou g h  Fu n ds Sch edu le A 5 07 ,2 4 1  6 ,4 04 ,8 09   
DHHS Pa ss-Th r ou g h  Fu n ds (A m er ica n  Recov er y  a n d Rein v estm en t  A ct) Sch edu le A -   1 6 ,9 5 6    

6 ,9 3 2 ,7 01$        3 5 ,8 8 5 ,8 4 4$    

Na t iona l  Science Fou nda t ion :
NSF - Dir ect  A w a r d 4 7 .R&D 4 7 1 ,6 3 9$     1 2 ,7 4 6 ,5 7 3$    
NSF - Dir ect  A w a r d (A m er ica n  Recov er y  a n d Rein v estm en t  A ct) 4 7 .08 2 8 2 ,3 2 8    2 6 0,7 9 6    
NSF - Pa ss Th r ou g h  Fu n ds Sch edu le B 1 3 ,1 2 5  8 4 0,5 2 6    

5 6 7 ,09 2$     1 3 ,8 4 7 ,8 9 5$    

Ot h er:
Oth er  - Dir ect  A w a r d Sch edu le C 2 ,9 4 7 ,8 2 1$        1 0 ,8 7 7 ,1 00$    
Oth er  - Pa ss Th r ou g h  Fu n ds Sch edu le D 4 6 5 ,6 5 7  6 ,1 7 1 ,5 5 1   

3 ,4 1 3 ,4 7 8$        1 7 ,04 8 ,6 5 1$    

T ot al  Resea rch  an d Dev elopm en t  Clu st er: 10,913,271$         66,782,390$      

St u dent  Fina ncia l  A ssist a nce Clu st er:
Depa rt m ent  of Edu ca t ion:

Feder a l Wor k Stu dy  Pr og r a m 8 4 .03 3 -$   1 ,7 8 7 ,8 05$    
Feder a l Su pplem en ta l Edu ca tion a l Oppor tu n ity  Gr a n ts (PSEOG) 8 4 .007 -   1 ,5 9 1 ,5 6 7  
Feder a l Pell Gr a n t  Pr og r a m 8 4 .06 3 -   1 6 ,2 00,07 5  
Feder a l Per kin s Loa n  Pr og r a m 8 4 .03 8 -   2 2 ,9 8 8 ,4 00  

-$     4 2 ,5 6 7 ,8 4 7$    

Depa rt m ent  of Healt h  a nd Hu m a n Serv ices:
Pr im a r y  Ca r e Loa n s 9 3 .3 4 2 -$   3 ,7 8 9 ,9 8 0$   
Loa n s for  Disa dv a n ta g ed Stu den ts 9 3 .3 4 2 -   2 4 8 ,9 4 0    
Nu r sin g  Stu den t  Loa n s 9 3 .3 6 4 -   2 7 ,7 6 9   

-$     4 ,06 6 ,6 8 9$   



Drexel University and Subsidiaries 
Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards              
Summary Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Gra nt or/Pass-T h rou gh  Gran t or Progra m  T it le
CFDA  

Nu m ber
Su brecipien t  
Expendit u res

T ot al  
Expendit u res

See Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
41 

Federally  Gu a ra nt eed St u den t  Loa ns:
Gr a du a te PLUS Loa n s 8 4 .2 6 8 -$     3 8 ,1 2 1 ,9 7 7$           
Pa r en t  Loa n s for  Un der g r a du a te Stu den ts 8 4 .2 6 8 -   4 5 ,02 0,1 1 9          
Su bsidized Dir ect  Loa n s 8 4 .2 6 8 -   3 5 ,4 8 8 ,002         
Un su bsidized Dir ect  Loa n s 8 4 .2 6 8 -   1 3 2 ,8 8 3 ,9 07         

-$     2 5 1 ,5 1 4 ,005$         

T ot al  St u dent  Fin an cia l  A ssist a nce Clu st er: -$      298,148,541$     

Ot h er Progra m s:
Oth er  - Dir ect  A w a r d Sch edu le E 4 5 6 ,5 2 7$     3 ,8 5 8 ,3 5 6$   
Oth er  - Pa ss Th r ou g h  Fu n ds Sch edu le F 2 4 2 ,06 3  7 ,1 4 8 ,2 03  

T ot al  Ot h er Program s: 698,590$       11,006,559$       

T ot a l  Expen dit u res of Federa l  A wa rds 11,611,861$     375,937,490$      



Drexel University and Subsidiaries 
Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Department of Health and Human Services Research and Development Awards From Pass Through 
Grantors - Schedule A 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Progra m  T it le Pa ss T h rou gh  Gra n t or A gen cy  Nu m ber Federa l ID Nu m ber
CFDA  

Nu m ber
 Su brecipien t  
Expen dit u res 

 Federal  
Expen dit u res 

See Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
42 

Cen tr a l Con tr ol of Mobility  in  A g in g

A lber t  Ein stein  Colleg e of 
Medicin e of Yesh iv a  

Un iv er sity 9 -5 2 6 -5 5 4 9 5 R01 -A G03 6 9 2 1 -05 9 3 .8 6 6 1 7 ,06 1 

Biolog ica l a n d Neu r a l Mech a n ism s of Fa lls

A lber t  Ein stein  Colleg e of 
Medicin e of Yesh iv a  

Un iv er sity SUB#3 1 04 7 3 1 R01 A G04 4 007 -01 A 1 9 3 .8 6 6 4 1 ,3 3 3                  
A lbert  Ein st ein  College of Medicin e of Yesh iv a  Un iv ersit y  T ot al - 5 8 ,3 9 4                  

A  Poten t  Sm a ll Molecu le Ch em okin e A n ta g on ist  Blocks Tu m or  Cell 
Dissem in a t ion  in  V iv o# A llia n ce Discov er y A g m t Da ted 1 /2 7 /1 5 1 R4 3 CA 1 8 3 3 6 2 -01 A 1 9 3 .3 9 5 2 1 ,3 3 7                  
A llian ce Discov ery  T ot a l - 2 1 ,3 3 7                  

Medica l Hom e In it ia t iv e
A m er ica n  A ca dem y  of 

Pedia tr ics SUB DA TED 6 /1 2 /1 4 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 3 ,9 9 6 
A m erica n  A ca dem y  of Pedia t rics - 3 ,9 9 6 

HIV  V a ccin e Desig n  a n d Dev elopm en t A r g os Th er a peu t ics HHSN2 6 6 2 006 0001 9 C HSSN2 6 6 2 006 0001 9 C 9 3 . 7 5 8 
A rgos T h era peu t ics T ot al - 7 5 8 

Men tor ed Im plem en ta t ion  of I-PA SS for  Better  Ha n doffs a n d Sa fer  Ca r e Boston  Ch ildr en 's Hospita l RSTFD00006 1 2 03 3 1 R1 8 HS02 3 2 9 1 -01 9 3 .2 2 6 2 7 ,8 8 7                  
Bost on  Ch ildren 's Hospit a l  T ot al - 2 7 ,8 8 7                  

Does Kn ow in g  th e A m ou n t  of Milk in  th e Bott le a lter  In fa n t  Feedin g  
Pr a ct ices? Ca l Poly  Cor por a t ion 1 5 -1 0-5 8 2 2 2 7 R03 HD08 07 3 0-02 9 3 .8 6 5 5 ,3 6 6 
Cal  Poly  Corporat ion  T ot a l - 5 ,3 6 6 

Cor t icotr oph in -Relea sin g  Fa ctor / Ser oton er g ic In ter a ct ion s
Ch ildr en 's Hospita l of 

Ph ila delph ia A ct iv ity  #2 04 9 3 2 R5 6 MH05 8 2 5 0-1 6 9 3 .2 4 2 4 ,4 9 8 

Pedia tr ic Dev ice Con sor tia  Gr a n t  Pr og r a m  (P5 0)
Ch ildr en 's Hospita l of 

Ph ila delph ia A CTIV ITY3 2 1 02 2 1 P5 0FD004 9 1 1 -01 9 3 .1 03 1 0 
Ch ildren 's Hospit a l  of Ph ila delph ia  T ot a l - 4 ,5 08 
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A u tom a tic Wor kflow  Ca ptu r e & A n a ly sis for  Im pr ov in g  Tr a u m a  
Resu scita t ion  Ou tcom es

Ch ildr en 's Resea r ch  
In stitu te 3 0002 2 4 1 -01 R01 LM01 1 8 3 4 9 3 .8 7 9 1 6 ,5 8 1                   

R2 1 : A  Pa per -Dig ita l In ter fa ce for  Tim e-Cr it ica l In for m a tion  
Ma n a g em en t

Ch ildr en 's Resea r ch  
In stitu te 3 0001 3 8 7 -1 2 -03 1 R2 1 LM01 1 3 2 0-01 A 1 9 3 .8 7 9 7 ,3 9 8 

Ch ildren 's Research  In st it u t e T ot a l -      2 3 ,9 7 9                  

Sm oke-fr ee Pu blic Hou sin g  Ev a lu a tion City  of Ph ila delph ia 1 4 2 03 9 7 1 U5 8 DP003 5 5 7 9 3 .5 3 1 1 1 ,6 2 7                   
Cit y  of Ph ila delph ia  T ot a l -      1 1 ,6 2 7                   

A m bu la tor y /Ou t-Pa t ien t  Medica l Ca r e

City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids 
A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  

Office R5 2 1 4 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 1 4 7 6 ,7 8 7                  

Ca r e Ser v ices Ca se Ma n a g em en t

City  of Ph ila delph ia   - 
A ids A ctiv it ies 

Coor din a t in g  Office RS5 3 6 5 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 1 4 5 0,1 8 8                  
Cit y  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coordin at in g Office T ot a l -      1 2 6 ,9 7 5                

T issu e Com pa r tm en ta liza t ion  of Hu m a n  Ly m ph ocy tes Colu m bia  Un iv er sity 1 1 GG07 5 7 9 1 P01 A 1 1 06 6 9 7 -01 9 3 .8 5 5 1 3 5 ,1 2 2                
Colu m bia  Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -      1 3 5 ,1 2 2                

CRCNS: Or g a n iza tion  of th e Locom otor  CPG in  th e Roden t  Spin a l Cor d Cor n ell Un iv er sity 6 7 3 6 2 -9 8 9 6 1 R1 NS08 1 7 1 3 -01 9 3 .8 5 3 1 3 7 ,5 6 2                
Corn ell  Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -      1 3 7 ,5 6 2                

Gr a du a te Pa r tn er sh ip to Ex pa n d Edu ca t ion a l Oppor tu n it ies
Dela w a r e Sta te 

Un iv er sity 1 0-009 MH  5 R2 5 GM08 8 04 3 -02 9 3 .8 5 9 3 2 ,7 2 5                  
Dela wa re St a t e Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -      3 2 ,7 2 5                  
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ECOG-A CRIN Oper a t ion s Cen ter
ECOG-A CRIN Medica l 
Resea r ch  Fou n da t ion U1 0CA 1 8 08 2 0-01 -DREX1 U1 0CA 1 8 08 2 0-01 9 3 .3 9 5 2 6 9 ,4 9 2    

ECOG-A CRIN-NCORP Resea r ch  Ba se
ECOG-A CRIN Medica l 
Resea r ch  Fou n da t ion 1 UG1 CA 1 8 9 8 2 8 -01 -DREX1 1 UG1 CA 1 8 9 8 2 8 -01 9 3 .3 9 5 1 3 5 ,5 2 9     

ECOG-A CRIN Medica l  Resea rch  Fou nda t ion T ot al -   4 05 ,02 1     

Dev elopm en t  of Flu or in a ted Su lfa m oy lben za m ide Der iv a t iv es a s 
A n tiv ir a l A g en ts a g a in st  HBV  In fect ion s

En a n tig en  Th er a peu tics,  
In c. 1 R4 3 A I1 04 06 6 -01 1 R4 3 A I1 04 06 6 -01 9 3 .8 5 5 (8 ,4 9 2 )     

Ena nt igen T h era peu t ics, Inc. T ot a l -   (8 ,4 9 2 )     

Ra cia l a n d Eth n ic Dispa r it ies in  Ma m m og r a ph y  Utiliza t ion  A m on g  
Wom en  With  In tellectu a l Disa bilit ies: A n  Ex plor a tor y  Sequ en tia l 
Mix ed Meth ods Stu dy

Fa m ily  Hea lth  
In ter n a tion a l 002 6 04 8 1 7 UM1 A I06 8 6 1 9 9 3 .8 5 5 3 ,5 4 8   

Fa m ily  Healt h  Int erna t iona l  T ot a l -   3 ,5 4 8   

Mobilizin g   Com m u n ity  Sy stem s to En g a g e Fa m ilies in  Ea r ly  A SD 
Detect ion  & Ser v ices Flor ida  Sta te Un iv er sity

A DV A NCE 
1 R01 MH1 04 4 2 3 -01 1 R01 MH1 04 4 2 3 -01 9 3 .2 4 2 6 3 ,4 2 4  2 6 7 ,3 2 6    

Florida  St a t e Univ ersit y  T ot a l 6 3 ,4 2 4  2 6 7 ,3 2 6    

Tr a in in g  Pr og r a m  in  HIV  Pr ev en tion  Resea r ch  Eth ics For dh a m  Un iv er sity LETTER DA TED 1 2 /5 /2 01 4 5 R2 5 DA 03 1 6 08 9 3 .2 7 9 1 0,03 5    
Fordh a m  Univ ersit y  T ot a l -   1 0 ,03 5    

DC-SIGN In h ibitor s for  th e Tr ea tm en t  of HIV  In fect ion
Fox  Ch a se Ch em ica l 

Div er sity  Cen ter ,  In c. 1 R4 1 A I06 7 7 1 9 1 R4 1 A I06 7 7 1 9 9 3 .8 5 5 8 1 4    
Fox Ch a se Ch em ica l  Div ersit y  Cent er, Inc. T ot a l -   8 1 4    

Socia l-Str u ctu r a l Str essor s,  Resilien ce a n d Sex u a l Risk Beh a v ior s 
A m on g  Bla ck Men

Geor g e Wa sh in g ton  
Un iv er sity I3 -S3 9 7 R01 MH1 0002 2 -02 9 3 .2 4 2 1 ,4 6 2   

George Wa sh ingt on  Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -   1 ,4 6 2   
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Dia Com p Pilot  a n d Fea sibility  Stu dy  "Ty pe II Dia betes: Ph en oty pe of 
th e Dia bet ic Bla dder  fr om  Pr otein s to Or g a n "

Geor g ia  Reg en ts 
Un iv er sity 2 5 7 3 2 -2 5 3 U2 4 DK07 6 1 6 9 -08 S4 9 3 .8 4 7 1 5 ,1 6 9     

Georgia  Regen t s Univ ersit y  T ot al -   1 5 ,1 6 9     

Th e Dev elopm en t  of A u ditor y  Join t  En g a g em en t Geor g ia  Sta te Un iv er sity SP0001 1 6 2 6 -01 2 R01 HD03 5 6 1 2 -1 5 A 1 9 3 .8 6 5 1 5 ,8 5 9    
Georgia  St a t e Univ ersit y  T ot al -   1 5 ,8 5 9    

Pedia tr ic HIV /A IDS Coh or t  Stu dy  (PHA CS) - A MP (PH 2 00)
Ha r v a r d Sch ool of Pu blic 

Hea lth 1 1 4 07 4 .1 03 8 .5 04 1 1 4 1 5 U01 HD05 2 1 02 -1 0 9 3 .8 6 5 1 00,002     
Ha rv ard Sch ool of Pu blic Hea lt h  T ot a l -   1 00,002     

Ev a lu a t in g  Option s for  Non -Respon der s:  A  SMA RT A ppr oa ch  to 
En h a n cin g  Weig h t  Loss

Hea lth Pa r tn er s In st itu te 
for  Edu ca tion  a n d 

Resea r ch X1 3 01 2 00DREX 1 R01 CA 1 8 8 8 9 2 9 3 .3 9 4 5 1 ,8 6 7    
Hea lt h Pa rt ners Inst it u t e for  Edu ca t ion a nd Resea rch  T ot a l -   5 1 ,8 6 7    

Nov el Liv er  Fibr osis Test  for  Ea r ly  Detect ion  a n d Cla ssifica t ion Im m u n otope, In c. A g m t Da ted 1 0/4 /4 1 3 1 R4 1 A A 02 3 1 1 1 -01 9 3 .2 7 3 1 03 ,4 09     
Im m u not ope, In c. T ot a l -   1 03 ,4 09     

Dev elopm en t  of a  Ur in e Test  for  th e Ea r ly  Detect ion  of Liv er  Ca n cer JBS Scien ce,  In c. A g m t Da ted 9 /2 4 /1 3 2 R4 4 CA 1 6 5 3 1 2 -02 9 3 .3 9 4 7 3 ,9 2 2    
JBS Science, Inc. T ot a l -   7 3 ,9 2 2    

Cen ter s for  A u t ism  a n d Dev elopm en ta l Disa bilit ies Resea r ch  a n d 
Epidem iolog y  (CA DDRE):  Stu dy  to Ex plor e Ea r ly  Dev elopm en t Joh n s Hopkin s Un iv er sity 2 001 3 9 6 2 8 5 U01 DD0007 4 6 9 3 .07 3 1 1 ,07 0     

HIV  Resea r ch  Netw or k Joh n s Hopkin s Un iv er sity 2 001 3 7 7 3 9 7 HHSA 2 9 02 01 1 00007 C 9 3 . 1 1 6 ,5 2 8  
Ea t in g  for  Life:  Dieta r y  Beh a v ior s A m on g  Lon g  Ter m  Ca n cer  
Su r v iv or s Joh n s Hopkin s Un iv er sity 2 001 4 06 1 2 7 R2 1 CA 1 5 2 7 8 9 9 3 .3 9 3 2 ,5 9 6   
Joh ns Hopkin s Univ ersit y  T ot a l -   1 3 0,1 9 4  
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Upda te of Com m u n ity  Gu ide Rev iew s on  th e Effectiv en ess of Ph y sica l 
A ct iv ity  In ter v en tion s Ka iser  Per m a n en te 1 2 CPA TN-02 -01 2 00-2 01 2 -5 3 7 8 6 9 3 . 3 8 ,3 4 4                  
Ka iser Perm a n en t e T ot a l -      3 8 ,3 4 4                  

NIA ID A dv a n ced Tech n olog y  STTR (NIA ID-A T-STTR (R4 1 /R4 2 ) ) Len im a  Dia g n ost ics,  LLC 1 R4 A I1 1 2 2 2 2 4 -01 1 R4 1 A l1 1 2 2 2 4 -01 9 3 .8 5 5 4 3 ,5 4 7                  
Len im a  Diagn ost ics, LLC T ot al -      4 3 ,5 4 7                  

MOTS: Modelin g  Obesity  Th r ou g h  Sim u la tion
Loy ola  Un iv er sity ,  

Ch ica g o 2 01 3 3 1 5 R01 HD06 1 9 7 8 -05 9 3 .8 6 5 1 0,1 4 6                   
Loy ola  Un iv ersit y , Ch ica go T ot al -      1 0,1 4 6                   

Object iv e Ev a lu a t ion  of th e Con du ct iv e Olfa ctor y  Losses a n d Na sa l 
Obstr u ction  Sy m ptom s

Mon ell Ch em ica l Sen ses 
Cen ter NIH04 4 A 01 KZHA O R01 DC01 3 6 2 6 -01 A 1 9 3 .1 7 3 1 7 ,8 2 7                  

Mon ell  Ch em ica l Sen ses Cen t er T ot a l -      1 7 ,8 2 7                  

Div er se Dr u g  Lea d Com pou n ds fr om  Ba cter ia l Sy m bion ts in  Ph ilippin e 
Mollu sks

Or eg on  Hea lth  a n d 
Scien ce Un iv er sity 1 004 8 5 4 _A NSP U1 9 TW008 1 6 3 9 3 .9 8 9 1 7 ,7 4 5                  

Ta r g et in g  IRF's for  im m u n e a dju v a n t  en h a n cem en t  of v a ccin e 
im m u n og en icity

Or eg on  Hea lth  a n d 
Scien ce Un iv er sity A dv a n ce 9 3 . 4 ,07 6 

Div er se Dr u g  Lea d Com pou n ds fr om  Ba cter ia l Sy m bion ts in  Tr opica l 
Ma r in e Mollu sks

Or eg on  Hea lth  a n d 
Scien ce Un iv er sity GEBSN006 2 -A NS 1 U01 TW008 1 6 3 -01 9 3 .9 8 9 2 0,7 8 9                  

Opt im izin g  ELQ's for  Tr ea tm en t  a n d Pr ev en t ion  of Ma la r ia
Or eg on  Hea lth  a n d 
Scien ce Un iv er sity R01 A I1 005 6 9 1 R01 A I1 005 6 9 9 3 .8 5 5 1 2 3 ,2 4 6                

Oregon  Hea lt h  an d Scien ce Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -      1 6 5 ,8 5 6                

Ea tin g  Disor der s Pr ev en tion : A n  Effectiv en ess Tr ia l for  A t-Risk Colleg e 
Stu den ts Or eg on  Resea r ch  In st itu te A g m t da ted 4 /2 4 /1 4 RO1 -MH 08 6 5 8 2 9 3 .2 4 2 7 6 ,2 04                  
Oregon  Resea rch  In st it u t e T ot al -      7 6 ,2 04                  
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Pr escr ipt ion  Opioid Depen den ce: Ph y siolog y ,  Em otion  & Tr ea tm en t  
Ou tcom e Pen n  Sta te Un iv er sity DRE DA 03 5 2 4 0 1 R01 DA 03 5 2 4 0-01 9 3 .2 7 9 5 9 ,5 6 8    
Penn  St a t e Univ ersit y  T ot al -   5 9 ,5 6 8    

Pen n sy lv a n ia  Ca n cer  Edu ca tion  Netw or k - Color ecta l Ca n cer
Pen n sy lv a n ia  

Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth SA P4 3 002 4 9 7 9 3 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 1 1 3 1    
Pu blic Hea lth  Risk A ssessm en t  & Com m u n ity  Pr epa r edn ess Pr oject  for  
PA

Pen n sy lv a n ia  
Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth

SA P4 3 003 1 4 2 8 7  
CHA NGE1 2 U9 0TP3 1 6 9 6 7 -1 1 9 3 .06 9 (9 2 )     

Pen n sy lv a n ia  Com m u n ity  Pr epa r edn ess Pr ojects Cen ter  for  Pu blic 
Hea lth  Rea din ess & Com m u n ica t ion

Pen n sy lv a n ia  
Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth SA P4 3 003 7 8 6 8 9 CDC-RFA -TP1 2 -1 2 01 02 CINT1 3 9 3 .07 4 1 ,3 6 4   

Com m u n ity  Pr epa r edn ess Pr ojects for  Pen n sy lv a n ia
Pen n sy lv a n ia  

Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 4 0007 9 6 0 DC-RFA -TP1 2 -1 2 01 02 CONT1 9 3 .07 4 2 7 9 ,8 2 6    
Penn sy lv a nia  Depa rt m ent  of Hea lt h  T ot al -   2 8 1 ,2 2 9     

Su icide Pr ev en tion  in  Sch ools a n d Colleg es

Pen n sy lv a n ia  
Depa r tm en t  of Hu m a n  

Ser v ices
Ser v ice A g m t Da ted 

3 /3 /2 01 5 1 -U7 9 -SM06 1 7 5 0-01 9 3 .2 4 3 8 9 ,2 6 7    
Penn sy lv a nia  Depa rt m ent  of Hu m an  Serv ices T ot a l -   8 9 ,2 6 7    

Bike Sh a r e Mem ber sh ip a n d its Effect  on  Ph y sica l A ct iv ity
Ph ila delph ia  Depa r tm en t  

of Pu blic Hea lth 1 5 2 05 2 2 1 U5 8 DP005 5 2 6 -01 9 3 .7 5 7 3 8 ,7 4 2    
Ph ila delph ia  Depa rt m ent  of Pu blic Hea lt h  T ot a l -   3 8 ,7 4 2    
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Ph ila delph ia  V eter a n s Tr ea tm en t  Cou r t
Ph ila delph ia  Men ta l 

Hea lth  Ca r e Cor por a t ion 1 00-1 06 5 5 H7 9 T1 02 4 2 09 -02 9 3 .2 4 3 2 6 ,5 6 5    

Ph ila delph ia  V eter a n s Tr ea tm en t  Cou r t
Ph ila delph ia  Men ta l 

Hea lth  Ca r e Cor por a t ion 1 H7 9 TI02 4 2 09 -01 1 H7 9 TI02 4 2 09 -01 9 3 .2 4 3 2 3 ,9 8 4    
Ph ila delph ia  Ment a l  Hea lt h  Ca re Corpora t ion T ot a l -   5 0,5 4 9    

MA PP Resea r ch  Netw or k (Micr obiolog y )

Qu een s Un iv er sity  w -
Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 2 1 9 7 U01 -DK-08 2 3 1 6 -06 9 3 .8 4 7 8 5 ,2 6 1    

Qu eens Univ ersit y  w-Univ ersit y  of Pennsy lv a nia  T ot a l -   8 5 ,2 6 1    

Qu a n tify in g  Ch a n g es in  Neu r a l Stem  Cell Lin ea g es in  th e A g in g  Nich e
Reg en er a t iv e Resea r ch  

Fou n da tion 5 01 2 -DREXEL R01 A G04 1 8 6 1 9 3 .8 6 6 1 09 ,07 0     
Regenera t iv e Resea rch  Fou n da t ion T ot a l -   1 09 ,07 0     

A  Wir eless Dev ice to Mon itor  a n d Tr a ck Flu id Con su m ption  in  A t-Risk 
Older  A du lts

Sm a r t  A ct iv it ies of Da ily  
Liv in g  LLC Un kn ow n 1 R4 1 NR1 5 1 9 1 -01 9 3 .3 6 1 3 1 ,2 5 8    

Sm a rt  A ct iv it ies of Da ily  Liv ing LLC T ot a l -   3 1 ,2 5 8    

Com pr eh en siv e Neu r oA IDS Cor e Cen ter :  Pilot :  Defin in g  th e Or ig in s 
a n d Fu n ction a l Pr oper t ies of HIV -1  V PR V a r ia n ts A ssocia ted w ith  
Neu r ocog n it iv e Im pa ir m en t Tem ple Un iv er sity

2 3 9 4 1 5  YR4  DREXEL 
KREBS PILOT P3 0MH09 2 1 7 7 7 9 3 .2 4 2 1 ,8 4 3   

In ter disciplin a r y  a n d Tr a n sla t ion a l Resea r ch  Tr a in in g  a n d 
Neu r oA IDS Tem ple Un iv er sity CC01 6 1 5 9 0 5 T3 2 MH07 9 7 8 5 -05 9 3 .2 8 2 (4 4 8 )  

In ter disciplin a r y  a n d Tr a n sla t ion a l Resea r ch  Tr a in in g  in  Neu r oA IDS Tem ple Un iv er sity 3 6 1 07 2 -04 4 00-7 3 4 1 -02 T3 2 MH07 9 7 8 5 9 3 .2 4 2 9 0,5 07    
Com pr eh en siv e Neu r oA IDS Cor e Cen ter Tem ple Un iv er sity 3 9 04 3 5 -04 4 00-7 3 4 1 -02 5 P3 0MH09 2 1 7 7 -04 9 3 .2 4 2 4 3 ,9 9 1   1 4 2 ,6 4 8     
A TP Hy dr oly sis in  V ir a l Reser v oir  Per sisten ce Tem ple Un iv er sity 3 6 09 6 2 -04 4 00-7 3 4 2 -02 1 R01 MH1 01 01 0-02 9 3 .2 4 2 1 4 ,5 00    
Dev elopm en ta l Cor e Pilot  Pr oject :  In ter pla y  betw een  Micr o RNA 's a n d 
HIV -1  in  Hu m a n  Micr og lia  a n d A str ocy tes Tem ple Un iv er sity 2 3 9 4 1 SDUPilot  Ga r cia 5 P3 0MH09 2 1 7 7 -04 9 3 .2 4 2 8 ,2 7 9   
T em ple Univ ersit y  T ot al 4 3 ,9 9 1   2 5 7 ,3 2 9    
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Cy tokin e In fla m m a tor y  Media tor s a n d Mu cin  Reg u la t ion  in  Middle 
Ea r  Epith eliu m

Th e Medica l Colleg e of 
Wiscon sin ,  In c. A g m t Da ted 9 /1 6 /1 4 5 R01 DC007 9 03 -08 9 3 .1 7 3 1 4 ,5 5 4    

T h e Medica l  College of Wisconsin, Inc. T ot a l -   1 4 ,5 5 4    

Mea su r in g  Hea lth  Effects of th e Gr ea t  Recession
Th e Reg en ts of th e 

Un iv er sity  of Ca lifor n ia 1 5 5 8  G SA 3 03 1 R2 1 A G04 6 5 8 9 -01 A 1 9 3 .8 6 6 5 4 ,9 8 9    
MCH Hea lth  Ca r e Tr a n sit ion s Resea r ch  Netw or k for  You th  a n d You n g  
A du lts w ith  A u tism  Spectr u m  Disor der s

Th e Reg en ts of th e 
Un iv er sity  of Ca lifor n ia 1 6 3 8  G SA 1 2 9 UA 3 MC2 7 3 6 4 9 3 .1 1 0 3 8 ,5 7 2    

Sin g le Molecu le DNA  Ma ppin g  for  DNA  a n d CNV  A n a ly sis
Th e Reg en ts of th e 

Un iv er sity  of Ca lifor n ia DTD 7 /2 /2 01 2 5 R01 HG005 9 4 6 9 3 .1 7 2 (3 6 ,2 08 )  
T h e Regen t s of t h e Univ ersit y  of Ca lifornia  T ot a l -   5 7 ,3 5 3    

Com m itm en t  Con tr a cts for  Hea lth -Beh a v ior  Ch a n g e

Th e Reg en ts of th e 
Un iv er sity  of Ca lifor n ia ,  

Sa n ta  Ba r ba r a KK1 3 02  R2 1  A G04 2 05 1 9 3 .8 6 6 3 ,4 4 5   
T h e Regen t s of t h e Univ ersit y  of Ca lifornia , Sa nt a  Ba rba ra  T ot a l -   3 ,4 4 5   

Na n om a ppin g -A ssisted A n a ly sis of Hu m a n  Telom er e Reg ion s Th e Wista r  In st itu te 2 4 8 3 1 -02 3 3 0 1 R2 1 HG007 2 05 -01 9 3 .1 7 2 1 6 ,8 7 9    
A  Nov el Sin g le-Molecu le Telom er e Ch a r a cter iza t ion  Tech n olog y  for  
A n a ly zin g  Ca n cer  Gen om es Th e Wista r  In st itu te 2 4 9 9 1 -02 -3 3 0 1 R2 1 CA 1 7 7 3 9 5 01 A 1 9 3 .3 9 6 6 0,8 9 0    
T h e Wist a r  Inst it u t e T ot a l -   7 7 ,7 6 9    
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Neu r oim m u n e Cell Netw or ks in  Opioid Depen den ce a n d With dr a w a l
Th om a s Jeffer son  

Un iv er sity 5 R2 1  DA 03 6 3 7 2 -02 9 3 .2 7 9 3 7 ,2 3 4                  

Ipsh ita  Gu pta  - Sa la r y  for  Wor k a t  Th om a s Jeffer son  Un iv er sity .
Th om a s Jeffer son  

Un iv er sity A GR.DA TE 8 /2 7 /2 01 4 R01 DK09 8 5 2 6 9 3 .3 9 4 1 5 ,7 6 7                  
Non -Th er m a l Pla sm a  Tr ea tm en t  In it ia tes Redox  Sig n a lin g  in  Stem  
Cells

Th om a s Jeffer son  
Un iv er sity 08 0-2 3 000-5 02 5 01 5 R01 EB01 3 01 1 9 3 .2 8 6 5 2 ,09 8                  

Tr a n sla t ion a l Resea r ch  in  Ca n cer
Th om a s Jeffer son  

Un iv er sity 08 0-03 5 00-PB1 1 1 6 2 P3 0CA 05 6 03 6 9 3 .3 9 7 1 7 ,2 7 6                  

Tr a n sla t ion a l Resea r ch  in  Ca n cer
Th om a s Jeffer son  

Un iv er sity 08 0-03 5 00-PB1 5 1 6 2 P3 0CA 05 6 03 6 -1 4 9 3 .3 9 7 6 ,6 9 6 

Tr a n sla t ion a l Resea r ch  in  Ca n cer
Th om a s Jeffer son  

Un iv er sity 08 0-03 5 00-PB1 5 1 6 CA 05 6 03 6 -1 4 /5 P3 0CA 05 6 03 9 3 .3 9 7 2 9 ,6 06                  

Tr a n sla t ion a l Resea r ch  in  Ca n cer
Th om a s Jeffer son  

Un iv er sity 08 0-03 5 00-PB08 1 6 5  P3 0 CA 05 6 03 6 -1 5 9 3 .3 9 7 1 3 ,6 6 9                  
Ev a lu a t ion  of Sm a ll Molecu le In h ibitor s of Hem og lobin  Tr a n spor t  a s 
A n tim a la r ia ls

Th om a s Jeffer son  
Un iv er sity R2 1 A I09 01 5 8 R2 1 A I09 01 5 8 9 3 .8 5 5 (1 ,2 3 8 )

T h om a s Jefferson  Un iv ersit y  T ot a l - 1 7 1 ,1 08                

MRI,  Gen etics & Cog n it iv e Pr ecu r sor  of A D a n d Dem en tia
Tr u stees of Boston  

Un iv er sity 4 5 00001 2 04 5 R01 A G01 6 4 9 5 -1 3 9 3 .8 6 6 2 5 ,06 2                  
T ru st ees of Bost on  Un iv ersit y  T ot a l - 2 5 ,06 2                  

Im m u n olog ica l Ba sis of a g e-r ela ted v u ln er a bility  in  biodefen se a n d 
em er g in g  in fection s Un iv er sity  of A r izon a 2 6 9 5 9 9 HHSN2 7 2 2 01 1 0001 7 C 9 3 . 4 ,07 6 
Un iv ersit y  of A rizon a T ot a l - 4 ,07 6 

Sin g le Molecu le DNA  Ma ppin g  for  Gen om e a n d CNV  A n a ly sis
Un iv er sity  of Ca lifor n ia ,  

Sa n  Fr a n cisco 8 03 7 SC 2 R01 HG005 9 4 6 -04 9 3 .1 7 2 4 5 4 ,9 2 5               
Un iv ersit y  of Californ ia , Sa n  Fra n cisco T ot al - 4 5 4 ,9 2 5               
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A x on a l Tr a n spor t  Deficits du r in g  Her edita r y  Spa st ic Pa r a pleg ia Un iv er sity  of Illin ois 2 01 0-002 7 5 -01 5 R01 NS06 6 9 4 2 9 3 .8 5 3 4 3 ,8 1 3    
Univ ersit y  of Il l inois T ot a l -   4 3 ,8 1 3    

You th  A ccess to Toba cco FY1 4 Un iv er sity  of Lou isia n a 8 8 1 1 1 2 -01 3 3 0-4 02 2 2 1 9 3 .9 5 9 5 1 ,5 3 3    
Univ ersit y  of Lou isia na  T ot a l -   5 1 ,5 3 3    

Cy tolog ica l Stu dies of Dev elopin g  Neu r on s Un iv er sity  of Mia m i 6 6 9 5 1 N 5 R01 NS009 9 2 3 -4 1 9 3 .8 5 3 4 5 ,000    
Univ ersit y  of Mia m i T ot a l -   4 5 ,000    

Neig h bor h oods a n d Ca r diov a scu la r  Risk in  Mu lt ieth n ic Coh or t Un iv er sity  of Mich ig a n 3 001 2 8 3 5 5 0 5  RO1  HL07 1 7 9 5 -07 9 3 .8 3 7 3 02 ,8 9 5    
Cen ter  for  In teg r a t iv e A ppr oa ch es to Hea lth  Dispa r it ies (CIA HD) Un iv er sity  of Mich ig a n 3 002 4 6 7 2 4 8 5 P6 0MD002 2 4 9 9 3 .3 07 5 3 4 ,7 3 1     
Str ess,  Gen e-En v ir on m en t  In ter a ct ion  a n d Ca r diov a scu la r  Disea se Un iv er sity  of Mich ig a n 3 003 02 02 4 0 R01 -HL1 01 1 6 1 9 3 .8 3 7 1 6 4 ,7 8 6     
Mu lt ilev el & Lifecou r se A ppr oa ch es to NCD Pr ev en tion  in  La t in  
A m er ica Un iv er sity  of Mich ig a n 3 003 07 6 006 D4 3 TW009 3 1 5 9 3 .9 8 9 8 2 ,6 3 6    
REV IV E-IT Ra n dom ized Ev a lu a t ion  of V A D In ter v en tion  Befor e 
In otr opic Th er a py Un iv er sity  of Mich ig a n 3 001 8 9 03 7 1 HHSN2 6 8 2 01 1 0002 6 C 9 3 . 1 7 ,4 2 7    
Univ ersit y  of Mich iga n T ot a l -   1 ,1 02 ,4 7 5     
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Ser v ices to En h a n ce Socia l Fu n ct ion in g  in  A du lts w ith  A u tism  
Spectr u m  Disor der

Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 5 09 1 1 -R3 4 -MH-1 04 4 07 -01 9 3 .2 4 2 1 1 ,2 6 1 

Epig en et ic Ch a n g es A ssocia ted w ith  Neu r odeg en er a t iv e Disea ses
Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 5 8 5 9 4 5 R01 NS07 8 2 8 3 -02 9 3 .8 5 3 8 3 ,3 1 6                  

Retr a in in g  Neu r ocog n it iv e Mech a n ism s of Ca n cer  Risk Beh a v ior
Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 02 4 1 1 R01 CA 1 7 02 9 7 -03 9 3 .3 9 3 2 7 ,9 1 1 

Psy ch olog ica l Effects of In ju r ies in  Ur ba n  Bla ck Men : A  Dispa r a te 
Hea lth  Issu e

Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 01 4 5 5 R01 NR01 3 5 03 9 3 .3 6 1 2 9 ,7 5 5                  

TMS a s a  Biom a r ker  of Pla st icity  in  A ph a sia  Recov er y
Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 1 5 9 2 1 -R01 -DC-01 2 7 8 0-01 A 1 9 3 .1 7 3 9 ,1 5 9 

In ter a ct ion  of In h a la t ion a l A n esth et ics w ith  Ma cr om olecu les
Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 2 3 3 6 5 -P01 -GM-05 5 8 7 6 -1 5 9 3 .8 5 9 1 4 4 ,4 04                

Electr oph y siolog y  of Hu m a n  Spa tia l Cog n it ion
Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 3 3 8 6 2 R01 MH06 1 9 7 5 -1 2 A 1 9 3 .2 4 2 1 7 ,9 7 7                  

Im m u n e A ct iv a t ion  a n d Ison ia zid Meta bolism  in  HIV / TB
Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 1 2 6 5 5 -R2 1 -A I-1 04 4 4 1 -02 9 3 .8 5 5 9 ,8 4 9 

Pr oject  HOPE (Hospita l V isit  a s Oppor tu n ity  for  Pr ev en t ion  a n d 
En g a g em en t  for  HIV -In fected Dr u g

Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 5 06 0 3 -U1 0-DA -01 3 04 3 9 3 .2 7 9 1 8 4 ,5 4 9                

Elicit in g  Ma ter n a l Kn ow ledg e a bou t  th e Tech n olog y  of Skill For m a tion
Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 07 3 7 5 R01 HD07 3 2 2 1 -02 9 3 .8 6 5 6 3 ,4 06                  

Un iv ersit y  of Pennsy lv a nia  T ot a l - 5 8 1 ,5 8 7                

Un iv er sity  of Pittsbu r g h  - Reg ion a l Pu blic Hea lth  Tr a in in g  Cen ter  
Pr og r a m Un iv er sity  of Pit tsbu r g h 004 4 3 1 8 /1 2 5 3 09 -1 UB6 HP2 7 8 8 2 -01 -00 9 3 .2 4 9 6 ,07 5 
Un iv ersit y  of Pit t sbu rgh  T ot a l - 6 ,07 5 

La te Sodiu m  Cu r r en t  Blocka de in  Hig h  Risk ICD Pa t ien ts (RA ID) Un iv er sity  of Roch ester U01  HL09 6 6 07  RA ID 5 -U01 -HL09 6 6 07 -05 9 3 .8 3 7 5 4 1 
Un iv ersit y  of Roch est er  T ot a l - 5 4 1 

Modify in g  In tr in sic Gr ow th  Ca pa city  th r ou g h  A x on a l m RNA  
Tr a n sla t ion

Un iv er sity  of Sou th  
Ca r olin a 1 5 -2 7 3 2 2 R01 NS04 1 5 9 6 -1 0A 1 9 3 .8 5 3 5 5 ,7 6 5                  

Un iv ersit y  of Sou t h  Ca rolin a  T ot al - 5 5 ,7 6 5                  
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Pr ospectiv e Ev a lu a t ion  of A ir  Pollu tion , Cog n it ion , a n d A u tism  fr om  
Bir th  On w a r d

Un iv er sity  of Sou th er n  
Ca lifor n ia S4 5 2 7 4 1 2 1 R01 ES02 3 7 8 0-01 9 3 .1 1 3 4 9 ,06 0                  

Un iv ersit y  of Sou t h ern  Ca liforn ia  T ot al - 4 9 ,06 0                  

H1 R Sig n a lin g  a n d Im m u n e Dev ia t ion  in  EA E Un iv er sity  of V er m on t 2 3 8 01 1 R01 NS06 9 6 2 8 -05 9 3 .8 5 3 4 2 ,8 8 3                  
Un iv ersit y  of V erm on t  T ot a l - 4 2 ,8 8 3                  

Dev elopm en t  a n d V a lida t ion  of a n  A u t ism  Ca se Con fir m a tion  
A ppr oa ch  for  Use in  NCS Westa t 6 04 9 .08 -S01 HHSN2 7 5 2 01 2 00005 1 9 3 . 3 9 9 ,8 2 6          5 03 ,2 1 6                
West a t  T ot a l 3 9 9 ,8 2 6          5 03 ,2 1 6                

T ot a l  Depa rt m en t  of Hea lt h  A n d Hu m a n  Serv ice Resea rch  a n d 
Dev elopm en t  A wa rds from  Pa ss-T h rou gh  Gra n t ors 5 07 ,2 4 1$        6 ,4 04 ,8 09$         

Com m u n ities Pu tt in g  Pr ev en t ion  to Wor k
Ph ila delph ia  Depa r tm en t  

of Pu blic Hea lth 1 02 05 2 6 1 U5 8 DP002 6 2 6 -1 9 3 .7 2 4 (1 ,9 6 5 )
Ph ila delph ia  Depa rt m en t  of Pu blic Healt h  T ot al -          (1 ,9 6 5 ) 

A n u sh  Sr idh a r a n  Sa la r y  for  Wor k a t  Th om a s Jeffer son  Un iv er sity
Th om a s Jeffer son  

Un iv er sity TJUP02 08 8 9 5 1 2 A RRA  - 5  R01  HL08 8 5 2 3 -03 9 3 .7 01 1 8 ,9 2 1 
T h om a s Jefferson  Un iv ersit y  T ot a l - 1 8 ,9 2 1 
T ot a l  Depa rt m en t  of Hea lt h  A n d Hu m a n  Serv ice Pa ss-
T h rou gh  A m erican  Recov ery  a n d Rein v est m en t  A ct  
Expen dit u res -$                  1 6 ,9 5 6$                

T ot a l  Depa rt m en t  of Hea lt h  A n d Hu m a n  Serv ice Pa ss-
T h rou gh  Expen dit u res 507,241$          6,421,765$            
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CLUES NSF YR3  (2 01 1 -2 01 2 )
Cen ter  for  A qu a tic 

Scien ces DRL-08 4 02 3 0 4 7 .07 6 3 6 ,9 3 0
Cent er for A qu at ic Scien ces T ot a l -      3 6 ,9 3 0

Un der sta n din g  a n d Pr edict in g  Hu m a n  Dr iv in g  Beh a v ior s v ia  Ma ch in e 
Lea r n in g  Models

Ch ildr en 's Hospita l of 
Ph ila delph ia A GMT 6 /1 3 /1 3 EEC-05 3 5 4 6 3 4 7 .04 1 (2 ,3 3 3 )

Ma ch in e Lea r n in g  Tech n iqu es: Pr edict in g  Dr iv er  Beh a v ior s a n d 
Pr ov idin g  Cu stom ized Feedba ck

Ch ildr en 's Hospita l of 
Ph ila delph ia 2 7 06 5 -2 1 2 7 8 04 1 6 -9 2 Un kn ow n 4 7 .04 1 2 2 ,2 3 4

Ch ildren 's Hospit a l  of Ph ila delph ia  T ot a l -      1 9 ,9 01

Na n osca le Mech a n ism  of Su per con du ct iv ity  a n d V or tex  Pin n in g  in  Ir on -
Ba sed Su per con du ctor s CRDF Globa l OISE-1 4 -6 01 09 -0 OISE-9 5 3 1 01 1 4 7 .07 9 1 4 ,4 9 4
CRDF Globa l  T ot a l -      1 4 ,4 9 4

A BI Dev elopm en t: Dr y a d: Sca la ble & Su sta in a ble In fr a str u ctu r e for  th e 
Pu blica t ion  of Da ta Du ke Un iv er sity A g m t Da ted 4 /8 /1 5 DBI-1 1 4 7 1 6 6 4 7 .07 4 1 01 ,09 3
Du ke Univ ersit y  T ot a l -      1 01 ,09 3

NSF Illin ois Sta te Mu seu m  NEOTOMA
Illin ois Sta te Mu seu m  

Society EA R-09 4 8 6 5 2 EA R-09 4 8 6 5 2 4 7 .05 0 3 7 ,4 1 4
Ill inois St at e Mu seu m  Societ y  T ot a l -      3 7 ,4 1 4

Ma th Pa th
Ma r y la n d Pu blic 

Telev ision MPT-2 01 0-01 DUE-09 3 8 01 4 4 7 .07 6 7 ,1 3 5
Ma ry la nd Pu blic T elev ision T ot a l -      7 ,1 3 5

NEON - A qu a tic A lg a l Iden tifica t ion  a n d Ch em istr y  A n a ly ses Neon , In c. 1 01 0-2 1 6 -A QU EF-1 02 9 8 08 /1 1 3 8 1 6 0 4 7 .07 4 9 2 ,04 2
Neon , Inc. T ot a l -      9 2 ,04 2



Drexel University and Subsidiaries 
Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
National Science Foundation Research and Development Awards From Pass Through Grantors – Schedule B 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Program  T it le Pass T h rou gh  Gra nt or A gen cy  Nu m ber Federa l  ID Nu m ber
CFDA  

Nu m ber
Su brecipient  
Expendit u res

Federa l  
Expendit u res

See Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
55 

Ch ildr en  In v est ig a tin g  Scien ce w ith  Pa r en ts a n d A fter  Sch ool (CHISPA ) 
Pr ojects

Pa tr icia  a n d Ph ilip Fr ost  
Mu seu m  of Scien ce,  In c. A GR DA TE 1 2 /5 /2 01 3 DRL-1 3 2 3 5 1 6 4 7 .07 6 1 ,4 5 8

Pat ricia  a nd Ph ilip Frost  Mu seu m  of Scien ce, Inc. T ot a l -    1 ,4 5 8

Noy ce Nor th ea st  Reg ion a l Con fer en ces in  2 01 3  a n d 2 01 4

Resea r ch  Fou n da tion  of 
th e Sta te of Un iv er sity  of 

New  Yor k 1 7 0-1 1 1 3 4 6 3 -6 6 04 0 DUE-1 3 4 1 2 07 4 7 .07 6 2 1 ,2 1 6
Resea rch  Fou n da t ion  of t h e St at e of Un iv ersit y  of New York T ot al -    2 1 ,2 1 6

Pr edictor s of Su ccess in  Postsecon da r y  STEM Edu ca tion  & Em ploy m en t 
for  Stu den ts w ith  A u t ism SRI In ter n a t ion a l 5 1 -001 2 9 2 HRD-1 1 3 008 8 4 7 .07 6 1 7 ,9 1 0
SRI In t erna t iona l  T ot a l -    1 7 ,9 1 0

PIRE: Ma ppin g  Ev olu t ion a r y  Pr ocess in  th e Fa ce of Clim a te Ch a n g e: A n  
In teg r a ted A ppr oa ch  to Edu ca t ion  a n d Con ser v a tion  Pr ior it iza t ion  in  
Cen tr a l A fr ica

Th e Reg en ts of th e 
Un iv er sity  of Ca lifor n ia 2 1 5 5  G RA 9 06 IIA -1 2 4 3 5 2 4 4 7 .07 9 1 3 ,1 2 5      2 6 3 ,05 6

T h e Regent s of t h e Univ ersit y  of Californ ia  T ot a l 1 3 ,1 2 5      2 6 3 ,05 6

CIF2 1  DIBBS for  In tellig en ce a n d Secu r ity  In for m a tics Resea r ch  
Com m u n ity Un iv er sity  of A r izon a 2 2 9 7 4 9 A CI-1 4 4 3 01 9 4 7 .07 0 5 ,7 6 6
Un iv ersit y  of A rizona  T ot al -    5 ,7 6 6

A  Pr oposa l to Desig n  a  Meg a ton -Sca le Wa ter  Cer en kov  Detector  for  th e 
Deep Un der g r ou n d Scien ce a n d En g in eer in g  La b

Un iv er sity  of Ca lifor n ia ,  
Da v is SUB09 0007 6 9 -DREXEL PHY-09 1 9 5 5 0 4 7 .04 9 4 5 3

Un iv ersit y  of Ca lifornia , Dav is T ot a l -    4 5 3

NEESR: En h a n cem en t of Seism ic Per for m a n ce a n d Desig n  of Pa r t ia lly  
Gr ou ted Rein for ced Ma son r y  Bu ildin g s

Un iv er sity  of Ca lifor n ia ,  
Sa n  Dieg o 3 003 7 6 4 2 CMMI-1 2 08 2 08 4 7 .04 1 4 8 ,4 06

Use of DIC Du r in g  Seism ic Test in g  of Fu ll-Sca le Pa r t ia lly  Gr ou ted 
Ma son r y  Bu ildin gs

Un iv er sity  of Ca lifor n ia ,  
Sa n  Dieg o 3 03 7 6 4 2 CMMI-1 2 08 2 08 4 7 .04 1 8 8 2

Un iv ersit y  of Ca lifornia , Sa n Diego T ot a l -    4 9 ,2 8 8
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A  Nov el A ppr oa ch  for  Ocea n og r a ph ic Ex plor a tion s: Mu lt i-Sca le 
Modelin g  a n d Sim u la t ion  u sin g  CFD-En a bled by  A UV s Da ta

Un iv er sity  of Cen tr a l 
Flor ida 1 6 2 6 6 1 02 -01 CMMI-1 2 5 02 8 0 4 7 .04 1 6 ,4 02

Un iv ersit y  of Cent ral  Florida  T ot al -    6 ,4 02

A TD: Im pr ov in g  A n a ly sis of Micr obia l Mix tu r es th r ou g h  Spa r se 
Recon str u ction  A lg or ith m s a n d Sta t ist ica l In fer en ce Un iv er sity  of Geor g ia RR1 8 1 -2 6 7 /4 9 4 5 6 06 DMS-1 1 2 06 2 2 4 7 .04 9 3 1 ,000

Univ ersit y  of Georgia  
T ot a l -    3 1 ,000

Cost-Com pet it iv e A n a ly sis - A  New  Tool for  Desig n in g  Secu r e Sy stem s Un iv er sity  of Mich ig a n 3 002 9 8 4 2 8 4 CNS-1 3 1 8 2 9 4 4 7 .07 0 2 4 ,1 9 4
Un iv ersit y  of Mich igan  T ot a l -    2 4 ,1 9 4

Da ta Net
Un iv er sity  of Nor th  

Ca r olin a 5 -3 7 1 4 2 OCI-09 4 08 4 1 4 7 .08 0 1 4 ,2 7 4
Un iv ersit y  of Nort h  Carolina  T ot a l -    1 4 ,2 7 4

A fter Bu r n er : Efficien t  Per for m a n ce Sca lin g  v ia  Post-Ret ir em en t  
Pr ocessin g

Un iv er sity  of 
Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 5 5 8 2 2 CCF-1 01 7 1 8 4 4 7 .07 0 3 1 ,7 5 8

Un iv ersit y  of Penn sy lv an ia  T ot a l -    3 1 ,7 5 8

INSPIRE TRA CK 1 : Th e In for m a t ics of Ma kin g Un iv er sity  of Wiscon sin 4 8 9 K9 04 CMMI-1 3 4 4 2 05 4 7 .04 1 2 5 ,07 7

INSPIRE TRA CK 1 : Th e In for m a t ics of Ma kin g  (Yea r  2  a n d 3  in cr em en ts) Un iv er sity  of Wiscon sin 4 8 9 K9 04 CMMI-1 3 4 4 2 05 4 7 .04 1 1 6 ,2 07
Un iv ersit y  of Wisconsin  T ot a l -    4 1 ,2 8 4

EFRI-BSBA : Mu lt ifu n ction a l Ma ter ia ls Ex h ibit in g  Distr ibu ted A ctu a t ion ,  
Sen sin g , a n d Con tr ol: Un cov er in g  th e Hier a r ch ica l Con tr ol of Fish  for  
Dev elopin g  Sm a r ter  Ma ter ia ls

V ir g in ia  Poly tech n ic 
In st itu te A g m t  Da ted 4 /1 5 /09 ERFI-09 3 8 04 3 4 7 .04 1 2 3 ,4 5 8

V irginia  Poly t ech nic Inst it u t e T ot a l -    2 3 ,4 5 8

T ot al  Nat iona l Science Fou nda t ion  Pa ss-T h rou gh  Expendit u res $ 13,125 $ 840,526
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Pr ev a len ce,  Lev els,  a n d Su bty pes of Lister ia  
Mon ocy tog en es in  Hig h er  Risk Foods US Depa r tm en t  of A g r icu ltu r e 5 8 -1 9 3 5 -0-09 0 1 0.001 (4 ,09 7 )     
Iden t ifica t ion  of Ph en oty pic Ch a r a cter ist ics 
A ffect in g  En h a n ce Su r v iv a bility  A ssocia ted w ith  
Gr ou n d Tu r key -Sa lm on ella  Ou tbr ea k Str a in s US Depa r tm en t  of A g r icu ltu r e 5 8 -1 9 3 5 -2 -3 2 1 1 0.001 4 ,05 6  
La st  Ch a n ce Foods:  A  Model for  V a lu e-A dded Foods 
for  En ter pr ise a n d Su sta in a bility US Depa r tm en t  of A g r icu ltu r e 1 4 -LFPPX-PA -01 4 8 1 0.1 6 8 7 ,5 00    2 4 ,1 3 1    
Su pply -Side Su bsidies to Im pr ov e Food A ccess: 
Ev iden ce fr om  th e New  Ma r kets Ta x  Cr edit US Depa r tm en t  of A g r icu ltu r e 5 8 -4 000-4 -003 3 1 0.2 5 3 1 9 ,4 6 7    
Iden t ify in g  & A ddr essin g  Poten t ia l Pou ltr y  a n d Eg g  
Mish a n dlin g  Ha bits of Min or ity  Eth n ic a n d Ra cia l 
Popu la t ion s US Depa r tm en t  of A g r icu ltu r e 2 009 -5 1 1 1 0-05 8 5 3 1 0.3 03 4 ,4 8 7  
Sy n er g ist ic In ter a ct ion  betw een  Ultr a v iolet  Lig h t  
a n d Nov el Ph otosen sit izer s for  En h a n ced Micr obia l 
Sa fety  of Fr esh  Pr odu ce US Depa r tm en t  of A g r icu ltu r e 2 01 4 -6 7 01 7 -2 1 6 4 2 1 0.3 1 0 4 00    2 5 ,09 4    
Distr ibu ted On -Fa r m  Bioen er g y ,  Biofu els & 
Bioch em ica ls (Fa r m Bio3 ) Dev elopm en t  a n d 
Pr odu ct ion  v ia  In teg r a ted Ca ta ly t ic Th er m oly sis US Depa r tm en t  of A g r icu ltu r e 5 9 -1 9 3 5 -3 -002 1 0.3 1 2 6 6 ,3 6 9     1 01 ,8 02      
10 - US Depa rt m ent  of A gricu lt u re 7 4 ,2 6 9     1 7 4 ,9 4 0     

Tools for  Ev a lu a t in g  Fa u lt  Detect ion  a n d Dia g n ost ic 
Meth ods for  HV A C Secon da r y  Sy stem s of a  Net  Zer o 
Bu ildin g Na tion a l In st itu te of Sta n da r ds & Tech n olog y 6 0NA NB1 0D2 4 3 -A MEND1 1 1 .6 09 3 0,6 2 0    
Sta n da r ds in  Society ,  A  Cr it ica l Cu r r icu la r  
Pla t for m Na tion a l In st itu te of Sta n da r ds & Tech n olog y 7 0NA NB1 4 H2 4 2 1 1 .6 2 0 7 5 3  
11 - US Depa rt m ent  of Com m erce -     3 1 ,3 7 3    
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A dv er sa r ia l Lin g u ist ic A n a ly sis US Depa r tm en t  of In ter ior
D1 1 A P002 8 1 / For m er ly : 

N1 1 A P2 002 4 1 2 .9 1 0 1 3 4 ,4 07    2 1 4 ,1 7 4     
A pplied Com m u n ica t ion  a n d In for m a tion  
Netw or kin g  Pr og r a m  Pr ojects Depa r tm en t  of A r m y DA A B07 -01 -9 -L5 04 1 2 . 4 ,8 5 8     
Wa r r en  Gr ov e Bom bin g  Ra n g e In teg r a ted Na tu r a l 
Resou r ces Ma n a g em en t Depa r tm en t  of A r m y DA MD1 7 -02 -2 -004 5 1 2 .4 2 0 (9 4 )  
Ecolog ica l Stu dies a t  Wa r r en  Gr ov e Ra n g e: 
Lepidopter a  Su r v ey  a n d Mon itor in g  (Pa r t  2 )

US A r m y  Medica l Resea r ch  A cqu isit ion  
A ct iv ity DA MD1 7 -02 -2 -004 5 1 2 .4 2 0 (3 5 )  

A ctiv e A u th en tica t ion  v ia  Lin g u ist ic  Moda lit ies A ir  For ce FA 8 7 5 0-1 2 -C-02 1 2 1 2 .8 00 (2 ,8 4 6 )    
Mobile A ct iv e A u th en tica t ion  v ia  Lin g u ist ic  
Moda lit ies A ir  For ce FA 8 7 5 0-1 3 -C-02 6 8 1 2 .8 00 3 3 1 ,9 2 2    
Meta cog n it ion  a s Mu lt ita skin g : Th eor y  a n d Models 
of Str a teg ic Mu lt ita skin g  in  Com plex  Dy n a m ic 
Ta sks Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -09 -1 -009 6 1 2 .3 00 1 9 4 ,4 00    
Con tr ol Sch em e Lim it  Iden t ifica t ion  for  Sh ipboa r d 
Pow er  Sy stem s For m u la t ion  a n d Rela ted Issu es Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 0-1 -01 9 5 1 2 .3 00 (3 8 2 )    
V er t ica l Ch a r g e Or der in g  Tr a n sistor s En a bled by  
Str u ctu r a lly  Cou pled Heter oin ter fa ces Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 1 -1 -06 6 4 1 2 .3 00 1 00,5 2 0    4 7 7 ,6 7 1    
Fish  Fin s a s Mu lt ifu n ct ion a l Pr opu lsiv e a n d Sen sor y  
Sy stem s for  A u ton om ou s Oper a t ion s in  th e Com plex  
Un der w a ter  En v ir on m en t Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 2 -1 -01 6 0 1 2 .3 00 2 3 9 ,3 4 6    3 6 2 ,6 1 8    
Effects of Str ess,  Com posit ion , a n d In ter fa ce Ty pe on  
Beta -Ph a se Pr ecipita t ion  in  A l-Mg  A lloy s Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 2 -1 -05 05 1 2 .3 00 4 8 ,5 4 5   
Colla bor a t iv e Robots in  Geoph y sica l Flow s: 
Un der sta n din g  How  Loca l Mea su r em en ts Im ply  
Globa l Str u ctu r es Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 2 -1 -1 01 9 1 2 .3 00 1 00,3 5 0    
Nov el A cou st ics-ba sed Fr a m ew or k for  SHM of Na v y  
A ssets Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 3 -1 -01 4 3 1 2 .3 00 6 4 ,3 6 0   
Ion -Bea m  Sy stem  for  Fu n ction a l a n d Ox ide 
Ma ter ia ls a n d Dev ice Pr ocessin g Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 3 -1 -07 01 1 2 .3 00 2 9 5 ,000    

Mu lti-Robot  Flu id Tr a ckin g  Testbed for  DOD 
Su ppor ted Resea r ch  in  Tr a ckin g  a n d Iden t ifica t ion  
of Coh er en t  Str u ctu r es in  Geoph y sica l Flow s Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 3 -1 -07 3 1 1 2 .3 00 3 9 ,5 9 6   
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Detect ion /Pr edict ion  A lg or ith m  Dev elopm en t  a n d 
Im plem en ta t ion Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 3 -1 -07 3 3 1 2 .3 00 1 3 3 ,6 5 8    

Ex pa n sion : In  Situ  TEM Stu dies of Cou pled Dev ice 
Str u ctu r es u n der  DC Bia s: Tow a r ds a  Qu a n tita t iv e 
Un der sta n din g  of Str a in -Media ted Mech a n ism s Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 4 -1 -005 8 1 2 .3 00 1 1 0,2 5 2     
Obser v a bility  of Netw or k Con tr olled Mu lt i-
Con v er ter  Pow er  Sy stem s: For m u la t ion  a n d Rela ted 
Issu es Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 4 -1 -006 1 1 2 .3 00 2 8 5 ,2 2 0    
V isu a l Ma ter ia l Un der sta n din g  (Yea r  1  Bu dg et  
Rev ision ) Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 4 -1 -03 1 6 1 2 .3 00 1 1 7 ,4 3 3     
Iden t ifica t ion  of Fa tig u e Pr ecu r sor s for  Mu lt isca le 
NDE & Pr og n ost ics Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 4 -1 -05 7 1 1 2 .3 00 2 3 4 ,5 2 4    
In v est ig a t in g  th e Tem per a tu r e Depen den ce of 
Pr ecipita t ion -In du ced Mech a n ica l Sta bility  of 
A 1 5 4 5 6  a n d A 1 5 08 3  in  Ma r in e En v ir on m en ts Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 4 -1 -05 8 3 1 2 .3 00 3 4 ,5 08   

Per ov skite Fer r ite Ox ide Th in -Film  Epita x ia liza t ion Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 4 -1 -05 8 3 1 2 .3 00 2 2 ,8 9 3   
In str u m en ta t ion  for  Rem ote Test in g , Mon itor in g  
a n d Con tr ol of Sh ipboa r d Pow er  Sy stem  
La bor a tor ies Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 4 -1 -07 5 4 1 2 .3 00 2 ,1 7 0      
HA MS II Da ta  Fu sion Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 4 -1 -07 7 1 1 2 .3 00 1 2 ,04 3   7 2 ,3 3 9   
Neu r om ech a n ics of Sen sor y -Media ted Ga it  Con tr ol 
in  Fish  Sw im m in g Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N0001 4 -1 5 -1 -2 2 3 4 1 2 .3 00 1 ,8 6 4      
In -situ  TEM Ch a r a cter iza tion  of A l-Mg  A lloy s Na v a l Su r fa ce Wa r fa r e Cen ter N001 6 7 -1 4 -P-001 8 1 2 . 1 2 ,5 8 7   
DRC-Hu bo - Lev er a g in g  a  7  Hu bo In fr a str u ctu r e 
a n d Un ified A lg or ith m ic Fr a m ew or k for  th e DA RPA  
Robotics Ch a llen g e Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N6 5 2 3 6 -1 2 -1 -1 005 1 2 .6 3 0 6 9 0,3 1 1    7 1 9 ,9 8 9    
Seizin g  th e Th ir d Dim en sion  in  Cor r ela ted Ox ide 
Th in  Film s

Spa ce a n d Na v a l Wa r fa r e Sy stem s Cen ter  
Pa cific N6 6 001 -1 2 -1 -4 2 2 4 1 2 .9 1 0 3 4 ,6 09  3 6 ,2 1 8   
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THOR: Ta ct ica l Heter og en eou s On tolog y  
Repr esen ta t ion Office of Na v a l Resea r ch N6 6 001 -1 2 -C-4 05 2 1 2 .3 00 1 4 9 ,9 9 5    2 4 8 ,8 4 5    
Sen ior  Desig n , Na v A ir  Sy stem s Com m a n d Na v a l A ir  Sy stem s Com m a n d N6 8 3 3 5 -1 2 -P-O-1 8 8 1 2 . 1 ,4 5 4      
Sen ior  Desig n , Na v A ir  Sy stem s Com m a n d, 
A UTOMA TED NETWORKED TRA NSPORT SWA RM 
(A NTS) – HA RDWA RE Na v a l A ir  Sy stem s Com m a n d N6 8 3 3 5 -1 3 -P-02 6 5 1 2 . 3 ,3 3 9     
Sen ior  Desig n , Na v A ir  Sy stem s Com m a n d, 
A u tom a ted Netw or ked Tr a n spor t  Sw a r m  (A NTS) – 
Ha r dw a r e Na v a l A ir  Sy stem s Com m a n d N6 8 3 3 5 -1 4 -P-03 5 5 1 2 . 1 ,2 6 9      
Pr ototy pe Dev elopm en t  Pr og r a m Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W1 5 P7 T-06 -9 -P01 1 1 2 . 8 00,5 4 2    8 2 4 ,5 5 8    

Mu -Opioid Reg u la t ion  of Mu cosa l Im m u n ity  A g a in st  
Clostr idiu m  Difficile In fect ion  a n d V a ccin a t ion

US A r m y  Medica l Resea r ch  A cqu isit ion  
A ct iv ity W8 1 XWH-09 -1 -03 8 2 1 2 .4 2 0 (5 ,04 6 )    

A n  A n im a l Model to In v est ig a te th e Poten t ia l for  
Br ea st  Ca n cer  Meta sta t ic Dissem in a t ion  Follow in g  
Su r g er y  In ter v en t ion  on  th e Pr im it iv e Tu m or Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W8 1 XWH-09 -1 -05 9 3 1 2 . (1 9 ,2 8 3 )     
Iden t ifica t ion  of th e Gen e for  Scler oder m a  in  th e 
Tsk/2  Mou se Str a in : Im plica t ion s for  Hu m a n  
Scler oder m a  Pa th og en esis a n d Su bset  Dist in ct ion s

US A r m y  Medica l Resea r ch  A cqu isit ion  
A ct iv ity W8 1 XWH-1 1 -1 -05 2 4 1 2 .4 2 0 (3 ,07 1 )    

A llev ia t in g  A u ton om ic Dy sr eflex ia  a fter  Spin a l 
Cor d In ju r y Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W8 1 XWH-1 4 -1 -06 05 1 2 .4 2 0 1 2 9 ,08 7    

Ea r ly  Dia g n osis of Pr essu r e Ulcer s by  Non in v a siv e 
Diffu se Nea r  In fr a r ed a n d Cor r ela t ion  Spectr oscopy Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W8 1 XWH-1 4 -1 -06 1 4 1 2 .4 2 0 6 2 ,3 3 2   
New  Rou tes for  Str u ctu r a l,  Or bita l,  a n d Ma g n et ic 
Con tr ol in  Isov a len t  Ox ide Su per la tt ices Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 N4 NF-1 5 -1 -01 3 3 1 2 .4 3 1 1 0,9 2 8   
Mu ltisca le Sy n th esis,  Modelin g  a n d Desig n  of Hig h  
Per for m a n ce Poly m er  Sy stem s Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-06 -2 -001 3 1 2 .4 3 1 1 06 ,4 9 1     
Sm a r t  Cor e-Sh ell Na n ow ir e A r ch itectu r es for  
Mu ltifu n ct ion a l Na n osca led Dev ices Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-08 -1 -006 7 1 2 .4 3 1 (2 ,7 1 9 )    
Use of Sph er ica l Na n oin den ta t ion  to Ch a r a cter ize 
th e A n isotr opic Pr oper t ies of Micr osca le 
Con st itu en ts

US A r m y  Medica l Resea r ch  A cqu isit ion  
A ct iv ity W9 1 1 NF-1 0-1 -04 09 1 2 .4 3 1 3 ,7 9 1     3 ,7 9 1      
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A u toig n it ion  Ch em istr y  of Su r r og a te Fu el 
Com pon en ts in  a n  En g in e En v ir on m en t

US A r m y  Medica l Resea r ch  A cqu isit ion  
A ct iv ity W9 1 1 NF-1 1 -1 -04 1 2 1 2 .4 3 1 1 1 3 ,5 4 3     

Micr obior obots for  Ma n ipu la t ion  a n d Sen sin g Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 1 -1 -04 9 0 1 2 .4 3 1 1 3 ,7 2 0   6 4 ,03 2   
Na n ocr y sta llin e MA X/Mg  Com posites w ith  
Ex cept ion a l Pr oper ties Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 1 -1 -05 2 5 1 2 .4 3 1 8 5 ,03 7   
Sy m m etr y  Mism a tch ed Heter ostr u ctu r es: New  
Rou tes to Ba n dw idth  Con tr ol in  Ox ides Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 2 -1 -01 3 2 1 2 .4 3 1 8 7 ,6 2 4   
A b In it io Desig n  of Non cen tr osy m m etr ic Meta ls: 
Cr y sta l En g in eer in g  in  Ox ide Heter ostr u ctu r es Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 2 -1 -01 3 3 1 2 .4 3 1 2 8 ,2 2 8   
Cen ter  for  Su sta in a ble Cor r osion  Pr otect ion Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 3 -2 -004 6 1 2 .4 3 1 1 5 9 ,5 9 1    6 4 3 ,8 06    
Sty lom etr y  of Sou r ce Code Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 4 -1 -04 4 4 1 2 .4 3 1 2 8 ,2 6 6   
Sca n n in g  Pr obe Micr oscope for  Poly m er ic a n d 
Hy br id Ma ter ia ls Resea r ch  a n d Edu ca t ion Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 4 -1 -04 5 0 1 2 .4 3 1 2 3 2 ,8 04    
En a blin g  In str u m en ta t ion  for  Epita x ia l Gr ow th  of 
Com plex  Ox ides Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 4 -1 -04 9 3 1 2 .4 3 1 7 5 ,7 8 5   
V a ca n cy -En a bled Non Lin ea r  Optoelectr on ic 
Fer r oelectr ic Sem icon du ctor s Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 4 -1 -05 00 1 2 .4 3 1 4 3 ,6 9 3   
A r m y  Resea r ch  Office Br oa d A g en cy  
A n n ou n cem en t  for  Ba sic a n d A pplied Scien t ific  
Resea r ch Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 4 -1 -05 6 8 1 2 .4 3 1 3 7 ,2 2 1   
Hig h  Per for m a n ce Tech n iqu es to Iden t ify  Sou r ce of 
Dig ita l Im a g es Usin g  Mu ltim edia  For en sics Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 5 -2 -001 3 1 2 .4 3 1 6 0,8 8 9   
SERDP MDA -Fr ee Poly im ides Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 1 NF-1 5 -2 -001 7 1 2 .4 3 1 3 0,7 6 8   
Deter m in a t ion  of Ger m in a t ion  a n d Micr oh a bita t  
Requ ir em en ts a n d Role of Distu r ba n ce on  
Kn iesker n 's Bea ked Ru sh  (Rh y n ch ospor a  
Kn iesker n ii) a t  Wa r r en  Gr ov e Ra n g e,  New  Jer sey Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 2 6 G-1 1 -2 -004 1 1 2 .3 00 3 7 ,5 8 3   

Non  Destr u ct iv e A ppr oa ch  For  Da m a g e Detect ion  
a n d Its Ev olu t ion  in  Ha r d A r m or  Pr otect iv e In ser ts Depa r tm en t  of A r m y W9 1 CRB-1 3 -P-005 7 1 2 . 1 1 5 ,4 2 1     
Ser v er less Ser v ices Tech n ica l Su ppor t Na v a l Resea r ch  La bor a tor y N001 7 3 -1 4 -P-3 3 6 2 1 2 . 7 5 ,006   
12 - US Depa rt m ent  of Defen se 2 ,3 3 8 ,8 7 5    7 ,03 5 ,4 7 3    
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Th e Effect  of Open  Ma r sh  Wa ter  Ma n a g em en t  
Floodin g  (OMWM) & A ccr et ion  in  Coa sta l Wetla n ds US Fish  a n d Wildlife Ser v ice 5 01 8 1 -A -J002 1 5 .6 08 1 ,1 6 1  

Th e Effect  of Open  Ma r sh  Wa ter  Ma n a g em en t  
Floodin g  (OMWM) & A ccr et ion  in  Coa sta l Wetla n ds US Fish  a n d Wildlife Ser v ice F1 1 A C002 7 4 1 5 .6 08 2 ,2 2 3     
Biodiv er sity  Con ser v a t ion  on  Bioko Isla n d, 
Equ a tor ia l Gu in ea US Fish  a n d Wildlife Ser v ice F1 3 A P005 06 1 5 .6 5 1 2 0,3 1 5   
Ter r estr ia l In v er tebr a te Bio Blitz Na tion a l Pa r k Ser v ice P1 1 A C3 08 05 /P1 4 A C004 1 4 1 5 .9 4 5 1 0,4 4 3   
Pa leoecolog ica l A ssessm en t  of Post-Sa n dy  Ch a n g es 
in  Coa sta l Con ta m in a n ts Un ited Sta tes Geolog ica l Su r v ey G1 4 PX0003 6 1 5 . 2 2 ,1 05   
USGS Missou r i Sa m ple A n a ly sis-Yea r  3 Un ited Sta tes Geolog ica l Su r v ey G1 1 PX009 7 0 1 5 . 3 ,006     
Ba r n eg a t  Ba y  Sedim en t  A n a ly sis Un ited Sta tes Geolog ica l Su r v ey G1 3 PX005 4 8 1 5 . 1 4 ,1 4 3   
2 01 3  Milw a u kee Metr opolita n  Sew er a g e Distr ict  
Per iph y ton  Sa m ple A n a ly ses (1 8  sa m ples) Un ited Sta tes Geolog ica l Su r v ey G1 3 PX01 5 05 1 5 . 5 01      
15 - Depa rt m ent  of t h e Int erior -  7 3 ,8 9 7   

A n a ly t ica l a n d Ex per im en ta l Stu dies on  
A ir w or th in ess a n d Su sta in m en t  of A ir cr a ft  
Str u ctu r es Feder a l A v ia t ion  A dm in istr a t ion 1 0-G-01 6 2 0.1 08 1 6 9 ,8 4 6    
Rotor cr a ft  Hea lth  a n d Utiliza t ion  Mon itor in g  
Sy stem s Resea r ch  in  Su ppor t  of Pr og r a m s, Su ch  a s 
Con tin u ed A ir w or th in ess a n d Sy stem s Sa fety Feder a l A v ia t ion  A dm in istr a t ion 1 3 -G-002 2 0.1 08 3 2 ,7 06   
Pr og r a m  Ma n a g em en t  Ta sk u n der  FA A  Nex t  Ben  
OTA #DTFA CT-1 2 -A -8 0003 -001 Feder a l A v ia t ion  A dm in istr a t ion DTFA CT-1 2 -A -8 0003 2 0.1 09 3 1 ,3 1 7   
iOTA  Ta sk 6 : Cu r r a t ion /Stew a r dsh ip of Tech n ica l 
Da ta Feder a l A v ia t ion  A dm in istr a t ion DTFA CT-1 2 -A -8 0003 2 0.1 09 3 9 ,4 2 4   
FA A  Ta sk 7 : Dev elopm en t a n d v a lida t ion  of 
en h a n ced A GENTFLY sim u la t ion  pla t for m  w ith  
A TC a g en t Feder a l A v ia t ion  A dm in istr a t ion DTFA CT-1 2 -A -8 0003 2 0.1 09 1 09 ,7 7 5    1 2 0,7 8 4    
Ta sk 9 : Dev elopm en t  of th e EEG Neu r oer g on om ics 
Toolbox Feder a l A v ia t ion  A dm in istr a t ion DTFA CT-1 2 -A -8 0003 2 0.1 09 9 4 ,6 9 4  9 9 ,4 7 9   
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Ta sk Or der  #8 : Pa r t icipa t ion  in  Hu m a n  Fa ctor s 
Resea r ch  - Ta sk Or der  #8 Feder a l A v ia t ion  A dm in istr a t ion DTFA CT-1 2 -A -8 0003 2 0. 9 1 5      

Low -Pow er ed Wir ed Sen sor s for  A sset  Ma n a g em en t  
or  Hea lth  Mon itor in g  of Str u ctu r es a n d Pa v em en ts Feder a l Hig h w a y  A dm in istr a t ion DTFH6 1 -1 3 -C-0002 1 2 0. 5 0,3 8 9  1 9 4 ,5 4 7    
20 - Depa rt m ent  of T ransport a t ion 2 5 4 ,8 5 8    6 8 9 ,01 8    

A  Nex t  Gen er a t ion  Cor on a l A ct iv e Reg ion  Model Na tion a l A er on a u tics & Spa ce A dm in istr a t ion NNX07 A U6 4 G 4 3 .001 (1 4 ,2 9 4 )     
A  Nex t  Gen er a t ion  Cor on a l A ct iv e Reg ion  Model Na tion a l A er on a u tics & Spa ce A dm in istr a t ion NNX07 A U6 4 G 4 3 .001 (2 6 ,5 6 1 )     
Th e Ult im a te Mu lt iw a v elen g th  Qu a sa r  Su r v ey Na tion a l A er on a u tics & Spa ce A dm in istr a t ion NNX1 2 A I4 9 G 4 3 .001 1 5 ,3 4 3   5 8 ,2 7 3   
Im pr ov em en t  of Nu m er ica l A lg or ith m s for  th e 1 D 
Hy dr ody n a m ic Code A RGOS Na tion a l A er on a u tics & Spa ce A dm in istr a t ion NNX1 2 A P6 5 G 4 3 .001 4 2 ,7 2 1   
Pr obin g  A GN A ccr et ion  Ph y sics w ith  Kepler Na tion a l A er on a u tics & Spa ce A dm in istr a t ion NNX1 4 A F7 5 G 4 3 .001 6 7 ,5 5 1   
 For m a tion  a n d Hier a r ch ica l A ssem bly  of Ma ssiv e 
Sta r  Clu ster s Na tion a l A er on a u tics & Spa ce A dm in istr a t ion NNX1 4 A P2 7 G 4 3 .001 3 6 ,6 5 3   
Usin g  X-Ra y s to Test  for  Bla ck Hole Ma ss Bia ses Sm ith son ia n  A str oph y sica l Obser v a tor y NA S8 -03 06 0 4 3 .001 1 6 ,2 3 4   
Na n osecon d Pla sm a  BTC Con cept  Pr oof-of-Con cept Jet  Pr opu lsion  La bor a tor y  (NA SA ) NNN1 2 A A 01 C 4 3 .001 2 6 ,07 9   
Ma g n etog r a m  Sy n th esis - A  V ita l Da ta  A n a ly sis 
Com pon en t  of a  Spa ce Wea th er  Pr edict ion  
In fr a str u ctu r e Na tion a l A er on a u tics & Spa ce A dm in istr a t ion NNX08 A F5 4 G 4 3 .002 7 5 ,1 2 7   
SpIES: Th e Spitzer -IRA C Equ a tor ia l Su r v ey Jet  Pr opu lsion  La bor a tor y  (NA SA ) NNN1 2 A A 01 C 4 3 .008 1 5 0,03 2    
Dev elopm en t  a n d Modifica t ion  of Nu m er ica l 
A lg or ith m s for  1 D Hy dr ody n a m ics a n d 3 D 
Ma g n etoh y dr ody n a m ics A da ptiv e-Mesh  Refin em en t  
Codes Na tion a l A er on a u tics & Spa ce A dm in istr a t ion NNX09 A Q6 7 G 4 3 . 2 0,2 6 5   
43 - Nat iona l A erona u t ics a nd Spa ce 
A dm inist ra t ion 1 5 ,3 4 3   4 5 2 ,08 0    

Effects of Self Book A r t  Th er a py  on  Em otion a l 
Distr ess in  Fem a le Ca n cer  Pa t ien ts Na tion a l En dow m en t  for  th e A r ts 1 4 -3 8 00-7 007 4 5 .02 4 1 4 ,5 7 9   
Tea ch in g  th e Histor y  of Moder n  Desig n : Th e Ca n on  
a n d Bey on d Na tion a l En dow m en t  for  th e Hu m a n it ies EH-5 04 2 4 -1 4 4 5 .1 6 3 2 3 ,5 6 8   
IMLS En tom olog y  Dig it iza t ion  Pr oject In stitu te of Mu seu m  a n d Libr a r y  Ser v ices MA -05 -1 0-0001 -1 0 4 5 .3 01 (1 1 ,3 09 )      
Ch a n g in g  A tt itu des Tow a r ds A u tism s A ccess In stitu te of Mu seu m  a n d Libr a r y  Ser v ices MA -04 -1 2 -0009 -1 2 4 5 .3 01 6 7 ,2 9 9   
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Helpin g  Libr a r ies to Ha r n ess th e Pow er  of Socia l 
Sea r ch in g In stitu te of Mu seu m  a n d Libr a r y  Ser v ices LG-06 -1 1 -02 6 1 -1 1 4 5 .3 1 2 1 04 ,07 7    

Im pr ov in g  Sea r ch , Sen sem a kin g , Lea r n in g , a n d 
Socia l Ta g g in g  Th r ou g h  a  Un iv er sa l A pplia n ce for  
Qu er y  Ex pa n sion  a n d Mea n in g fu l Con cept Displa y s In stitu te of Mu seu m  a n d Libr a r y  Ser v ices LG-06 -1 1 -03 3 2 -1 1 4 5 .3 1 2 4 0,8 3 7  7 4 ,9 6 7   
Dig g in g  in to Meta da ta In stitu te of Mu seu m  a n d Libr a r y  Ser v ices LG-00-1 2 -04 5 7 -1 2 4 5 .3 1 2 2 1 ,02 7   
CLUES-IMLS-YR3  (2 01 1 -2 01 2 ) In stitu te of Mu seu m  a n d Libr a r y  Ser v ices LG-2 6 -09 -01 2 5 -09 4 5 .3 1 2 1 1 ,2 1 6    
Mu seu m s Cou n t  Resea r ch  & Pr oject  Dev elopm en t In stitu te of Mu seu m  a n d Libr a r y  Ser v ices OE-00-1 4 -0001 -1 4 4 5 .3 1 2 3 7 ,2 6 3   
Posit ion in g  a  New  Gen er a t ion  of Ca ta log in g  a n d 
Meta da ta  Pr ofession a ls for  2 1 st  Cen tu r y  Globa l 
In for m a tion  A ccess In stitu te of Mu seu m  a n d Libr a r y  Ser v ices RE-06 -1 4 -0002 -1 4 4 5 .3 1 3 1 2 4 ,07 6    
Th e Or a l Pr esen t ,  Ur ba n  Libr a r y  Ser v ices,  a n d th e 
Un der ser v ed In stitu te of Mu seu m  a n d Libr a r y  Ser v ices RE-07 -1 4 -005 1 -1 4 4 5 .3 1 3 7 9 ,4 8 1   

45 - Inst it u t e of Mu seu m  a nd Library  Scien ces 4 0,8 3 7  5 4 6 ,2 4 4    

V A  Web OSCE US Depa r tm en t  of V eter a n s A ffa ir s V A 7 7 7 -C4 7 04 6 6 4 . 5 ,6 2 5     
64 - US Depart m ent  of V et era ns A ffa irs -  5 ,6 2 5     

Lig h tw eig h t  Gr een  Roof Wa ter  Reten t ion  Sy stem US En v ir on m en ta l Pr otect ion  A g en cy SU-8 3 5 06 6 01 -0 6 6 .5 1 6 (8 07 )    
66 - US Dept  of En v iron m ent a l Prot ect ion  
A gency -  (8 07 )    

For m er  Pa n tex  Wor ker  Medica l Su r v eilla n ce 
Pr og r a m  - Ph a se II US Depa r tm en t  of En er g y DE-FC01 -06 EH06 003 8 1 .04 9 1 7 0,04 8    2 7 6 ,6 9 1    
Low  Tem per a tu r e Sy n th esis of Ca r bide-Der iv ed-
Ca r bon s fr om  Bin a r y  a n d Ter n a r y  Ca r bides in  th e 
Si-Ti-C Sy stem : Ex per im en ts a n d Modelin g US Depa r tm en t  of En er g y DE-FG02 -07 ER4 6 4 7 3 8 1 .04 9 9 5 ,5 4 8   
Neu tr in o Ph y sics: Ta sk A  Ph y sics a t  Ka m LA ND a n d 
Dou ble Ch ooz US Depa r tm en t  of En er g y DE-FG02 -00ER4 1 1 3 4 8 1 .04 9 (3 9 0)    
Lin kin g  th e Codepen den ce of Gr a in  Bou n da r y  
Str u ctu r e a n d Den sity  to Defect  Ev olu t ion  
Mech a n ism s Du r in g  Ra dia tion  Da m a g e US Depa r tm en t  of En er g y DE-SC0008 2 7 4 8 1 .04 9 1 6 2 ,9 1 8     
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Neu tr in o Ph y sics a t  Dr ex el US Depa r tm en t  of En er g y DE-SC001 1 8 03 8 1 .04 9 9 8 ,3 3 7   
81 - US Depa rt m ent  of Energy 1 7 0,04 8    6 3 3 ,1 04    

En g in eer s a s Globa l Lea der s in  En er g y  
Su sta in a bility  (EA GLES) US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca t ion P1 1 6 J1 0003 7 8 4 .1 1 6 3 3 ,2 5 6  7 9 ,1 6 8   
Gr a du a te A ssista n tsh ips in  th e A r ea s of Na t ion a l 
Need in  Biom edica l A pplica t ion s in  En g in eer in g US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca t ion P2 00A 06 01 3 8 8 4 .2 00 (7 0,3 8 1 )     
GA A NN: En g in eer in g  Pr oblem s in  Ph a r m a ceu tica l 
A pplica t ion  (GA A NN-EPPA ) US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca t ion P2 00A 09 01 1 8 8 4 .2 00 7 ,5 5 8     
GA A NN for  Ren ew a ble En er g y  Tech n olog ies a n d 
In fr a str u ctu r e Netw or k US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca t ion P2 00A 1 001 1 7 8 4 .2 00 2 9 ,03 6   
GA A NN: In ter disciplin a r y  Tr a in in g  in  Mech a n ica l 
En g in eer in g  a n d Scien ce US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca t ion P2 00A 1 001 4 5 8 4 .2 00 (5 9 3 )    
GA A NN: DREA MS US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca t ion P2 00A 1 001 3 4 8 4 .2 00 8 3 ,7 4 0   

GA A NN 2 01 2 : Bioin for m a tics of In fect iou s Disea ses US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca t ion P2 00A 1 2 01 6 1 -1 3 8 4 .2 00 1 8 0,3 3 5    
GA A NN BIOMSE: In n ov a t iv e Biom a ter ia ls US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca t ion P2 00A 1 2 01 03 -1 4 8 4 .2 00 1 1 6 ,9 4 2     
GA A NN: Gr a du a te Fellow sh ips in  Edu ca t ion  w ith  a  
Focu s on  th e Na t ion a l A ca dem y  of En g in eer in g  
Gr a n d Ch a llen g es US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca t ion P2 00A 1 2 02 5 3 8 4 .2 00 1 4 1 ,3 8 5     
84 - US Depart m ent  of Edu cat ion 3 3 ,2 5 6  5 6 7 ,1 9 0    

Un der sta n din g  Cu ltu r e:  A ssessin g  Fir efig h ter  
Sa fety  Clim a te FEMA EMW-2 01 1 -FP-0006 9 9 7 .04 4 2 0,3 3 5  4 08 ,7 00    
FIRST-Relia bility  Stu dy FEMA EMW-2 01 2 -FP-002 05 9 7 .04 4 2 6 0,2 6 3    
97 - FEMA 2 0,3 3 5  6 6 8 ,9 6 3    

T ot al  Ot h er Direct  Research  an d Dev elopm en t  
Expendit u res 2,947,821$      10,877,100$       
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Lig n ocellu losic Biom a ss Con v er sion  to 
In fr a str u ctu r e Com pa t ible Fu els,  Pr odu cts a n d 
Pow er Cer a m a tec LETTER DA TED 3 /2 1 /1 3 2 01 2 -1 0008 -2 02 6 3 1 0.3 1 2 2 8 ,03 1  1 1 8 ,5 3 4         
Cera m a t ec T ot a l 2 8 ,03 1  1 1 8 ,5 3 4         

Nor th ea st  W oody /Wa r m -sea son  Biom a ss 
Con sor t iu m Pen n  Sta te Un iv er sity 4 9 00-DU-USDA -9 7 03 2 01 2 -6 8 005 -1 9 7 03 1 0.3 1 0 5 3 ,3 9 7    
Pen n St a t e Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -   5 3 ,3 9 7    

NRI: Sm a ll: Colla bor a t iv e Resea r ch : A u tom a ted 
Str ess a n d Disea se Detect ion  in  V eg eta ble a n d Tr ee 
Cr ops u sin g  a  Cooper a tiv e Gr ou n d a n d A er ia l 
V eh icle Netw or k a n d Optica l Sen sor s Un iv er sity  of Cen tr a l Flor ida 1 6 2 6 6 1  1 0-02 2 01 3 -6 7 02 1 -2 09 3 4 1 0.3 1 0 5 ,9 9 3      
Un iv ersit y  of Cen t ra l  Florida  T ot a l -   5 ,9 9 3      

Ch ildh ood Str ess:  A  Qu a lita t iv e A n a ly sis of th e 
In ter g en er a tion a l Cir cu m sta n ces of Ch ild Hu n g er

Un iv er sity  of Ken tu cky  Resea r ch  
Fou n da t ion 3 04 8 1 08 6 7 3 -1 2 6 5 9 A G-3 1 9 8 -B-1 0-002 8 1 0.5 9 2 3 6     

Un iv ersit y  of Kent u cky  Resea rch  Fou n da t ion 
T ot a l -   3 6     

10 - US Depa rt m ent  of A gricu lt u re 2 8 ,03 1  1 7 7 ,9 6 0        

Nor th ea st  Ur ba n  Reg ion a l In teg r a ted Scien ce 
A ssessm en t Colu m bia  Un iv er sity GG001 9 5 9 NA 1 0OA R4 3 1 02 1 2 1 1 .4 3 1 5 5 ,7 7 2    
Colu m bia  Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -   5 5 ,7 7 2    

PA  CZM Nu tr ien t  Upta ke a n d Bu r ia l,  Tida l W etla n dsPA  Depa r tm en t of En v ir on m en ta l Pr otect ion 7 C-K-4 6 0/CZ1 :2 01 1 -PD.1 0 SA P#4 1 0005 7 5 6 8 1 1 . (5 ,05 6 )     
PA  Depa rt m ent  of En v ironm en t a l Prot ect ion T ot a l -   (5 ,05 6 )     

2 01 1  PA  CZM Mu ssel Restor a tion Pa r tn er sh ip for  th e Dela w a r e Estu a r y PDE 1 9 2 -02 4 1 0005 4 3 9 6 1 1 .4 1 9 (4 2 )   
PDE PA  CZ Mu ssels 2 01 2 Pa r tn er sh ip for  th e Dela w a r e Estu a r y 2 06 S-01 /JOB#6 8 7 -0000 2 01 1 -P.D.04 SPA #4 1 0005 7 5 7 0 1 1 .4 2 0 2 ,4 8 6      
Pa rt n ersh ip for  t h e Dela wa re Est u a ry  T ot a l -   2 ,4 4 4      
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Th e In flu en ce of Estu a r y  Geom or ph olog y  - Yea r  2 New  Jer sey  Sea  Gr a n t  Con sor t iu m 6 9 4 -7 9 00-7 5 5 3 NA 1 0A R4 1 7 007 5 1 1 . 2 9 ,2 9 3   
New Jersey  Sea  Gra nt  Con sort iu m  T ot a l -   2 9 ,2 9 3   

11 - Depa rt m ent  of Com m erce -   8 2 ,4 5 3   

SISTO A pplied Com m u n ica t ion  Ser v ices 2 01 2 01 5 S N001 4 -1 2 -C-03 7 7 1 2 .3 00 2 9 ,06 5   
A pplied Com m u n icat ion Serv ices T ot a l -   2 9 ,06 5   

Beh a v ior -Ba sed A ccess Con tr ol to Im pr ov e Cr oss 
Dom a in  Sh a r in g BBN Tech n olog ies 1 4 08 2 FA 8 7 5 0-1 2 -C-001 1 1 2 .8 00 4 2 ,1 02   
BBN T ech nologies T ot a l -   4 2 ,1 02   

Hig h  A ssu r a n ce Spir a l:  Sca la ble a n d Per for m a n ce 
Por ta ble Dom a in -Specific Con tr ol Sy stem s Sy n th esis Ca r n eg ie Mellon  Un iv er sity 1 1 5 01 1 2 -2 9 2 6 4 6  MOD 6 FA 8 7 5 0-1 2 -2 -02 9 1 1 2 .3 00 1 04 ,8 8 3   
Ca rn egie Mellon  Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -   1 04 ,8 8 3   

Com pu ta t ion a l Model for  Electr ode Er osion  by  Hig h -
Pr essu r e Mov in g  A r cs, Ph a se II CFD Resea r ch  Cor por a t ion 2 01 2 05 3 2 FA 9 5 5 0-1 4 -C-002 6 1 2 . 7 8 ,8 2 3   
CFD Resea rch  Corporat ion  T ot al -   7 8 ,8 2 3   

Effect  of RDX on  Neu r on a l Ca lciu m  Hom eosta sis a n d 
Neu r otox icity Con cu r r en t  Tech n olog ies Cor por a t ion 1 004 0003 0 W 9 1 W A W 09 D002 2 1 2 . (2 4 ,1 4 7 )    
Con cu rrent  T ech n ologies Corpora t ion  T ot al -   (2 4 ,1 4 7 )    

FUSION : Feder a ted Un der sta n din g  of Secu r ity  
In for m a tion  Ov er  Netw or ks Dig ita l Oper a t iv es 1 8 8 8 1 PRIME#1 4 -C-002 9 1 2 .8 00 6 8 ,5 2 1   
Digit al  Opera t iv es T ot a l -   6 8 ,5 2 1   

Por ta ble Nea r  In fr a r ed Field Tr ia g e a n d 
Resu scita t ion  A id Tech n olog y  for  Com ba t  Ca su a lty  
Ca r e: In teg r a ted In fr a sca n n er In fr a Sca n , In c. A g m t Da ted 1 0/1 5 /1 4 W9 1 1 QY-1 4 -C-008 2 1 2 . 6 1 3 ,9 6 9   
Infra Sca n , Inc. T ot al -   6 1 3 ,9 6 9   
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A ssessin g  a n d Mon itor in g  Su bt le Cog n it iv e Ma r ker s Ma ssa ch u setts In st itu te of Tech n olog y 5 7 1 0003 5 5 0 D1 3 A P00008 1 2 .9 1 0 3 ,03 9   
Massa ch u set t s Inst it u t e of T ech nology  T ot a l -   3 ,03 9   

In du str ia l Pr odu ct ion  Meth ods for  Ultr a -Hig h -
Str en g th  Ca r bon  Na n otu be-Ba sed Fiber s Ph y sica l Scien ce In cor por a ted PSI 6 4 2 2 W9 1 2 HZ-1 3 -P-002 3 1 2 .1 1 4 (4 7 8 )    
Ph y sica l  Scien ce Incorpora t ed T ot a l -   (4 7 8 )    

Pr in ted, Flex ible Ultr a ca pa citor s Ba sed on  Nov el,  
Hig h -Per for m a n ce Ca r bon  Na n om a ter ia ls S1 2  Tech n olog ies, In c. SI2 -2 01 3 -2 05 4 -001 W 1 5 QKN1 4 -C-001 2 1 2 .1 1 4 (1 0,4 5 2 )    
Pr in ted, Flex ible Ultr a ca pa citor s Ba sed on  Nov el,  
Hig h -Per for m a n ce Ca r bon  Na n om a ter ia ls S1 2  Tech n olog ies, In c. S1 2 -2 01 5 -2 06 4 -001 W 1 5 QKN-1 5 -C-00007 1 2 . 8 8 6  
S12 T ech nologies, Inc. T ot al -   (9 ,5 6 6 )    

Ma n ipu la t ion  of Ch ir a l Ch a r g e Den sity  Wa v es Tem ple Un iv er sity 2 5 5 5 2 6 W 9 1 1 NF-1 4 -1 -05 6 7 1 2 .4 3 1 2 5 ,000   
A r t ificia l Ox ide Heter ostr u ctu r es w ith  Tu n a ble 
Ba n d Ga p Tem ple Un iv er sity 2 5 3 3 8 8 FA 9 5 5 0-1 3 -1 -01 2 4 1 2 .8 00 5 2 ,1 4 4   
T em ple Un iv ersit y  T ot al -   7 7 ,1 4 4   

Br a in -Im m u n e In ter a ct ion s a s th e Ba sis of Gu lf Wa r  
Illn ess: Gu lf Wa r  Illn ess Con sor t iu m Tr u stees of Boston  Un iv er sity 4 5 00001 3 9 8 W 8 1 XWH-1 3 -2 -007 2 1 2 .4 2 0 1 1 7 ,6 8 5    
T ru st ees of Bost on  Univ ersit y  T ot al -   1 1 7 ,6 8 5    

Ov er h ea d Per for m a n ce Tr a deoffs in  Distr ibu ted 
Wir eless Netw or ks: A  Un ify in g  Fr a m ew or k,  
Fu n da m en ta l Lim its,  a n d Pr a ct ica l Con tr oller s Un iv er sity  of Dela w a r e 2 8 7 5 0 FA 9 5 5 0-1 2 -1 -008 6 1 2 .8 00 5 8 8 ,4 8 2   
Ma ter ia ls in  Ex tr em e En v ir on m en ts (MEDE) 
Colla bor a t iv e Resea r ch  A llia n ce (CRA ) Un iv er sity  of Dela w a r e 2 9 6 1 3 W9 1 1 NF-1 2 -2 -002 2 1 2 .6 3 0 1 3 0,4 1 9    
Ma ter ia ls in  Ex tr em e Dy n a m ic En v ir on m en t  
(MEDE) Colla bor a t iv e Resea r ch  A llia n ce (CRA ) CLIN 
3 .5 Un iv er sity  of Dela w a r e 3 8 6 6 0 W9 1 1 NF-1 2 -2 -002 2 1 2 .6 3 0 7 9 ,8 9 4   
Un iv ersit y  of Delawa re T ot a l -   7 9 8 ,7 9 5   
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WP2 1 : Heter og en eou s Robot  Tea m s for  Ma ppin g  3 -D 
In door  En v ir on m en ts Un iv er sity  of Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 08 5 8 W9 1 1 NF-08 -2 -0004 1 2 . 6 7 ,6 9 0   
Mem or y  En h a n cem en t  w ith  Modelin g ,  
Electr oph y siolog y ,  a n d St im u la tion  (MEMES) Un iv er sity  of Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 4 000 N6 6 001 -1 4 -2 -4 -3 1 1 2 .9 1 0 8 1 ,3 6 1   
Un der sta n din g  th e Ph otov olta ic Efficien cy  of 
Or g a n om eta llic  Per ov skites Un iv er sity  of Pen n sy lv a n ia 5 6 4 8 1 7 N0001 4 -1 4 -1 -07 6 1 1 2 .3 00 1 00,9 4 4   
Un iv ersit y  of Penn sy lv a nia  T ot a l -   2 4 9 ,9 9 5   

Dev elopm en t  of Deta iled a n d Redu ced Kin et ic 
Mech a n ism s for  Su r r og a tes of Petr oleu m -Der iv ed 
a n d Sy n th et ic Jet  Fu els: Ph a se II Un iv er sity  of Sou th er n  Ca lifor n ia 1 6 2 2 5 8 FA 9 5 5 0-1 1 -1 -02 1 7 1 2 .8 00 1 6 ,6 6 8   
Un iv ersit y  of Sou t h ern Ca liforn ia  T ot a l -   1 6 ,6 6 8   

Per for m a n ce Est im a tion  a n d Optim iza t ion  of 
REDHA W K SDR A pplica t ion s: Ta sk2 V en tu r a  Solu t ion s,  In c. 1 04 4 -2 0/TTO1 3 -01 H9 8 2 3 01 1 C07 8 1 1 2 . 3 2 ,4 3 7   
V ent u ra  Solu t ion s, In c. T ot a l -   3 2 ,4 3 7   

V er sa r  2 01 4 V er sa r 009 2 7 5 W9 1 2 BU-1 3 -C-001 6 1 2 . 1 4 ,2 4 0   
V ersa r T ot al -   1 4 ,2 4 0   

12 - US Depart m ent  of Defen se -   2 ,2 1 3 ,1 7 5    

Sch ool Ju st ice Colla bor a t ion  Pr og r a m :  Keepin g  Kids 
in  Sch ool a n d ou t  of Cou r t City  of Ph ila delph ia Letter  Da ted 1 /1 6 /1 5 2 01 4 -JZ-FX-K003 1 6 .8 2 9 2 8 ,7 1 1   
Cit y  of Ph iladelph ia  T ot a l -   2 8 ,7 1 1   

Cen ter  for  Pen n sy lv a n ia  CJ Pr og r a m s
Pen n sy lv a n ia  Com m ission  on  Cr im e a n d 

Delin qu en cy 01 1 /2 01 2 -JG/MH-03 ST-2 4 9 2 31 1 -DJ-BX-2 2 1 8 ; 2 0% 2 01 3 -DJ-B 1 6 .7 3 8 2 5 ,09 9    1 8 1 ,5 4 1    
Pen n sy lv an ia  Com m ission  on Crim e a n d 
Delin qu en cy  T ot a l 2 5 ,09 9    1 8 1 ,5 4 1    

16 - US Depart m ent  of Ju st ice 2 5 ,09 9    2 1 0,2 5 2   

Cu ltu r a l Reper cu ssion s of Clim a te Ch a n g e in  tw o 
Com m u n it ies: A  Teen a g e V iew poin t A m er ica n  A llia n ce of Mu seu m s A g m t Da ted 9 /2 4 /1 4 S-ECA GD-1 3 -CA -1 1 6  (SS) 1 9 .4 1 5 5 9 ,6 1 8   
A m erica n  A llia n ce of Mu seu m s T ot al -   5 9 ,6 1 8   

19 - US Depart m ent  of St a t e -   5 9 ,6 1 8   
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Br idg e Su per str u ctu r e Toler a n ce to Tota l a n d 
Differ en t ia l Fou n da tion  Mov em en ts Na tion a l A ca dem y  of Scien ces HR 1 2 -1 03 DTFH6 1 -08 -H-00003 5 2 0. 2 7 ,7 6 8    1 1 3 ,07 6    
Na t ion a l  A ca dem y  of Scien ces T ot a l 2 7 ,7 6 8    1 1 3 ,07 6    

Su ppor t  for  th e Lon g  Ter m  Br idg e Per for m a n ce 
Pr oject Pen n on i A ssocia tes,  In c. FHWA 1 3 001 -01 DTFH6 1 -1 2 -D-0003 0-T-1 3 001 2 0. 1 1 0,6 8 4    
THMPR Test in g  for  th e LTBP Pr og r a m Pen n on i A ssocia tes,  In c. RTGR1 5 02 -001 DTFH6 1 -08 -C-00005 2 0. 5 2 ,1 09   
Pr oof-Lev el Loa d Test in g  a n d A ssessm en t  of 
Un kn ow n  Fou n da t ion s in  WV Pen n on i A ssocia tes,  In c. DTFH6 1 -1 2 -D-0003 0-T-1 3 001 DTFH6 1 -1 2 -D-0003 0-T-1 3 001 2 0. 5 6 ,3 4 9   
Pen n on i A ssocia t es, In c. T ot a l -   2 1 9 ,1 4 2    

Lon g -Ter m  Br idg e Per for m a n ce (LTBP) Pr og r a m : 
Br idg e A ssessm en t  u sin g  Un m a n n ed A er ia l Sy stem s Ru tg er s Un iv er sity 4 -3 6 7 7 3 -1 02 2 3 DTFH6 1 -08 -C00005 2 0. 5 7 ,1 3 2   
Ru t gers Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -   5 7 ,1 3 2   

20 - US Depa rt m en t  of T ra nsport at ion  2 7 ,7 6 8    3 8 9 ,3 5 0   

Scen a r io-Ba sed V er ifica t ion  a n d V a lida t ion  of 
A u ton om y  a n d A u th or ity Geor g ia  In st itu te of Tech n olog y RD3 6 8 -G2 NNX1 3 A B7 1 A 4 3 .002 1 8 4 ,02 1    
Georgia  In st it u t e of T ech nology  T ot a l -   1 8 4 ,02 1    

NA SA  Pen n sy lv a n ia  Spa ce Gr a n t  Con sor t iu m Pen n  Sta te Un iv er sity 4 4 9 8 -DU-NA SA -K7 4 H NNX1 0A K7 4 H 4 3 .008 2 ,5 04   
Pen n  St at e Un iv ersit y  T ot al -   2 ,5 04   
Ph a se II: Zn Mg O Na n ow ir e Ba sed Detector s a n d 
Detector  A r r a y s

SMI, In c.  (Str u ctu r ed Ma ter ia ls In du str ies,  
In c.) Em a il Da ted 5 /5 /1 5 NNX1 5 CG1 0C 4 3 . 1 ,2 6 0    

Zn Mg O Na n ow ir e Ba sed Detector s a n d Detector  
A r r a y s

SMI, In c.  (Str u ctu r ed Ma ter ia ls In du str ies,  
In c.) 4 2 004 -06 2 01 4 -01 NNX1 4 CG4 3 P 4 3 . 3 1 ,4 9 9   

SMI, In c. (St ru ct u red Ma t eria ls In du st ries, 
Inc.) T ot al -   3 2 ,7 5 9   

43 - Nat iona l  A eron a u t ics a n d Spa ce 
A dm in ist ra t ion -   2 1 9 ,2 8 4   
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NJ 3 1 9  Wetla n ds 2 01 0 Ba r n eg a t  Ba y  Na tion a l Estu a r y  Pr og r a m RP1 0-1 05 RP1 0-1 05 6 6 .4 6 0 (5 ,9 6 3 )   
Pa r ker tow n  Wetla n ds Ba r n eg a t  Ba y  Na tion a l Estu a r y  Pr og r a m RP1 0-1 05 -3 RP1 0-1 05 6 6 .4 6 0 2 ,07 0    
Con tin u a t ion  of th e In teg r a ted Tida l Wetla n ds 
Mon itor in g  a n d A ssessm en t  Pr og r a m  in  th e 
Ba r n eg a t  Ba y  a n d Dela w a r e Estu a r ies (New  Jer sey -
Coa sta l Pla n  Reg ion ) Ba r n eg a t  Ba y  Na tion a l Estu a r y  Pr og r a m SEPA REGION2 FY1 0WPDG/P-FIL BBP FY1 0 EPA  WPDG-02 6 6 .4 6 1 5 7 ,4 1 5  
Ba rn ega t  Ba y  Nat iona l  Est u a ry  Program  
Tot al -     5 3 ,5 2 2    

Ex per t ise Su ppor t  for  US EPA  NLA  2 01 2 Ba ttelle Mem or ia l In st itu te US001 -00004 01 3 6 5 6 6 . 1 1 9  
Ba t t elle Mem orial  Inst it u t e Tot al -     1 1 9  

Lon g itu din a l Stu dy  of W a ste Gr ea se Com posit ion En v ir on m en ta l Fu el Resea r ch A GREEMENT EFF. 7 /01 /1 4 EP-D-1 4 -01 9 6 6 . 1 9 ,5 01  
En v iron m ent a l  Fu el  Resea rch  T ot al -     1 9 ,5 01  

Mon ta n a  DEQ 2 01 1  To 1
Mon ta n a  Depa r tm en t  of En v ir on m en ta l 

Qu a lity 2 1 1 1 3 5 I-9 7 8 8 9 2 01 -0 6 6 .4 1 9 1 5 ,4 1 8  
Mon t a n a  Depart m ent  of Env iron m en t al  
Qu a lit y  Tot al -     1 5 ,4 1 8  

NJ La kes Dia tom  In dices 2 01 2 New  Jer sey  Sea  Gr a n t  Con sor t iu m SR1 2 -005 4 8 1 0-03 0-3 6 1 0-FY1 2 6 6 .6 05 1 5 ,6 3 7  
New Jersey  Sea  Gran t  Consort iu m  T ot a l -     1 5 ,6 3 7  

Ra pid A ssessm en t  of Tida l Wetla n ds in  
Repr esen ta t iv e Wa ter sh eds of th e Dela w a r e Estu a r y Pa r tn er sh ip for  th e Dela w a r e Estu a r y WD-8 3 4 5 8 9 01 -0 6 6 .4 6 1 6 ,3 4 1     
Con tin u a t ion  a n d Ex pa n sion  of a n  In teg r a ted Tida l 
Wetla n ds Mon itor in g  a n d A ssessm en t  Pr og r a m  in  
th e Ba r n eg a t  Ba y  a n d Dela w a r e Estu a r ies (New  
Jer sey  - Coa sta l Pla n  Reg ion ) Pa r tn er sh ip for  th e Dela w a r e Estu a r y PDE-2 1 0-01 CD-9 7 2 07 6 00-0 6 6 .4 6 1 3 7 ,8 4 3    
PA  PDE DEBI 3 k Mu ssel Pa r tn er sh ip for  th e Dela w a r e Estu a r y CR-8 3 3 8 9 8 01 -0 6 6 .5 1 1 1 1 8  
Pa rt n ersh ip for t h e Delaware Est u a ry  T ot a l -     4 4 ,3 02    
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Ma in e DEP 2 01 4
Sta te of Ma in e, Depa r tm en t of 

En v ir on m en ta l Pr otect ion 2 01 2 06 3 4 5 06 A 2 01 4 1 2 1 7 -2 1 7 1 6 6 .6 05 3 5 ,9 8 8                
Ta x on om ic Iden t ifica t ion  a n d En u m er a tion  of 
Fr esh w a ter  A lg a e - Ma in e DEP

Sta te of Ma in e, Depa r tm en t of 
En v ir on m en ta l Pr otect ion 06 A 2 01 2 1 1 1 3 *1 9 05 BG-9 9 1 8 2 9 03 6 6 .6 05 (1 1 ,5 04 )               

St a t e of Ma ine, Depa rt m en t  of Env iron m en t a l 
Prot ect ion T ot a l -                     2 4 ,4 8 4                

Dela w a r e Riv er  Ma in  Ch a n n el Deepen in g  Pr oject  
Dela w a r e Ba y , New  Jer sey  a n d Dela w a r e 
Pr econ str u ction  Oy ster  Mon itor in g  Stu dy V er sa r 008 4 3 0 W9 1 2 BU-1 2 -C-002 0 6 6 .7 07 4 ,6 02                  
V ersa r T ot a l -                     4 ,6 02                  

66 - US Dept  of En v ironm en t a l Prot ect ion 
A gency -                     1 7 7 ,5 8 5             

A dv a n ced Da m a g e Toler a n t  Cer a m ics: Ca n dida tes 
for  Nu clea r  Str u ctu r a l A pplica t ion s Ba ttelle En er g y  A llia n ce LLC 0009 8 7 7 8 DE-A C07 -05 ID1 4 5 1 7 8 1 .04 9 1 0,1 6 4                
Fu n da m en ta l Stu dies of th e Role of Gr a in  
Bou n da r ies on  Un ifor m  Cor r osion  of A dv a n ced 
Nu clea r  Rea ctor  Ma ter ia ls Ba ttelle En er g y  A llia n ce LLC 001 2 1 1 06 DE-A C07 -05 ID1 4 5 1 7 8 1 .04 9 2 2 6 ,9 5 9          2 9 4 ,8 7 6             
Diffu sion  a n d Ch em ica l Com pa tibility  of th e MA X 
Ph a ses for  A dv a n ced Rea ctor  Fu el a n d Com pon en t  
Desig n Ba ttelle En er g y  A llia n ce,  LLC 001 1 9 1 7 5 DE-A C07 -05 ID1 4 5 1 7 8 1 .04 9 1 08 ,08 6             
On  th e Respon se of th e MA X Ph a ses to Neu tr on  
Ir r a dia t ion Ba ttelle En er g y  A llia n ce,  LLC 0009 03 09 DE-A C07 -05 ID1 4 5 1 7 8 1 .04 9 (1 ,8 8 5 )                 
Ba t t elle En ergy  A llia n ce, LLC T ot a l -                     1 06 ,2 01              

Nov el Electr o-Deox y g en a tion  Pr ocess for  Bio-oil 
Upg r a din g Cer a m a tec LETTER DA TED 5 /2 3 /1 4 DE-EE0006 2 8 8 8 1 .08 7 5 5 ,1 1 8                
Cera m a t ec T ot a l -                     5 5 ,1 1 8                

Biolog ica l Sy stem s Resea r ch  on  th e Role of Micr obia l 
Com m u n it ies in  Ca r bon  Cy clin g Ken t  Sta te Un iv er sity 4 4 06 6 1 -DREX DE-SC0004 3 3 5  PRIME 8 1 .04 9 7 5 ,003                
Ken t  St a t e Univ ersit y  T ot a l -                     7 5 ,003                
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New  La y er ed Na n ola m in a tes for  Use in  Lith iu m  
Ba tter y  A n odes La w r en ce Ber keley  Na t ion a l La bs 6 9 5 1 3 7 0 DE-A C02 -05 CH1 1 2 3 1 8 1 .04 9 1 7 4 ,4 9 7   
La wren ce Berkeley  Nat iona l  Labs T ot a l -   1 7 4 ,4 9 7   

En er g y  Fr on tier  Resea r ch  Cen ter  for  Flu id In ter fa ce 
Rea ct ion s,  Str u ctu r es a n d Tr a n spor t  (EFRC-FIRST)

Oa k Ridg e Na tion a l La bor a tor y /Dept  of 
En er g y 4 00008 5 8 7 7 DE-A C05 -000R2 2 7 2 5 8 1 .04 9 3 5 5 ,07 2   

Oa k Ridge Nat iona l  Laborat ory /Dept  of 
En ergy  T ot al -   3 5 5 ,07 2   

V OLTTRON Com pa tible a n d Cost-Effect iv e Fa u lt  
Dia g n ost ic Solu t ion s for  A HU-V A V  a n d A HU-CA V  
Sy stem s: 1 st  1 5 0K in cr em en t Pen n  Sta te Un iv er sity 4 3 4 2 -DU-DOE-4 2 6 1 DE-EE0004 2 6 1 8 1 .08 6 1 4 ,1 2 8   
Yea r  Tw o A ct iv it ies of Th e Gr ea ter  Ph ila delph ia  
Reg ion a l In n ov a t ion  Clu ster  for  En er g y  Efficien t  
Bu ildin g s Pen n  Sta te Un iv er sity 4 3 4 2 -DU-DOE-4 2 6 1 DE-EE0004 2 6 1 8 1 .08 6 3 5 2  
V OLTTRON Com pa tible a n d Cost-Effect iv e Fa u lt  
Dia g n ost ic Solu t ion s for  A HU-V A V  a n d A HU-CA V  
Sy stem s Pen n  Sta te Un iv er sity 4 3 4 2 -DU-DOE-4 2 6 1 DE-EE0004 2 6 1 8 1 .08 6 1 5 7 ,8 00   3 09 ,8 5 1   
Pen n  St at e Un iv ersit y  T ot al 1 5 7 ,8 00   3 2 4 ,3 3 1   

Dev elopm en t  of Pla sm a  Tech n olog y  for  Wa ter  
Ma n a g em en t  of Fr a c/Pr odu ced Wa ter

Resea r ch  Pa r tn er sh ip to Secu r e En er g y  for  
A m er ica 1 1 1 2 2 -3 1 DE-A C2 6 -07 NT4 2 6 7 7 8 1 .04 9 7 2 6 ,6 3 7   

Research  Part nersh ip t o Secu re Energy  for 
A m erica  T ot al -   7 2 6 ,6 3 7   

Dr ex el Un iv er sity -Sa n dia  Na tion a l La bor a tor ies 
Con tr a ct  for  " Dev elopin g  a n d Un der sta n din g  
A dv a n ced Cor r osion  Resista n t  Coa t in g s for  th e 
A cqu isit ion  Tr a n spor t ,  a n d Stor a g e of 
Petr och em ica ls,  etc. Sa n dia  Na tion a l La bor a tor ies 1 1 8 8 07 0 DE-A C04 -9 4 8 L8 5 000 8 1 . (1 6 5 )    
Un iv er sity  En er g y  Stor a g e Pr og r a m  a t  Dr ex el 
Un iv er sity Sa n dia  Na tion a l La bor a tor ies 01 9 0 S NB9 2 9 DE-A C04 -9 4 A L8 5 000 8 1 . 3 6 ,8 9 2   
San dia  Na t ion al  La borat ories T ot a l -   3 6 ,7 2 7   
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Dev elopm en t  of LWR Fu els w ith  En h a n ced A cciden t  
Toler a n ce Sa v a n n a h  Riv er  Nu clea r  Solu t ion s, In c. 00001 05 8 6 1 DE-A C09 -08 SR2 2 4 7 0 8 1 .04 9 2 0,8 2 2    

Sav a nn a h  Riv er  Nu clea r Solu t ions, Inc. T ot a l -     2 0,8 2 2    

Cen ter  for  th e Com pu ta t ion a l Desig n  of Fu n ct ion a l 
La y er ed Ma ter ia ls Tem ple Un iv er sity 2 5 4 9 9 8 DE-SC001 2 5 7 5 8 1 .04 9 9 1 ,005  
Tem ple Un iv ersit y  Tot al -     9 1 ,005  

Th eor y  a n d Com pu ta t ion  for  Mesoscopic Ma ter ia ls 
Pr ocessin g Un iv er sity  of Min n esota A 004 1 6 3 7 01 DE-SC001 2 7 3 3 8 1 .04 9 8 ,6 3 9    
Un iv ersit y  of Minn esot a  T ot a l -     8 ,6 3 9    

81 - US Depa rt m en t  of En ergy 3 8 4 ,7 5 9   2 ,2 7 9 ,09 2  

Pa r tn er  for  Pr ev en tion (P4 P):A  Wh ole Sch ool 
A ppr oa ch  to Peer  A g g r ession  & Bu lly in g Ch ildr en 's Hospita l of Ph ila delph ia 3 2 7 2 5 1 R3 05 A 1 3 01 7 5 8 4 .3 05 1 4 ,1 4 5  
Ch ildren 's Hospit a l  of Ph ila delph ia  T ot a l -     1 4 ,1 4 5  

Ra isin g  In ter est  in  STEM Edu ca t ion  (RISE) in  
Com m u n ity  Colleg e of Ph ila delph ia  YEA R 2 Com m u n ity  Colleg e of Ph ila delph ia A g m t da ted 1 0/3 1 /1 4 P1 2 0A 1 3 003 5 8 4 .1 2 0A 1 5 ,9 4 5  
Ra isin g  In ter est  in  STEM Edu ca t ion  (RISE) in  
Com m u n ity  Colleg e of Ph ila delph ia Com m u n ity  Colleg e of Ph ila delph ia A g m t da ted 1 2 /1 6 /1 3 P1 2 0A 1 3 003 5 8 4 .1 2 0A 4 1 ,7 2 6  
Com m u n it y  College of Ph iladelph ia  T ot a l -     5 7 ,6 7 1  

A PLI Sch ool Lea der sh ip Ev a lu a t ion  Pr og r a m Leh ig h  Un iv er sity 5 4 2 3 4 4 -7 8 003 U3 6 3 A 1 0006 9 8 4 .3 6 3 8 5 ,5 6 5    
Leh igh  Univ ersit y  Tot a l -     8 5 ,5 6 5    

Ga in in g  Ea r ly  A w a r en ess a n d Rea din ess for  
Un der g r a du a te Pr og r a m s (GEA R UP) Ph ila delph ia  Sch ool Distr ict Un kn ow n P3 3 4 A 1 4 01 00 8 4 .3 3 4 A 2 0,5 06    
Ph iladelph ia  Sch ool Dist rict  T ot a l -     2 0,5 06    

Cr oss Cu ltu r a l Tr a in in g  for  Un ited Sta tes a n d 
Eu r opea n  Un ion  Stu den ts Sa n  Dieg o Sta te Un iv er sity 5 6 4 04 A P4 01 2 7 8 02 2 1 1 P1 1 6 J1 0004 7 -A ct ion  1 8 4 .1 1 6 1 2 ,2 1 2  
San  Diego St at e Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -     1 2 ,2 1 2  
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Fa ctor s A ssocia ted w ith  Posit iv e Ou tcom es for  
Ch ildr en  & You th  w ith  A u tism : Secon da r y  A n a ly sis 
of Da ta  fr om  SEELS a n d NLTS2 . SRI In ter n a t ion a l 5 1 -001 2 9 3 R3 2 4 A 1 2 001 2 8 4 .3 2 4 5 ,1 1 7  
SRI In t ern a t ion al  T ot al -   5 ,1 1 7  

Pr og r a m  Ev a lu a t ion  of Ph y sica l Th er a py  in  Sch ools
Un iv er sity  of Ken tu cky  Resea r ch  

Fou n da tion R3 2 4 A 1 1 02 04 R3 2 4 A 1 1 02 04 8 4 .3 2 4 1 3 ,4 6 5   
Un iv ersit y  of Ken t u cky  Research  Fou n da t ion  
T ot al -   1 3 ,4 6 5   

Fu sin g  Gr een  En er g y  in to Ma n u fa ctu r in g  
En g in eer in g  Edu ca t ion  to Cu lt iv a te Tech n ica l 
Su ccess a n d Lea der sh ip Ex cellen ce A m on g  Hispa n ic 
En g in eer in g  Stu den ts Un iv er sity  of Tex a s a t  El Pa so 2 01 4 05 5 6 3 6 P03 1 S1 2 01 3 1 8 4 .03 1 1 5 4 ,1 01    
Un iv ersit y  of T exa s a t  El  Pa so T ot al -   1 5 4 ,1 01    

84 - US Depa rt m ent  of Edu cat ion -   3 6 2 ,7 8 2   

T ot al  Ot h er  Research  an d Dev elopm en t  Pa ss-
T h rou gh  A wa rds 465,657$          6,171,551$          
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Win e Ma kin g  a n d Mer ch a n disin g  Pr og r a m
US Depa r tm en t  of 

A g r icu ltu r e CO-CR-1 4 -04 7 1 0.9 6 2 5 7 ,2 8 9         
10 - US Depa rt m ent  of A gricu lt u re -  5 7 ,2 8 9         

IPA  A g r eem en t  (2 01 4 -2 01 6 ) US Depa r tm en t of Defen se  A GREEMT CA GE CODE 1 JD 1 2 . 2 07 ,09 2      
12 - US Depa rt m en t  of Defense -  2 07 ,09 2      

Wiscon sin  MMSD Fa ll 2 01 1
Un ited Sta tes Geolog ica l 

Su r v ey Un kn ow n 1 5 . 1 ,9 6 4    
15 - US Depa rt m en t  of t h e Int erior -  1 ,9 6 4    

Im pr ov in g  In ter v en tion  Ser v ices for  V iolen t ly  In ju r ed 
V ict im s US Depa r tm en t  of Ju st ice 2 01 1 -V F-GX-K01 9 1 6 .5 8 2 5 2 ,8 09  1 4 6 ,9 1 4       
16 - US Depa rt m en t  of Ju st ice 5 2 ,8 09  1 4 6 ,9 1 4       

Pa r tn er s in  Sch ool Im pr ov em en t: Dr ex el Un iv er sity  a n d 
th e Sch ool Distr ict  of Ph ila delph ia

In st itu te of Mu seu m  a n d 
Libr a r y  Ser v ices RE-01 -1 0-001 7 -1 0 4 5 .3 1 3 8 9 ,4 4 6         

L2 1 -Pr og r a m s to Bu ild In st itu t ion a l Ca pa city
In st itu te of Mu seu m  a n d 

Libr a r y  Ser v ices RE-05 -1 2 -005 2 -1 2 4 5 .3 1 3 4 1 ,2 02  9 8 ,1 1 2         
45 - Inst it u t e of Mu seu m  a nd Libra ry  Sciences

4 1 ,2 02  1 8 7 ,5 5 8      

Gen der  a n d Scien ce Pr oficien cy  for  En g lish  La n g u a g e 
Lea r n er s Na tion a l Scien ce Fou n da t ion HRD-1 03 6 6 5 8 4 7 .07 6 (4 ,2 5 3 )  
IPA -NSF CMMI-SMM Pr og r a m  Dir ector Na tion a l Scien ce Fou n da t ion CMMI-1 1 1 8 5 6 9 4 7 .04 1 (2 05 )      
Colla bor a t iv e Resea r ch : In ter n a t ion a l: US-Br a zil-Fr om  
Loca l to Globa l-Mu lt i-Robot  Sy stem s for  La r g e Sca le 
Cooper a t iv e Ta sks Na tion a l Scien ce Fou n da t ion OISE-1 1 3 1 01 1 4 7 .07 9 3 4 ,7 6 7         
Gr ea ter  Ph ila delph ia  Reg ion  LSA MP Br idg e to th e Doctor a te 
(Coh or t  X) Pr oject Na tion a l Scien ce Fou n da t ion HRD-1 2 4 9 1 7 7 4 7 .07 6 3 1 1 ,8 9 4        3 1 1 ,8 9 4       
Tr a v el A w a r ds for  th e 2 01 4  IEEE In ter n a t ion a l Con fer en ce 
on  Bioin for m a tics a n d Biom edicin e Na tion a l Scien ce Fou n da t ion IIS-1 4 4 5 1 4 9 4 7 .07 0 2 0,000         
Pr og r a m  Dir ector : Na n o-Biosen sin g  CBET Div ision Na tion a l Scien ce Fou n da t ion CBET-1 4 7 9 5 2 -001 4 7 . 2 5 8 ,7 9 7      
47 - Na t iona l  Scien ce Fou nda t ion 3 1 1 ,8 9 4        6 2 1 ,000      
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Ur ba n  Specia l Edu ca tion  Lea der s for  Tom or r ow  (USELT) US Depa r tm en t  of Edu ca tion H3 2 5 D1 4 008 1 8 4 .3 2 5 2 1 6 ,7 5 9  
84 - US Depa rt m en t  of Edu ca t ion -   2 1 6 ,7 5 9  

Pa r t  D Gr a n ts for  Coor din a ted HIV  Ser v ices
US Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth  a n d 

Hu m a n  Ser v ices H1 2 HA 2 4 8 4 7 -03 -01 9 3 .1 5 3 2 2 ,4 2 2   3 4 7 ,8 1 8  

HIV  Ea r ly  In ter v en t ion  Ser v ice Pr og r a m
Hea lth  Resou r ces & Ser v ices 

A dm in istr a t ion H7 6 HA 001 7 9 -1 8 -00 9 3 .9 1 8 2 8 ,2 00   8 8 2 ,8 4 3  

Ur ba n  Ch a llen g es: Ur ba n  Solu tion s Tr a in eesh ips
Hea lth  Resou r ces & Ser v ices 

A dm in istr a t ion A 03 HP2 7 8 4 5 -01 -00 9 3 .9 6 4 2 ,3 3 8   

HIV  Ea r ly  In ter v en t ion  Ser v ice Pr og r a m
Hea lth  Resou r ces & Ser v ices 

A dm in istr a t ion H7 6 HA 001 7 9 -1 6 -00 9 3 .9 1 8 (5 ,3 9 6 )  
A dv oca cy  in  A ct ion :  Tr a n sfor m in g  Com m u n ity  Focu sed 
Wom en 's Hea lth  A dv oca t ion

US Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth  & 
Hu m a n  Ser v ices HHSP2 3 3 2 007 005 4 7 P 9 3 . 6 ,6 7 6   

Ph ila delph ia  UJIMA  Coa lit ion  for  a  Hea lth ier  Com m u n ity  - 
Ph a se 2

US Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth  & 
Hu m a n  Ser v ices CCEWH1 1 1 02 0-03 -00 9 3 .2 9 0 4 5 1 ,1 4 0   

Nu r se A n esth et ist   Tr a in eesh ips
Hea lth  Resou r ces & Ser v ices 

A dm in istr a t ion 1 A 2 2 HP2 4 4 9 7 -01 -00 9 3 .1 2 4 (9 ,7 8 2 )  

You th  Su icide Pr ev en t ion  in  Pr im a r y  Ca r e
Su bsta n ce A bu se & Men ta l 

Hea lth  Ser v ices 1 U7 9 SM06 1 7 5 0 9 3 .1 2 4 1 5 7 ,1 1 4   
Sch ola r sh ips for  Disa dv a n ta g ed Stu den ts Con t in u in g  th e 
Tr a dit ion  of A ccess a n d Qu a lity  for  Gr a du a te Ph y sicia n  
A ssista n ts

Hea lth  Resou r ces & Ser v ices 
A dm in istr a t ion 5  T08 HP2 5 2 2 2 -02 -00 9 3 .9 2 5 4 00,6 1 6  

Sch ola r sh ips for  Disa dv a n ta g ed Stu den ts for  Gr a du a te 
Cou ple a n d Fa m ily  Th er a py

Hea lth  Resou r ces & Ser v ices 
A dm in istr a t ion 5 T08 HP2 5 2 2 3 -02 -00 9 3 .9 2 5 1 6 9 ,8 1 8   

A dv a n ced Edu ca t ion  for  Nu r se A n esth etists to Ex ten d 
A ccess to Ca r e

Hea lth  Resou r ces & Ser v ices 
A dm in istr a t ion A 2 2 HP2 5 9 8 5 -01 -00 9 3 .1 2 4 1 6 ,5 9 5   

93 - U.S. Depa rt m en t  of Hea lt h  & Hu m a n Serv ices 5 0,6 2 2   2 ,4 1 9 ,7 8 0  

T ot al  Direct  Expendit u res for Ot h er  Progra m s 456,527$      3,858,356$      
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Nu tr it ion  Ou tr ea ch  in  Ph ila delph ia  Pu blic Sch ools Pen n  Sta te Un iv er sity 00008 6 9 2  & 4 00001 5 7 Un kn ow n 1 0.5 8 0 5 1 4 ,3 00    
Nu tr it ion  Ou tr ea ch  in  Ph ila delph ia  Pu blic Sch ools Pen n  Sta te Un iv er sity 4 1 0006 9 1 5 1 Un kn ow n 1 0.5 8 0 1 ,2 7 6 ,3 9 7     
Pen n  St a t e Un iv ersit y  T ot al -   1 ,7 9 0,6 9 7     

2 01 2  A n a cost ia  Con su lt in g CH2 M Hill 9 4 8 06 1 N6 2 4 7 0-08 -D-1 000 1 2 . (9 2 7 )  
CH2M Hill  T ot a l -   (9 2 7 )  

Nov el Sta n doff Detect ion  of Ma ter ia l Da m a g e Pr ecu r sor s for  
Str u ctu r a l Hea lth  Mon itor in g  a n d Pr edict ion Pr in ceton  Na n otech n olog y  Sy stem s A g m t Da ted 1 1 /1 1 /1 3 W9 1 1 QX-1 3 -C-01 5 0 1 2 . 5 06    
Prin cet on  Na n ot ech n ology  Sy st em s T ot a l -   5 06    

Sim u lin k Modelin g  of a  Notion a l Sh ipboa r d Sy stem  for  Sen sor  Da ta  
Gen er a t ion Tech n ica l Docu m en ta t ion ,  In c. LETTER DA TED 1 0/2 8 /1 3 N0001 4 -1 3 -C-01 1 8 1 2 . 1 ,9 05   
T ech n ica l  Docu m en t a t ion , In c. T ot a l -   1 ,9 05   

Con tr olled Relea se of Topica l Nitr ic Ox ide for  Tr ea t in g  Cu ta n eou s 
In ju r ies Zeom edix ,  In c. DTD 06 /1 5 /2 01 1 Un kn ow n 1 2 . 2 ,6 6 7   
Ph a se 2 : Con tr olled Relea se of Topic Nitr ic Ox ide for  Tr ea tm en t  
Cu ta n eou s In ju r ies Zeom edix ,  In c. DTD 6 /5 /2 01 1 W8 1 XWH-1 1 -C-003 1 1 2 . 5 0,1 9 1    
Zeom edix, In c. T ot a l -   5 2 ,8 5 8   

10 - US Depa rt m en t  of A gricu lt u re -   5 4 ,3 4 2   

Six -W eek En g lish  La n g u a g e Cer t ifica te Pr og r a m  for  Hig h  Sch ool 
En g lish  Tea ch er s fr om  Br a zil In st itu te of In ter n a t ion a l Edu ca tion REEMENT DTD 1 1 /2 9 /2 0 Un kn ow n 1 9 .009 (1 ,8 8 5 )    
Fou r -W est  Fu lbr ig h t  En g lish  For  Gr a du a te Stu den ts In st itu te of In ter n a t ion a l Edu ca tion A g m t Da ted 5 /7 /1 4 S-ECA GD-1 4 -CA -01 7 1 9 .009 1 1 0,4 8 6    
In st itu te of In ter n a tion a l Edu ca tion  Tota l -   1 08 ,6 01    

19 - US Depa rt m en t  of St a t e -   1 08 ,6 01    
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Cou n cil of Gr a du a te Sch ools Doctor a l In it ia tiv e on  Min or ity  
Com plet ion  a n d A ttr it ion Cou n cil of Gr a du a te Sch ools A g m t Da ted 5 /1 /1 2 1 1 3 8 8 1 4 4 7 .07 6 (1 1 ,6 7 1 )  
Cou n cil of Gr a du a te Sch ools Tota l -          (1 1 ,6 7 1 )  

47 - Na t iona l  Science Fou nda t ion -          (1 1 ,6 7 1 )  

A fter  Sch ool Lea r n in g  Cen ter  For m u la  A w a r d Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t of Edu ca t ion 1 1 7 5 5 8 S2 8 7 C1 1 03 8 8 4 .2 8 7 1 2 0,3 7 9            
Elig ible Pa r tn er sh ips Gr a n t  A g r eem en t Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t of Edu ca t ion 07 1 -8 0003 4 4 2 6 5 1 2 2 1 03 8 4 .3 6 7 9 1 ,5 1 6   1 1 0,1 2 5            
Elig ible Pa r tn er sh ip Pr og r a m Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t of Edu ca t ion 07 1 -8 0002 0 4 2 6 5 1 2 2 1 03 8 4 .3 6 7 1 5 0,5 4 7           2 6 0,3 4 5           
Pennsy lv a nia  Depa rt m ent  of Edu ca t ion  T ot a l 2 4 2 ,06 3          4 9 0,8 4 9           

Ma th em a tics a n d Scien ce Pa r tn er sh ip 2 01 2 -2 01 3  Com petit iv e 
Su bg r a n t  A w a r ds to Elig ible Loca l Edu ca t ion a l A g en cies A pply in g  
for  Fu n d Ph ila delph ia  Sch ool Distr ict 07 5 -1 3 -03 3 5 S3 6 6 B1 2 003 9 8 4 .3 6 6 (1 5 0)        
MSP STEM Liter a cy  Pa r tn er sh ip Gr a n t Ph ila delph ia  Sch ool Distr ict A X-M6 7 -9 1 9 0-2 2 7 2 -3 2 003 9 ; OGC Con tr a ct  No. 8 4 .3 6 6 4 4 ,3 04   
Ph ila delph ia  Sch ool  Dist rict  T ot a l -          4 4 ,1 5 4   

Rh ode Isla n d Gea r  Up Ev a lu a t ion Th e Colleg e Cr u sa de of Rh ode Isla n d A g m t da ted 1 0/1 7 /1 4 P3 3 4 S1 1 0008 8 4 .3 3 4 1 4 0,4 4 0            
T h e College Cru sa de of Rh ode Isla n d T ot al -          1 4 0,4 4 0            

8 4  US Depa r tm en t of Edu ca t ion

Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Pa r tn er sh ip Pr og r a m A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 5 6 3 01 1 FPHPA 03 6 07 3 -02 9 3 .2 1 7 1 2 ,7 04   
FY1 5  Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Ma in  Ca p A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 5 02 01 6 FPHPA 03 6 07 3 -02 9 3 .2 1 7 9 1 ,9 2 3   
A CA  En r ollm en t  A ssista n ce Pr og r a m  FY1 5 A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 5 6 003 1 FPHPA 006 1 7 1 9 3 .2 1 7 1 4 ,3 2 5   
FY1 5  In teg r a t in g  Rou tin e HIV  Test in g  a n d Lin ka g e to HIV  Ca r e a n d 
Tr ea tm en t  in  Fa m ily  Pla n n in g A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 5 4 002 1 FPHPA 006 1 1 0 9 3 .2 1 7 8 7 ,2 2 7   
Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Pa r tn er sh ip Pr og r a m  Ken sin g ton A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 4 5 002 6 FPHPA 03 6 07 3 9 3 .2 1 7 5 0,2 7 1   
FY1 4  Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Ma in  Ca p A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 4 2 4 01 1 FPHPA 006 07 3 -01 -00 9 3 .2 1 7 4 ,04 4      
FY1 4  In teg r a t in g  Rou tin e HIV  Test in g  a n d Lin ka g e to HIV  Ca r e a n d 
Tr ea tm en t  in  Fa m ily  Pla n n in g A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 4 4 002 1 FPHPA 006 1 1 0-01 -00 9 3 .2 1 7 1 2 ,7 2 3   
HIV -CTRS Ex pa n sion  in  Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Pr og r a m s FY-1 4 A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 4 4 009 1 FPHPA 006 1 1 0 9 3 .2 1 7 6 5 0          
Th e Teen  a n d You n g  A du lt  Cen ter -Ma in  Ca p  (Fa m ily  Pla n n in g ) 
FY1 5 A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 5 2 4 01 6 FPHPA 03 6 07 3 -02 9 3 .2 1 7 1 08 ,7 5 5            
HIV -CTRS Ex pa n sion  in  Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Pr og r a m s FY-1 5 A ccess Ma tter s/Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Cou n cil 1 5 4 009 1 FPHPA 006 1 1 0 9 3 .2 1 7 1 4 ,4 06   
A ccess Ma t t ers/Fa m ily  Pla n ning Cou n cil  T ot a l -          3 9 7 ,02 8           
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Medica l Hom e In it ia t iv e A m er ica n  A ca dem y  of Pedia tr ics Un kn ow n Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 2 ,1 8 0      
Medica l Hom e Pr og r a m -Edu ca t in g  Pr a ctices in  Com m u n ity  
In teg r a ted Ca r e (EPIC IC) A m er ica n  A ca dem y  of Pedia tr ics LTR DA TED 6 /3 0/1 2 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 4 0,8 9 6   
A m erican  A ca dem y  of Pedia t rics T ot a l -          4 3 ,07 6   

Stu den t  Men tor in g  Th r ou g h  Reg ion a l Scien t ific Sy m posia Ba y lor  Colleg e of Medicin e 1 02 05 7 8 1 8 5 T3 6 GM09 5 3 5 3 -04 9 3 .8 5 9 1 5 ,8 1 1    
Ba y lor  College of Medicin e T ot a l -          1 5 ,8 1 1    

Ca r diov a scu la r  In fla m m a tion  Redu ct ion  Tr ia l (CIRT) Br ig h a m  a n d Wom en 's Hospita l 5 U01 HL1 01 4 2 2 -02 5 U01 HL1 01 4 2 2 9 3 .8 3 7 3 9 0          
Brigh a m  a nd Wom en's Hospit a l  T ot a l -          3 9 0          

Bu cks Cou n ty  Ev a lu a t ion  Pr oject Bu cks Cou n ty  Dr u g  a n d A lcoh ol Com m ission 1 5 -1 0-5 8 2 2 2 7 R03 HD08 07 3 0-02 9 3 .8 6 5 4 7 ,1 6 8   
Bu cks Cou n t y  Dru g an d A lcoh ol  Com m ission -          4 7 ,1 6 8   

Per  Ca se Reim bu r sem en t a n d Wor kloa d In ten sity : NIH COG Ch a ir  
Gr a n t Ch ildr en 's Hospita l of Ph ila delph ia Un kn ow n U1 0CA 09 8 5 4 3 9 3 .3 9 5 4 8 ,06 0   
Com pr eh en siv e Hea lth  Ca r e Ser v ices for  Per son s less th a n  2 1  Yea r s 
(Sickle Cell Disea se) Ch ildr en 's Hospita l of Ph ila delph ia 4 1 0006 5 9 2 9 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 4 4 2 08 ,5 2 5           
Ch ildren's Hospit a l  of Ph ila delph ia  T ot a l -          2 5 6 ,5 8 5           

Ph ila delph ia  Beh a v ior a l Hea lth  In it ia t iv e City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office 1 2 2 03 6 7 -02  SA 3 02 8 5 U7 9 SM06 07 05 9 3 .2 4 3 3 4 ,3 9 4   
Ph ila delph ia  Beh a v ior a l Hea lth  In it ia t iv e City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office 1 2 2 03 6 7 -02  SA 3 02 4 5 U7 9 SM06 07 05 9 3 .2 4 3 2 1 7 ,1 8 7            
Ph ila delph ia  Beh a v ior a l Hea lth  In it ia t iv e City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office 1 2 2 03 6 7 -02  SA 3 02 5 5 U7 9 SM06 07 05 9 3 .2 4 3 1 1 0,5 1 4            
Ph ila delph ia  In teg r a t iv e Beh a v ior a l Hea lth  In it ia t iv e FY 2 01 4  
SA 3 01 0 City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office 1 2 2 03 6 7 -02  SA 3 02 2 5 U7 9 SM06 07 05 9 3 .2 4 3 3 0,1 2 9   
Ph ila delph ia  In teg r a t iv e Beh a v ior a l Hea lth  In it ia t iv e FY 2 01 4  
SA 3 005 City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office 1 2 2 03 6 7 -02  SA 3 02 1 5 U7 9 SM06 07 05 9 3 .2 4 3 8 2 ,6 9 2   
Ph ila delph ia  In teg r a t iv e Beh a v ior a l Hea lth  In it ia t iv e FY 2 01 4  
SA 3 01 1 City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office 1 2 2 03 6 7 -02  SA 3 02 3 5 U7 9 SM06 07 05 9 3 .2 4 3 1 7 ,1 4 5    
Ou tpa t ien t  / A m bu la tor y  Medica l Ca r e City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office R5 2 1 2 2  H8 9 HA 0001 3 -2 5 -01 9 3 .9 1 4 3 2 2 ,8 02           
Ca r e Ser v ices Ca se Ma n a g em en t City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office R5 2 1 3 2  H8 9 HA 0001 3 -2 5 -01 9 3 .9 1 4 1 1 3 ,02 9            
Ca r e Ser v ices Ca se Ma n a g em en t City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office R4 3 3 9 6  H8 9 HA 0001 4 -2 4 9 3 .9 1 4 1 06 ,1 6 9            
A m bu la tor y /Ou t-Pa tien t  Medica l Ca r e City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office R4 6 1 9 6  H8 9 HA 0001 4 -2 4 9 3 .9 1 4 1 5 7 ,4 2 7            
A m bu la tor y /Ou tpa t ien t  Medica l Ca r e City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office R4 5 8 7 6  H8 9 HA 0001 4 -2 4 9 3 .9 1 4 5 8 0,3 3 8           
Ca r e Ser v ices Ca se Ma n a g em en t City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a t in g  Office R4 5 8 8 6  H8 9 HA 0001 4 -2 4 9 3 .9 1 4 2 6 5 ,4 06           
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CRCS (Pa r t  II- 3  m on th s) City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office A DV A NCE 1 2 2 03 6 7 -02  SA 3 02 8  9 3 .9 1 7 1 5 ,8 4 9  
CRCS - Pa r t  I City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office RXA 5 1 1 2 2  H8 9 HA 0001 3 -2 5 -01 9 3 .9 1 7 4 7 ,7 05  
HERR- (Pa r t  I-9  m on th s) City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office RXA 5 1 1 3 2  H8 9 HA 0001 3 -2 5 -01 9 3 .9 1 7 4 5 ,3 6 8  

Hea lth  Resou r ce Cen ter s FY 1 5  Edison  a n d Ma stba u m  Hig h  Sch ool City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office
1 2 2 04 5 5 -02 /03 , 
CPA 4 01 2 /5 01 2 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 4 0 3 ,9 6 4   

Beh a v ior a l Su r v eilla n ce YMSM City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office B5 005 2  H8 9 HA 0001 3 -2 5 -01 9 3 .9 4 0 7 5 ,6 2 5  
HIV  Scr een in g  & Test in g  in  Hea lth Ca r e Sett in g City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office CPA 5 05 6 5 U6 2 PS003 6 4 5 -04 9 3 .9 4 0 2 9 ,1 1 2   
HIV  Test in g  in  Hea lth  Ca r e Sett in g s City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office CPB5 03 8 5 U6 2 PS003 6 4 5 -04 9 3 .9 4 0 6 1 ,7 7 2  
Hig h  Im pa ct  HIV  Test in g  in  Hea lth  Ca r e Set t in g s City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office CPB4 003 5 U6 2 PS003 6 4 5 -04 9 3 .9 4 0 7 3 ,8 6 1  
HIV  Scr een in g  & Test in g  in  Hea lth Ca r e Sett in g City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office CPA 4 02 1 /CPA 4 05 6 5 U6 2 PS003 6 4 5 -03 9 3 .9 4 0 4 4 ,8 2 9  
Beh a v ior a l Su r v eilla n ce Su pplem en t:  YMSM CDC stu dy City  of Ph ila delph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coor din a tin g  Office B4 004 5 U1 BPS0003 2 5 3 -04 9 3 .9 4 0 8 1 ,9 9 1   
Cit y  of Ph iladelph ia  - A ids A ct iv it ies Coordin at in g Office T ot al -  2 ,5 1 7 ,3 08     

Ca r in g  Tog eth er  FY1 5 City  of Ph ila delph ia  - Office of A bu se Pr ev en tion 1 5 -2 04 8 3 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 5 9 1 9 4 ,6 04   
Cit y  of Ph iladelph ia  - Office of A bu se Prev en t ion  T ot al -  1 9 4 ,6 04   

NICHD Ma ter n a l Feta l Medicin e Un its Netw or k Colu m bia  Un iv er sity Un kn ow n HD03 6 8 01  & U01 HL09 8 9 3 .8 6 5 1 6 9 ,6 9 1   
Gen om ic a n d Pr oteom ic Netw or k for  Pr eter m  Bir th  Resea r ch  Ca se 
Con tr ol Colu m bia  Un iv er sity Un kn ow n U01  HD 05 008 0 9 3 .8 6 5 (1 )     
Colu m bia  Un iv ersit y  T ot al -  1 6 9 ,6 9 0   

Gu idin g  Ev iden ce Ba sed Th er a py  Usin g  Biom a r ker  In ten sified 
Tr ea tm en t  (CCC) in  Hea r t  Fa ilu r e Du ke Un iv er sity 1 HL1 05 4 4 8  GUIDE-IT 101 HL1 05 4 4 8  GUIDE-IT 1 2 9 3 .9 5 9 1 ,1 7 0   
Du ke Un iv ersit y  T ot a l -  1 ,1 7 0   

PHA CS A MP UP 1 8 + (PH 3 00) Ha r v a r d Sch ool of Pu blic Hea lth 1 1 4 07 4 .1 03 8 .5 04 1 1 4 1 5 U01 HD05 2 1 02 -1 0 9 3 .8 6 5 1 4 0,4 1 9   
PHA CS A MP Ha r v a r d Sch ool of Pu blic Hea lth 1 1 4 07 4 .09 3 8 .5 04 1 1 4 1 5 U01 HD05 2 1 02 -09 9 3 .8 6 5 2 9 ,7 1 3  
PHA CS A MP 1 8 + Ha r v a r d Sch ool of Pu blic Hea lth 1 1 4 07 4 .09 3 8 .5 04 1 1 4 1 5 U01 HD05 2 1 02 -09 9 3 .8 6 5 5 ,3 05   
Ha rv a rd Sch ool of Pu blic Healt h  T ot al -  1 7 5 ,4 3 7   

PA  Mid A tla n tic A IDS Edu ca t ion  a n d Tr a in in g  Cen ter Hea lth  Feder a t ion  of Ph ila delph ia A g m t Da ted 1 0/5 /1 4 5 H4 A HA 0006 0-1 3 -00 9 3 .1 4 5 1 8 ,9 7 5  
Hea lt h  Federat ion  of Ph iladelph ia  T ot a l -  1 8 ,9 7 5  



Drexel University and Subsidiaries 
Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Federal Awards For Other Programs From Pass Through Grantors - Schedule F 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Progra m  T it le Pass T h rou gh  Gran t or A gen cy  Nu m ber Federa l  ID Nu m ber
CFDA  

Nu m ber
 Su brecipient  
Expen dit u res 

 Federa l  
Expen dit u res 

See Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
82 

In ter m itten t  Ex otr opia  Stu dy  2 (IXT2 ): A  Ra n dom ized Clin ica l Tr ia l 
of Obser v a t ion  V er su s Occlu sion  Th er a py  for  In ter m itten t  Ex otr opia Ja eb Cen ter  for  Hea lth  Resea r ch U1 0EY1 1 7 5 1 5 U1 0EY01 1 7 5 1 9 3 .8 6 7 9 ,6 3 1      
Ja eb Cent er for Hea lt h  Resea rch  T ot a l -          9 ,6 3 1      

Ph a se I/II Tr ia l of a  Th er a peu t ic DNA  V a ccin e for  Ch r on ic Hepa t it is 
C V ir u s (HCV ) In fection Ma y o Clin ic MCR-01 08 -CPN HHSN2 6 1 2 01 2 0004 2 1 9 3 .1 4 3 8 8 ,9 7 4   
Ma y o Clinic T ot a l -          8 8 ,9 7 4   

Resea r ch  Da ta ba se for  Hem a topoiet ic  Stem  Cell Tr a n spla n ta t ion  a n d 
Ma r r ow  Tox ic In ju r y Na tion a l Ma r r ow  Don or  Pr og r a m A g m t da ted 3 /1 6 /09 Un kn ow n 9 3 .3 9 5 9    
Na t iona l  Ma rrow Don or Progra m  T ot a l -          9    

HERR-Hea lth  Edu ca t ion  Risk Redu ct ion  (Pa r t  II) Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0006 2 9 1 2 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 1 7 1 5 ,1 1 8    
Hea lth y  Wom en  Ser v ices Pr og r a m Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0004 8 8 6 5 Un kn ow n 9 3 .2 8 3 1 3 ,8 4 2   
FY1 5  Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Ma in  Ca p Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0006 6 4 4 1 Un kn ow n 9 3 .2 8 3 3 ,9 2 2      
Th e Teen  a n d You n g  A du lt  Cen ter -Ma in  Ca p  (Fa m ily  Pla n n in g ) 
FY1 5 Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0006 6 4 4 1 Un kn ow n 9 3 .6 6 7 4 ,6 4 0      
Hea lth y  Wom a n  Ser v ices Pr og r a m Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0006 6 4 4 1 Un kn ow n 9 3 .2 8 3 2 0,6 4 6   
Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Pa r tn er sh ip Pr og r a m Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0005 5 5 9 7  R2 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 1 ,01 6      
Th e Teen  a n d You n g  A du lt  Cen ter -Ma in  Ca p  (Fa m ily  Pla n n in g ) 
FY1 5 Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0005 5 5 9 7  R-2 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 8 ,7 00      
Br ea st  a n d Cer v ica l Ca n cer  Ea r ly  Detect ion  Ser v ices FY1 5 Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0006 6 4 4 1 Un kn ow n 9 3 .2 8 3 8 ,04 7      
FY1 5  Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Ma in  Ca p Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0005 5 5 9 7  R2 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 7 ,3 5 4      
Hea lth  Resou r ce Cen ter s FY 1 5  Edison  a n d Ma stba u m  Hig h  Sch ool Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0006 5 7 9 7 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 2 ,6 7 1      
Spin a  Bifida  Ser v ices Gr a n t  FY1 5 Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0006 5 9 7 2 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 3 7 ,1 1 5    
PA  Depa r tm en t of Hea lth  Cy stic Fibr osis Ca r e Gr a n t  FY1 5 Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0006 5 9 6 6 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 1 1 3 ,3 4 5            
Ch ild Reh a b FY1 5 Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hea lth 4 1 0006 5 9 8 3 Un kn ow n 9 3 .9 9 4 2 7 7 ,02 0           
Pennsy lv a nia  Depa rt m ent  of Hea lt h  T ot a l -          5 1 3 ,4 3 6            

Th e Teen  a n d You n g  A du lt  Cen ter -Ma in  Ca p  (Fa m ily  Pla n n in g ) 
FY1 5 Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hu m a n  Ser v ices 4 1 0006 03 9 3 Un kn ow n 9 3 .6 6 7 1 7 ,4 01    
FY1 5  Fa m ily  Pla n n in g  Ma in  Ca p Pen n sy lv a n ia  Depa r tm en t  of Hu m a n  Ser v ices 4 1 0006 03 9 3 Un kn ow n 9 3 .6 6 7 1 4 ,7 08   
Pennsy lv a nia  Depa rt m ent  of Hu m a n Serv ices T ot a l -          3 2 ,1 09   
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A ch iev in g  a  Cr it ica l Ma ss of Wom en  Biom edica l Fa cu lty : Im pa ct  of 3  
US Pr og r a m s Un iv er sity  of New  Mex ico 3 R8 9 B 1 R01 HD06 4 6 5 5 9 3 .8 6 5 2 7 ,7 5 7   
Un iv ersit y  of New Mexico T ot al -   2 7 ,7 5 7   

Pen n sy lv a n ia  Pu blic Hea lth  Tr a in in g  Cen ter Un iv er sity  of Pit tsbu r g h 002 1 3 02 /1 2 3 8 4 3 -1 4 UB6 HP2 01 8 0-04 -01 9 3 .2 4 9 2 1 ,6 3 3   
Un iv ersit y  of Pit t sbu rgh  T ot a l -   2 1 ,6 3 3   

93 - US Depa rt m en t  of Hea lt h  a n d Hu m a n  Serv ices -   4 ,5 3 0,7 9 1     

T ot a l  Pa ss-T h rou gh  Expen dit u res for Ot h er Program s $ 242,063 $ 7,148,203
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1) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedules”) summarize the 
expenditures of Drexel University and Subsidiaries (the “University”) under programs of the federal 
government for the year ended June 30, 2015.  Because the Schedules present only a selected portion of 
the operations of the University, they are not intended to, and do not, present the consolidated financial 
position, revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets of the University. 

For the purposes of the Schedules, federal awards include all grants, contracts, and similar agreements 
entered into directly between the University and agencies or departments of the federal government and 
all sub-awards to the University by nonfederal organizations pursuant to federal grants, contracts, and 
similar agreements. 

Federally guaranteed loans issued to students of the University by various financial institutions and 
campus-based loan programs, disclosed in Note 3, are also included in the Schedules. 

2) Basis of Accounting

The Schedules are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Negative items on the Schedules 
represent adjustments or credits in cases where program expenditures exceed grant or contract budget 
limitations from the prior year.   

3) Federal Student Loan Programs

Federally-guaranteed loans (including subsidized and nonsubsidized loans) issued to students of Drexel 
University directly by Drexel University during the year ended June 30, 2015, are summarized below: 

CFDA Number
FY 201 5

Amount Authorized
Graduate PLUS Loans 84.268 38,1 21 ,97 7$      
Parent Loans for Undergraduate 
Students 84.268 45,020,1 1 9   
Subsidized Direct Loans 84.268 35,488,002  
Unsubsidized Direct Loans 84.268 1 32,883,907    

Total Federally -guaranteed loans 251 ,51 4,005$    

Federally -guaranteed loans (including 
subsidized and non-subsidized loans):

Drexel University is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with respect to 
the federally-guaranteed student loan programs; therefore, the net assets and transactions for those 
programs are not included in the University’s financial statements.   

Drexel University also participates in and administers the following student loan programs: 
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CFDA Num ber

Total Loan 
Outstanding Balance 
as of June 30, 201 5

Loans Made During Year 
Ended June 30, 201 5

Other student loan program s:
Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 22,988,400$       3 ,97 1 ,605$      
Prim ary  Care Loans 93 .342 3,7 89,980    -       
Loans for Disadv antaged Students 93 .342 248,940   -       
Nursing Student Loan 93 .364 27 ,7 69     -     

27 ,055,089$       3 ,97 1 ,605$      

Drexel University accounts for such loan programs in separate revolving loan funds.  As such, the 
balances and transactions of these loan programs are recorded in Drexel University's consolidated 
financial statements.  The amounts on the Schedule for these loan programs also include expenditures for 
the administrative costs of the respective programs.  The administrative cost allowance amount for the 
Federal Perkins Loan Program for the year ended June 30, 2015 is $0.  



II. Reports on Internal Controls and Compliance



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees 
Drexel University 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Drexel 
University and its subsidiaries (the “University”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial 
position as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of activities and of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated October 27, 2015. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University's internal 
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control.  Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies 
in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified.  We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be a significant deficiency, as 
finding 2015-001. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1800, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103-7042 
T: (267) 330 3000, F: (267) 330 3300, www.pwc.com/us 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Management’s Response to Findings 

Management’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
Management’s View and Corrective Action Plan. Management’s response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
October 27, 2015 



Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Requirements 
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal 

Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 

To the Board of Trustees 
Drexel University 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Drexel University's (the “University”) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the University's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.  The 
University’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs.   

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the University’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the University’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances.   

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the University’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2015.   

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1800, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103-7042 
T: (267) 330 3000, F: (267) 330 3300, www.pwc.com/us 
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Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be 
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as items 2015-002 through 2015-004.  Our opinion on each major federal 
program is not modified with respect to these matters.  

The University's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying Management’s View and Corrective Action Plan.  The University's response was not subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on 
the response. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the University’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the University's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.    
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 Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. The University's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our 
audit are described in the accompanying Management’s View and Corrective Action Plan.  

The University's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
March 29, 2016 
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Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued: unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weakness(es) identified? ____ yes     X     no 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

     X     yes        _     none noted 

 Non-compliance material to financial statements
noted?

____ yes        X     no 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weakness(es) identified? ____ yes   X      no 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

     _     yes       X      none reported 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB 
Circular A-133? 

     X    yes ____ no 

Identification of major programs 
CFDA Number(s): 

Various 

Various 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A 
and type B programs: 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster: 

Student Financial Aid Cluster  

Research & Development Cluster 

$2, 333,668 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?        X    yes ____ no 
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Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

2015 – 001: Complex Transactions 

Observation/Cause and Effect 

Drexel University frequently enters into transactions with complex accounting implications that have 
potentially significant effects on the financial statements.  

Management has taken steps toward improving their processes related to the identification and documentation 
of significant contracts and transactions for timely consideration of the accounting and reporting impacts. 
However, management's evaluation and documentation of the transaction does not consistently consider and 
reflect the appropriate accounting standards and related conclusions to ensure accurate accounting and 
reporting for these transactions and as a result a number of adjustments were identified impacting the current 
and prior year financial statements during the audit process. Some examples noted in the current year audit 
include accounting for complex donations, lease and land transactions, and unique financing arrangements. 
The lack of detailed documentation challenges the effectiveness of the review process and increases the risk or 
error.  

Additionally, there were continued instances where Financial Reporting and/or Specialists used by 
Management did not have information timely to evaluate and consider the relevant accounting and reporting 
rules and regulations to arrive at the appropriate conclusions. Specifically, an enacted plan amendment to 
Drexel’s post-retirement benefit plan was not timely provided to the actuarial firm in the prior year resulting in 
an out-of-period error in the current year financial statements. Additionally, a new ground lease was signed 
during the year but was not fully reviewed by the Financial Reporting team prior to completion of the financial 
statements to ensure consideration of complex lease rules requiring judgment surrounding the commencement 
of lease terms, and treatment over the term of the arrangement. While ultimately immaterial to the financial 
statements as a whole, this resulted in an error in the calculation of the straight-line rental income related to 
the contract due to the judgments involved in assessing the accounting start date for a lease. 

Recommendation 

Management has made process improvements to identify transactions significant, unusual or non-recurring 
transactions more timely and documenting relevant key terms. Drexel should continue to develop a process to 
ensure comprehensive evaluation and documentation of all significant transactions by individuals with the 
relevant expertise, specifically as it relates to more complex transactions, such as leases. Additionally, 
management should have a formal procedure for identifying and communicating complex transactions 
requiring specific accounting and reporting considerations. 

Management’s Response 

Following this finding is Management’s View and Corrective Action Plan. 
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Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

2015-002: Effort Reporting  

Federal Agency:  Department of Health and Human Services, Department of Energy, National Science 
Foundation, FEMA, Office of Naval Research, National Aeronautics & Space  
Administration, National Institutes of Health 

Program: Research and Development Cluster 
CFDA #: 93.074, 81.049, 47.074, 97.044, 12.300, 43.001, 93.853, 93.242 
Award #: 440007960, 11122-31, 1010-216-AQU, EF-1115131, EMW-2012-FP-00205,  

N00014-12-1-0160, NNX12AP65G, 2P01NS055976-06A1, 5R01MH085666-07 
Award Year:   Fiscal year 2015 
Pass-through: Pennsylvania Department of Health, Research Partnership to Secure Energy for 

America, Neon, Inc. 

Criteria 

Per 2 CFR part 220/A-21, management is to implement and maintain an employee time reporting system in 
which effort is reviewed to ensure the effort charged to the grant is accurate, and is based on the actual effort 
devoted to the various functional and programmatic activities to which the salary and wage costs are charged.  

Condition 

In the prior year a finding was noted regarding the timeliness of certifications that was determined to be a 
significant deficiency. Half way through the current fiscal year management implemented procedure changes 
to address the timeliness of effort report certification, in advance of the impending implementation of the new 
effort reporting system and formalized policy updates. In our testing over effort reports the engagement team 
selected 23 effort reports from the first half of the year and found that 18 effort reports were certified and 
approved in excess of 90 days of the period end date.  Typically, general industry standard is certification of 
effort within 90 days or less. Within this sample selected for testing, certifications on average took place 129 
days after the period end date, ranging from 106 to 197 days. The engagement team also selected 37 effort 
reports from the second half of the year and found that 1 effort report was certified and approved in excess of 
90 days of the period end date, which was 104 days.  

Additionally, of the 60 effort reports selected for testing, 11 were selected from a subsidiary of the University. 
Of these 11 selections, for 4 management was not able to produce a copy of the original signed effort report. As 
such, we were not able to conclude on timeliness of certification. 

Questioned Costs 

There are no questioned costs associated with this finding as  

Cause 

The previous policy in place did not state a time period as to when effort reports must be certified and 
approved by, following the period end date. Process changes have been implemented to enforce timeliness in 
the current fiscal year, in advance of the new policy being executed in conjunction with the labor redistribution 
process. 

Effect 

The effort reported could be incorrect and if not reviewed and corrected in a timely manner, costs charged to a 
grant could be incorrect. During the second half of the year in conjunction with the implementation of process 
changes, there was significant improvement in the timeliness of the effort report certifications. 
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Recommendation 

We recommend the University continue to enforce the updated processes including ensuring that all staff 
receives appropriate guidance and training, and finalize the updated policy in conjunction with the upcoming 
labor redistribution process. 

Management’s Response 

Following this finding is Management’s View and Corrective Action Plan. 
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2015-003: STUDENT FINANCIAL AID SPECIAL TESTS AND PROVISIONS – BORROWER DATA 
TRANSMISSION AND RECONCILIATION (DIRECT LOAN) 

Federal Agency:  Department of Education 
Program:  Federal Direct Loans 
CFDA #  84.268 
Award #:  N/A 
Award Year:   Fiscal year 2015 
Pass-through: None 

Criteria 

34 CFR Section 685.301 which sets forth standards for reconciling University records to the DOE records. 

Condition 

During our testing of compliance with the Direct Loan reconciliation process, we noted that the reconciliations 
performed each month did not include the entire student population.  For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, 
Drexel University Financial Aid Office did not have a process in place to completely reconcile 100% of the 
variances every month, as such, within each month only about one third of the students are reconciled. 

Questioned Costs 

There are no questioned costs associated with this finding as the variances are all reconciled by the end of the 
fiscal year. 

Cause 

The current reconciliation process is manual and labor intensive. Management performs a portion of the full 
reconciliation each month based on assessed risk of variances, The University hired two new employees to join 
the loan processing team in March 2015 to help address this issue. However, system issues developed in the loan 
processing module that caused a delay in the loan processing team’s implementation of the full monthly 
reconciliation process, and as such they were not able to be performed. 

Effect 

The University could fail to recognize discrepancies within student accounts within the appropriate amount of 
time (30 days). 

Recommendation 

We recommend the University fully implement the new reconciliation process and reconcile 100% of the 
variances each month. 

Management’s Response 

Following this finding is Management’s View and Corrective Action Plan. 
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2015-004: ALLOWABLE COSTS/COST PRINCIPLES - COST TRANSFERS 

Federal Agency:  National Institutes of Health 
Program: Research and Development Cluster 
CFDA #: 93.242, 93.866 
Award #: 5R01MH085666-07, 5R21AG041510-02 
Award Year:   Fiscal year 2015 
Pass-through: None  

Criteria 

OMB Circular A-21 C.4 establishes that any costs allocable to a particular sponsored agreement may not be 
shifted to other sponsored agreements in order to meet deficiencies caused by overruns or other funding 
considerations, to avoid restrictions imposed by law or by terms of the sponsored agreement, or for other reasons 
of convenience. Appropriate controls should be in place to prevent frequent, tardy, and unexplained (or 
inadequately explained) transfers. National Institute of Health states that cost transfers should be accomplished 
within 90 days of when the error was discovered. Drexel University Cost Transfer Policy states that non-labor 
cost transfers must be processed within 120 days of the date of the original transaction. 

Condition 

PwC selected a sample of 60 cost transfers.  These transfers included journal entries to remove and record 
transactions to federal awards. There is no consistent way to identify the dates when the error was discovered. 
As such, PwC evaluated cost transfers using the date of the original transaction in relation to the date of the 
transfer, in accordance with Drexel policy. 3 of 60 samples selected for testing were cost transfers that would be 
considered untimely, where underlying transactions needing correction were processed between 134 and 775 
days after the date of the original transaction.  

Questioned Costs 

There are no questioned costs associated with this finding as all cost transfers were accompanied by supporting 
documentation evidencing allowability. 

Cause 

The University’s cost transfer policy was not always consistently executed. 

Effect 

Costs requiring correction are not detected and/or transferred in a timely manner as required by the federal 
regulations and Drexel University's policy.  This may ultimately result in inaccurate and/or out of period 
reporting and billing to the federal sponsoring agency. 

Recommendation 

We recommend the University continue to enhance its efforts to educate the research community on its cost 
transfer policy, with a specific emphasis on the timely detection and processing of necessary cost transfers. 
Ongoing and targeted training should include departments which generate frequent cost transfers. 

Management’s Response 

Following this finding is Management’s View and Corrective Action Plan. 
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Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

2014-001: GRANT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING 

Federal Agency:  Department of Justice 
Program: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program (Including 

Recovery Act) 
CFDA #: 16.738, 16.803 
Award #: 2009-MH-ST-20335 
Award Year:   Fiscal years 2010 - 2012 
Pass-through: Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency 

Summary 

During the 2014 audit, both the University’s management and PwC were made aware by a prime awarding 
Commonwealth of PA agency of an error related to the fiscal 2011 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards (SEFA).  The above listed award was not included on the fiscal 2011 SEFA.  The expenditures totaled 
$206,432 for fiscal year 2011.  There were no expenditures in 2014.   

An employee received an inquiry from the Commonwealth funding agency regarding the omission and did 
not notify another member of management.  In addition, the employee provided a response to the inquiry 
without providing it first to an appropriate member of University management for review.  This response 
contained intentional errors which the funding agency realized and contacted PwC for verification.  

Status 

To strengthen internal controls for data integrity and proper reporting, processes have been instituted at 
the fund assignment stage to identify federal funds and federal flow through funds.  This check ensures 
that federal funds are identified, CFDA numbers are obtained and that the correct classification is in the 
Banner Research Accounting module.  Higher risk transactions must be reviewed and approved by the 
Associate Vice President and Comptroller.  All audit responses are reviewed by the Associate Vice 
President and Comptroller and the Vice President for Finance, CFO and Associate Treasurer prior to 
submission to the auditors.     
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2014-002: ALLOWABLE COSTS/COST PRINCIPLES - COST TRANSFERS 

Federal Agency:  National Institutes of Health, National Institute of Mental Health, National Cancer 
Institute, Air Force, Federal Aviation Administration, Office of Naval Research 

Program: Research and Development Cluster 
CFDA #: 93.226, 93.859, 93.242, 93.393, 12.800, 20.109, 12.630 
Award #: 1R21HS021008-01, 1R01GM097664-03, 1R01MH095982-03, 5R01CA129494-06, 

FA8750-13-C-0268, DTFACT-12-A-80003, N65236-12-1-1005 
Award Year:   Fiscal year 2014 
Pass-through: Various 

Summary 

PwC selected a sample of 60 cost transfers.  These transfers included journal entries to remove and record 
transactions to federal awards.  PwC noted the following with regards to the sample selected for testing: 

 21 of 60 samples selected for testing were cost transfers where items needing correction were
processed in excess of 90 days from the closing period in which the error was identified. 

 2 of 60 samples selected for testing did not have an adequate explanation supporting the reason
behind the cost transfer. 

Status 

The cost transfer policy is in place and is being enforced.  All cost transfers are reviewed by central staff 
and must be accompanied by appropriate documentation and justification.  All cost transfers that occur 
after 120 days from the original posting date are reviewed by the Associate Vice President and 
Comptroller for approval.  Webinars on Cost Transfers accompanied by topic specific training have been 
offered to the research community.  
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2014-003: EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 

Federal Agency:  National Science Foundation, US Air Force, Federal Highway Administration 
Program: Research and Development Cluster 
CFDA #: 47.082, 12.800, 20.502 
Award #: DBI-0845827, FA9550-04-1-0018, DTFH61-97-X-00023 
Award Year:   Fiscal year 2014  
Pass-through: Various 

Summary 

We provided PwC a property and equipment listing of equipment purchased under its federal awards which 
contained 988 items.  PwC selected a sample of 25 items for testing of compliance with federal regulations 
regarding equipment and real property management, and noted the following: 

 1 of 25 items selected for testing were not in locations noted on the property listing, but rather were
found in other locations (a different room or building) because the equipment had been moved
without proper notification to University’s Comptroller’s Office (asset NBV = $9,522.04).

 1 of 25 items selected for testing we identified and represented it was the correct asset, but it
could not be reconciled to the underlying records and therefore verified (asset NBV = $30,000).

 1 of 25 items selected for testing was not kept in a locked facility and therefore not considered to
be properly safeguarded in accordance with University policies (asset NBV = $29,185.11).

Status  

American Appraisal began conducting the inventory of all federally funded equipment inventory the week 
of January 25, 2016.  This was completed in March 2016. 

A full wall-to-wall equipment inventory is planned as part of the Facilities and Administrative rate 
proposal base year activities in FY’17.  A team in General Accounting is meeting periodically to address the 
comments and properly update the Banner fixed asset system with the data prior to the annual equipment 
confirmations. American Appraisal will conduct federal equipment inventories every two years, if the 
negotiated federal indirect cost rates are extended for greater than two years. 

The Finance Competency Center will begin working on new tool for confirming assets in April for roll-out 
in early July 2016. 
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2014-004: SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING 

Federal Agency:  National Cancer Institute, National Science Foundation, National Institute of 
Allergy & Infectious Diseases National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences, 
Department of Army, Office of Naval Research, US Army Medical Research 
Acquisition Activity, National Institute of Health 

Program: Research and Development Cluster 
CFDA #:  93.399, 93.395, 47.049, 47.082, 47.076, 93.855, 93.113, 12.OSP, 12.630, 12.431, 

93.859 
Award #: 2U10CA037403-27, 5U10CA037403-28, 5U10CA086802-14 REVISED, 

5U10CA086802-15, DMR-1124696, CNS-0960061, HRD-1139870, HRD-
0903924-006, 7U01AI095085-02, R01ES016443, W15P7T-06-9-P011-TASK 
0036, W15P7T-06-9-P011/0035, N65236-12-1-1005, W911NF-10-1-0409, 
2P01GM056550-17A1 

Award Year:   Fiscal year 2014 
Pass-through: Various 

Summary 

For the research and development cluster, there were 161 subrecipients, with expenditures of $22,349,181 
during the fiscal year.  16 subrecipients with individual transactions totaling $1,487,417 were selected for 
testing by PwC. 

While PwC was able to obtained evidence and approval of invoices and related costs for all selections, there 
was no contemporaneous review performed of subrecipients’s A-133 reports, or follow up on any findings 
included therein. 

Status 

A formalized process is currently in place in which a report is run to gather subrecipients for the 
University.  A contact is made with each subrecipient to verify if their A-133 is in the federal audit clearing 
house and the subrecipients website for any audit report disclosures.  We review for findings and contact 
them if there are any questions or concerns.  We complete a Risk Assessment for each subrecipient and 
based on that review, determine next steps.  We are moving this to an electronic process where the review 
is completed prior to finalization of award acceptance.  As of March 2016, we have contacted 100% of our 
subrecipients for FY15 and 88% of the risk assessments are complete.  
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2014-005: REPORTING 

Federal Agency:  National Cancer Institute, National Science Foundation, National Institute of 
Allergy & Infectious Diseases National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences, 
Department of Army, Office of Naval Research, US Army Medical Research 
Acquisition Activity, National Institute of Health 

Program: Research and Development Cluster 
CFDA #:  93.399, 93.395, 47.049, 47.082, 47.076, 93.855, 93.113, 12.OSP, 12.630, 12.431, 

93.859 
Award #: 2U10CA037403-27, 5U10CA037403-28, 5U10CA086802-14 REVISED, 

5U10CA086802-15, DMR-1124696, CNS-0960061, HRD-1139870, HRD-
0903924-006, 7U01AI095085-02, R01ES016443, W15P7T-06-9-P011-TASK 
0036, W15P7T-06-9-P011/0035, N65236-12-1-1005, W911NF-10-1-0409, 
2P01GM056550-17A1 

Award Year:   Fiscal year 2014 
Pass-through: Various 

Summary 

During testing over subrecipient monitoring, PwC selected 16 subrecipients to test the University’s 
compliance with the Federal Funding and Transparency Act (FFATA).  No FFATA reports were submitted 
for any of the 16 selections. 

Status 

The Office of Research completed the submission of the FFATA backlog on June 25, 2015.  Out of 254 
records evaluated, 200 records were submitted and 54 did not require an entry into the system because 
Drexel was the subrecipient, the base year of the award preceded October 2010 and/or the prime award 
was less than $25K.  The Office of Research is now processing the FFATA items when awarded and are 
up-to-date 
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2014-006: EFFORT REPORTING 

Federal Agency:  Office of Naval Research, National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences, 
National Cancer Institute, National Science Foundation, National Institute of 
Mental Health, New Jersey Sea Grant Consortium 

Program: Research and Development Cluster 
CFDA #: 12.630, 93.113, 93.393, 47.070, 93.242, 11.4 R&D 
Award #:  N65236-12-1-1005, R01ES016443, 5R01CA129494-06, CCF-1065189,   

1R01MH095982-03, 694-7900-7553 
Award Year:   Fiscal year 2014 
Pass-through: Various 

Summary 

During PwC testing of compliance with direct compensation, specifically with regards to timely effort 
reporting, they noted 37 of 40 effort reports were certified and approved in excess of 90 days of the period 
end date.  Untimely certifications on average took place 172 days after the period end date, ranging from 
114 to 246 days. 

PwC also noted that for 1 of 40 effort reports selected for testing, the effort report did not reflect payroll 
expenditures charged to the grant.  These charges were deemed to be erroneous, and subsequently reversed 
off of the grant.  

Status 

The Effort Reporting System has been tested and will be rolled out in tandem with the Labor 
Redistribution Process in April 2016.  The corresponding effort reporting policy is being finalized and will 
change the effort reporting periods from bi-annual to quarterly to ensure timely labor redistributions.  
The policy will also address deadlines for certification. 
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2014-007: STUDENT FINANCIAL AID SPECIAL TESTS AND PROVISIONS – STUDENT 
LOAN REPAYMENTS 

Federal Agency:  Department of Health and Human Services 
Program:  Student Financial Aid Cluster 
CFDA #  93.342 (Primary Care Loans), 93.364 (Nursing Student Loans) 
Award #:  N/A 
Award Year:   Fiscal year 2014 
Pass-through: None 

Summary 

During PwC testing of compliance with student loan deferments and cancellations, they noted that 
supporting documentation substantiating the deferment (such as the evidence of enrollment in another 
University or advanced training) for 1 out of 25 students could not be located by the servicer. 

Status 

Loan Repayment and Collections (LRC) has an on-going dialogue with ECSI regarding the administration 
of all loans, including the Federal loan programs.  Further, members of LRC and Financial Aid visited the 
Department of Health and Human Services to discuss our portfolio specifically, and generate procedures 
to minimize any issues related to compliance and/or default.   
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2014-008: STUDENT FINANCIAL AID – FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Federal Agency:  Department of Education 
Program:  Student Financial Aid Cluster 
CFDA #  Various 
Award #:  N/A 
Award Year:   Fiscal year 2014 
Pass-through:  None 

Summary 

During PwC testing of compliance with Financial Reporting, they noted that that Part V, section G (number 
of students in community service employment) did not agree to the underlying support, with the FISAP 
having 255 students, and the report showing 141.  As such, the FISAP for the 2013/2014 school year was 
restated to reflect the correct information.  This did not affect the dollar values reflected on the FISAP, and 
no changes were made to those amounts.  Additional changes have been noted to campus based funding 
which will require the FISAP to be revised once campus based funding has been re-reconciled. 

Status 

Consistent with the prior year corrective action plan, the Financial Aid Office moved approximately 80% 
of all “packaging” to the Banner system for 15/16.  For 16/17, the Financial Aid Office plans to package 
100% of all applications in Banner. We think this will eliminate the possibility of errors in reporting the 
data on the FISAP. By packaging all awards in Banner, we are ensuring a full beginning-to-end processing 
cycle from the time the award package is made to final reporting on the FISAP.  This will enable the 
Financial Aid Office to have full Banner generated data for the FISAP from the same system. 
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2014-009: STUDENT FINANCIAL AID SPECIAL TESTS AND PROVISIONS – BORROWER 
DATA TRANSMISSION AND RECONCILIATION (DIRECT LOAN) 

Federal Agency:  Department of Education 
Program:  Federal Direct Loans 
CFDA #  84.268 
Award #:  N/A 
Award Year:   Fiscal year 2014 
Pass-through: None 

Summary 

During PwC testing of compliance with the Direct Loan reconciliation process, they noted that the 
reconciliations were not completely performed each month.  Drexel University Financial Aid Office does 
not currently have a policy in place to completely reconcile 100% of the variances every month, as such, 
within each month only about half of the students are reconciled. 

Status 

Consistent with the prior year corrective action plan, a new loan team was hired to work on this issue and 
related loan processing reports.  However, this additional staff was not on board until March and April of 
2015.   Once this team was in place, management did establish monthly goals to complete the reviews. We 
were unable to meet this goal because of the timing of the staff hires and a number of other administrative 
issues that we were attempting to resolve.  We are still experiencing staff transition in this area, and we 
should be able to fully implement the monthly reconciliation effective July 1, 2016. 
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2014-010: STUDENT FINANCIAL AID SPECIAL TESTS AND PROVISIONS – FEDERAL 
WORK STUDY AGREEMENTS 

Federal Agency:  Department of Education 
Program:  Federal Work Study 
CFDA #  84.033 
Award #:  N/A 
Award year:   Fiscal year 2014 
Pass-through: None 

Summary 

During PwC testing of compliance with the FWS program they were able to obtain signed time cards with 
hours charged to ascertain that charges were appropriate and allowable.  However, timecards include total 
hours charged but not specific time/hours of the day, therefore making it difficult for proper review and 
monitoring procedures, such as ensuring that recipients do not work during scheduled class times. 

Status 

Consistent with the prior year collective action plan, the Financial Aid Office worked with Payroll and 
HRIS in May and June 2015 to update the format of the time sheets to reflect actual hours worked, 
showing time in and time out. The change went live for the 2015-16 academic year. 
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